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Corporate Information
NEER

Executive Directors

WANG Donglei
WANG Dongming
XIAO Yu

WANG Keven Dun

Non-executive Directors

LI Huating
LI Wei
YANG Jianwen'’

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Kong Wai, Conway
WANG Xuexian

WEI Hongxiong

SU Ling

Joint Company Secretaries

LO Yee Har, Susan
LEUNG Ching Ching

Authorized Representatives

LO Yee Har, Susan
WANG Dongming

Registered Office

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Headquarter

NVC Industrial Park
Ruhu Town, Huizhou City
Guangdong Province
PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

1. Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-
executive Director, member of Audit Committee and
member of Independent Investigations Committee
with effect from 22 March 2018.
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Corporate Website

www.nvc-lighting.com.cn

Investor Relations

Email: ir@nvc-lighting.com

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office
SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House-3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Share Registrar
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Legal Advisor as to Hong Kong Laws

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

Auditor

BDO Limited (Certified Public Accountants)
Principal Bankers

Industrial Bank, Huizhou Branch

Ping An Bank, Shenzhen Pingshan Branch
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Investor and Media Relations Consultant

Wonderful Sky Financial Group Holdings Limited
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Company Profile
NI

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) is a leading
supplier of lighting products in China, which is engaged in the
design, development, production, marketing and sale of a wide
variety of lighting products including lamp products, luminaire
products and lighting electronic products. Our products are
sold through the national sales network of 36 exclusive regional
distributors and our 3,634 NVC outlets covering 31 provinces,
municipalities and autonomous regions in China. Our production
bases in China are located in Guangdong, Chongqing,
Zhejiang and Shanghai and we have established research and
development centre in Huizhou. We have set up operation
agencies in more than 40 countries and regions around the
world.

Since the establishment in 1998, we always insist on
independent innovation in product research and development,
and are committed to providing efficient, energy-saving, healthy
and comfortable lighting solutions for the fields of construction,
transportation, urban lighting, supermarket, hotel, office, housing
and industry. We have maintained the leading position in the
market, especially in the commercial lighting sector. On 20 May
2010, the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02222).
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As a professional lighting enterprise, our products and solutions
are selected and used by a number of famous projects and
brands, including the well-known projects such as the 2008
Beijing Olympic Games, the Shanghai World Expo 2010,
Hangzhou G20 Summit, Tianjin Subway, Wuhan-Guangzhou
Highspeed Railway and Shanghai Honggiao Transport Hub, etc.
and also by the world-class hotels such as Hilton, Sheraton
and Intercontinental, and the domestic sales outlets of famous
automotive brands such as Bentley, BMW and Toyota as well
as the garment brands such as Metersbonwe, Septwolves,
K-Boxing and Erdos. In 2011, we became the lighting and
service cooperative partner of the Olympic Council of Asia. We
entered into an agreement to become an “Official Cooperative
Partner of International Swimming Federation” from 2013 to 2017
in 2013 and became the senior sponsor for the 2014 Qingdao
International Horticultural Exposition.

The Group has devoted itself to beautify the commercial and
living space with artificial lighting and protecting the ecological
environment with environmentally-friendly and energy-saving
lighting products. Therefore, we have been vigorously promoting
the research and development and applications of advanced
lighting technologies, accomplishing its brand beliefs and
commitments with excellence and expertise.
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Financial Highlights
B E

For the years ended 31 December BZ12A31HILLFEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20165 2015% 20145 20134

RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
TARE  TARE®  TAR®E  TAR®  TARE

Revenue LON 4,063,163 3806329 3845650 3471014 3,773,816
Gross profit ES 1,172,858 1,020,958 901,005 741,576 797,403
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EHE (friz1) 28.9% 26.8% 23.4% 21.4% 21.1%
Profit/(loss) before income tax BAiRE/ (BR) 435,856 254,054 203,088 (314,587) 354,458
Profit/(loss) margin before income tax BaIRE/ (B18) %

(Note 1) (Hiit1) 10.7% 6.7% 5.3% 9.1%) 9.4%
Profit/{loss) for the year (Note 2) AENE /(B8R (Hi22) 331,600 178,583 127,787 (328,068) 282,107
Net profit/(loss) margin (Note 1) 38/ (B18) X (z21) 8.2% 4.7% 3.3% (9.5%) 7.5%
Profit/{loss) for the year A& AEEARE

attributable to: I8/ (58) :

Owners of the parent SARERA 314,268 150,928 55,759 (354,159) 244,884

Non-controling interests JEmsli R 17,332 27,655 71,978 26,085 37,223

Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue; Bzt : ERNEREREFBRIAUA  FATH
profit/(loss) margin before income tax equals to profit/(loss) BB RERBATHE (&
before income tax divided by revenue; net profit/(loss) margin 1B) BrRAMA : FFIE(BE) X
equals to profit/(loss) for the year divided by revenue. ERRFEFE(EE) BRIAWA -

Note 2:  Profit/(loss) for the year represents profit before netting off a2 - AEFE (BB BINRIEE Ik
profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests. e PG ARF R BRI FE o

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Financial Highlights
B E

As at 31 December M12H31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20165 20156 20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TAR% TARE FARE TARE TARE
Non-current assets FRBEE 1836115 1346409 1221748 1304846 1312316
Current assets MEEE 3,637,201 3598264 3645816 3206593 3,456,658
Current liabilties RBARE 2,043,767 1636629 1313771 1043726 900,279
Net current assets FRBEE 1,503,434 1962,635 2332045 2,162,867 2,556,379
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHAR 3429549 3300044 3553793 3467713 3,868,695
Non-current liabilties FRBAR 99,320 535,369 97,764 101,104 108,070
Total equity BEs 3,330,229 2,778,675 3,456,029 3,366,609 3,760,625
Including: Hep
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &0 AIBAATE(RER 3,242,052 2,708,481 3,316,907 3,247,462 3,676,870
Non-controlling interests FEHIEER 88,177 70,194 139,122 119,147 83,755
Current ratio (Note 1) MELE (1) 1.78 2.20 2.78 3.07 384
Note 1: Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current Bt it EXERRDEERURBAE

liabilities.
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Milestones in 2017
2017E KE7

2 A/ February
ELRPERESARESLEBHATRENDE
BELARBEBERNZTHRSERZE - QA

RIEITABBRE£EE -

NVC Lighting signed strategic cooperation
agreements with Shaohaihui* (4 /& [&) jointly

sponsored by Haier Home Integration* (BEZ
J&) and other enterprises, and Youzhu Website*
(B{E#), thus entering the ecosphere of the

smart home.

6 A/June
ELTRIANUARKE206.85E T MIEEE -
KEPEZAEEMES005 -

NVC Lighting's brand value of RMB20.685
billion ranked among China's Top 500
Most Valuable Brands.

@

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RAERBRAR

4 B /April
EMNETREENE+RBLEDSE &5

1 BLEDF T 81#7309% °
Huizhou NVC ranked among China’s Top
30 enterprises in terms of LED technology
innovation in the “Fourth LED Pioneering
Award of China™ (£ [0 /E+ BEILED & &Il £%).

9 A/September
Jll*irﬁn)llmﬁizllﬁiai/ﬂz/ I?Eﬁmfﬁz
FREATIZ | B R [ R RRARAF 4% — IR
%E'*” FrEe] —Fgo

The first prize was awarded for Huizhou
NVC’s “Nightscape Lighting Project for
Riverside Landscape Belt of Hangzhou
Qianjiang Century City”* (I7p/HTH 8Tt 42 35k
T REAR =BT in the “China Lighting
Award — nghtlng Engineering Design Award”*
(IR AR EA 2% — PREA T A2 RAT %)
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9 H/September

TREEEFRELPRERSCHHE)
giE R FEOPREELE] -

Mr. Wang Donglei, Chairman, was invited to
“Made in China for the World”* (Ett 57 % 5%
KRB &4 in the CCTV “Dialogue™ (% 3%)
program.

12 A/December

AR B 5T B 82201 74 [ R B AR B AR
BRTTEE (1T BMmE] -
The Company won the “Industry Leading

Brand” in China’s lighting industry in the
Light Spot Award* (52 25%%) 2017.

1), identifying November 9 as the “NVC Brand
Date”.

Milestones in 2017
2017E K57

11 H/November

EmBEEBEREFEBE I ERBEARE
£ WHEEF11AHEEA [ELREH] -
The “Authorization for Enterprise Brand Date”
was granted by Brand Observer* (fhEE 2254 5%

R -
gl 1A W R

P T L RS T

T sl | AL VAT

12 H/December

FTREEEFRE07THFEREER
[FENBAY] M5 -
Mr. Wang Donglei, Chairman, won the
title of “Meritorious Person for China’s
Brand Building in 2017”.
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ITHNEREAEAAN
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present to
you the 2017 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

In 2017, the global economy improved as a whole, and China’s
economy became the bellwether of global economic growth. The
“Belt and Road Initiative” of the PRC government was promoted
in an orderly manner. This brought about large energy-saving
reconstruction demands to LED lighting enterprises. Meanwhile,
market competition in the LED lighting industry was increasingly
fierce. Especially in recent years, certain metallic raw material,
components and parts and labor costs increased continuously,
leading to shrinkage in profitability of manufacturing enterprises.
LED manufacturing enterprises can only improve the quality,
efficiency and core competitiveness and realize their sustainable
development eventually through internal in-depth technical
improvement or product mix adjustment, or through achieving
scale economy and driving up the entry barrier via external
horizontal merger and acquisition, or through optimization and
integration of upstream and downstream resources via vertical
merger and acquisition. Therefore, transformation is an inevitable
choice for many manufacturing enterprises.

Attributable to the advantages as the No. 1 brand in the
domestic lighting industry, the extensive and profound layout of
sales channels, as well as the comprehensive cost reduction and
efficiency improvement in internal management, the Group made
satisfactory growth in results in 2017.

° Sales revenue amounted to RMB4,063,163,000,
representing an increase of 6.7% as compared with the
Corresponding Period;

° Gross profit amounted to RMB1,172,858,000,
representing an increase of 14.9% as compared with the
Corresponding Period;

° Profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted to
RMB314,268,000, representing an increase of 108.2% as
compared with the Corresponding Period;

° The sales revenue of LED lighting products amounted to

RMB3,165,613,000, representing an increase of 17.4% as
compared with the Corresponding Period.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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In 2018, the Group will continue to develop business all over
the world, conduct comprehensive and in-depth reforms in
domestic and overseas sales channel expanding as well as
internal management improvement, gradually transform itself
from a manufacturing enterprise to a channel enterprise, devote
itself to commercial lighting, home lighting, kitchen & bathroom
and township channels, strive to become the first brand of smart
lighting solution provider, and achieve the ultimate mission of
using innovative technology and artistic design to bring people
an infinitely beautiful living experience space.

Domestic sales

In the field of domestic commercial lighting, the Group will
continue to be professional and dedicated, devote itself to
creating a differentiated and leading integrated solutions
provider that specializes in professional lighting, key clients and
major projects. In terms of professional lighting, the Group will
continue to strengthen and perfect the 400-project system, set
up a channel engineering department to be responsible for the
construction and management of exclusive regional distributors’
project operation system so as to achieve the full coverage of
project managers of core prefecture-level cities; establish one-
on-one invisible channel design system, enhance the business
reputation through the invisible channel, change from the initiative
sales to users’ selection; focus on spotlights, lamp panels, spot
luminaries and other product lines, ensure that key products rank
first in market share. In terms of key clients, the Group will focus
on the top 20 clients in real estate and stores, and initially set
up a dual-channel model of direct sales with key clients project
system.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In the field of domestic home lighting, the Group will continue to
expand and deepen its channels. In 2018, it plans to establish
350 exclusive outlets and refurbish 230 outlets. In the meantime,
the Group will initiate “500 Plan”, establish 500 exclusive outlets
with respective area of more than 500 square meters and
respective retail sales of more than RMB5 million, introduce
four-standardization (terminal image standardization, display
standardization, store operations standardization, commodity
operations standardization) management system into exclusive
regional distributors to help them enhance user-centered retail
management skills. In terms of channel promotion, in 2018 the
Group plans to conduct more than 10,000 regular promotion
activities such as “Factory Buying”, “Lamp Replacement for
Good” and “Plumbers”, and use online media promotion to
introduce online retail clients to exclusive outlets, directly
promoting the terminal sales.

The kitchen & bathroom and township channels newly developed
over the past two years will also become a key part of the
strategic development of the Group in 2018. With the rapid
development of the real estate industry and the upgrading of
residents’ consumption level in recent years, the integrated
ceiling has been transformed from the ceiling of a single kitchen
and bathroom to the “whole house custom-made” ceiling of the
living room, dining room, hallway, balcony and bedroom. In 2018,
the Group will take the opportunities in the industry and market
to promote the investment of integrated houses, enter into the
market through whole house ceiling and fully enter into the
medium to high-end market of the ceiling industry. At the same
time, the Group will strengthen its strategic cooperation with
large-scale real estate developers and whole-house assembly
platforms to provide customized kitchen and bathroom products,
and prosper kitchen and bathroom channel. In terms of township
channels, in 2018 the Group plans to set exclusive outlets in the
Top 100 and Top 1000 towns, populated towns and southeastern
coastal towns, provide training and policy support through
standardized store management to assist exclusive outlets in the
integration of plumber resources, set up E-commerce platforms
in township channel to build the Group’s township channel into a
service provider that provides clients with basic design and one-
stop water and electricity decoration.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Overseas sales

In terms of expanding the overseas channels, the Group will
continue focusing on channel expansion and breakthrough
in engineering projects, and attach importance to expanding
channels in Southeast Asia, other developing countries and Gulf
countries in Middle East. As for channel expansion, by virtue
of the talent resources in Southeast Asia and the back support
of the Middle East office, the Group will assist the distributors
in Indonesia to complete the development of 200 secondary
distributors, and assist the Gulf countries in Middle East to
complete the layout of 100 sales outlets. Meanwhile, the Group
innovates upon the marketing models, and enters the markets
of Italy and surrounding countries by franchising model, in an
attempt to develop 10 franchised outlets in major cities of Italy.
The Group is also considering extending its sales channels into
North America markets in order to increase its overseas sales.
As for engineering projects, the Group will establish the key
project follow-up team, so as to offer support in technology,
personnel and specialized product development for seizing
major overseas engineering projects such as “Yogyakarta Court
in Indonesia”, “World Cup Main Stadium in Qatar”, “2020 World
Expo in UAE”, “Royal Docks in London”, etc. Meanwhile, by
virtue of the favorable policy of “Belt and Road Initiative”, the
Group will strengthen cooperation with Tsinghua Design Institute,
the “Belt and Road Initiative” Industry Alliance of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, etc., and integrate the products, R&D
and back support resources within the Group to participate in
the “Belt and Road Initiative” projects such as “Construction of
Luang Prabang New City in Laos”, “Road Lamp Replacement in
Sri Lanka”,”Coal-fired Power Plant in Dubai”, etc., in an effort to
make some breakthroughs.

Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

BINEE

EENRERE L  AEBBEERE
REHMEAITIZEHB W E2HA
REEREMBERPBIRKURFREGE
BX - REWE L ANEESEERME
DATERRPRERBEREATE B
B ENFE 4% $5 7 52 K 200K — AR 45 $5 71 59
B BEPREEBRKRTHKI0ORHEE
MR RAIFEHEER - £EX
FREABERAFTCERRXEAN - 5
FMEAEEAFNEEYMEEI10RE
B c AEBEERKEHEEER
BRREILENS - AL INEBEEI
HER A IRER LASEFERESE
TIRIEE R#E/NDAE - B HEBEK
B[ RERERREILEE] - [P
2020 tHEE | R RAEXTEE] F
BREINIREBBENBRERERM - A
BRBTEMRAEIE  RREHPEH
[—&—BK | EFIECR - AEEFEE
HEREbT PRI REXEHRESE
meeE SESERITER AR
BEZEBER  2HE[ZHRWHNIH
WER [hTESrREEHR] k(@
BAOBEL|E—F—KIEE X
BRI ©

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Other service platforms

In terms of public relations for the brand, the Group is committed
to creating a brand leader in the lighting industry and the national
high-end benchmarking brand in China. The Group profoundly
promoted the brand by the activities such as “Blue Book”
Promotion Series Activities of the 2018 China Building Decoration
Association, “Zhurong Award” China Lighting Application Design
Competition, NVC 20th anniversary celebration activities, etc.
Meanwhile, the Group will endeavor to obtain professional
recognition of the industry with the image as “Leader of Healthy
Lighting Technology” free of flickering, blue light or dazzle light
and by providing system solutions. In addition, the Group’s brand
has won the artistic recognition by cooperating with famous
designers and design institutes, and by holding product design
awards.

In 2018, the Group will focus on optimizing and integrating
the resources on the three platforms of R&D, logistics and
customer services, on the basis of promoting the four cost
saving measures for reducing R&D cost, manufacturing cost,
purchasing cost and labor cost. In terms of R&D platform, the
Group will integrate internal resources to establish the Central
Research Institute. Apart from completing the development
of specialized commercial lighting products and home styled
products in cooperation with the Group, the Central Research
Institute will deeply research into the future lifestyle and healthy
lighting, carry out upgrade and transformation of intelligent
products and establish intelligent application scenario models,
thereby opening the Group’s new era in developing intelligent
lighting. In terms of logistics platform, the Group will finish
planning and layout of 8 logistics warehouses on the principle
of resource optimization and concentrated operation in 2018,
and establish then secondary distribution resource system
by combining express delivery and logistics resources, thus
realizing the “Next Day Delivery” of over 80% orders. In addition,
the Group will launch the logistics system in 2018, which
will connect through the information flows inside and outside
various regions and refine data exchange platforms to achieve
intensification, standardization and informationization of transport
services. In terms of customer service platform, the Group
will gradually promote use of 400 hotline on the basis of the
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existing standardized call center in 2018, thus enhancing the
systematic degree of business handling process; meanwhile,
the Group will present the after-sales service platform system,
so as to complete the development of user management,
order management, service provider management, engineer
management and assistant management modules, optimize
the quick response mechanism, and upgrade the customer
satisfaction.

The extensive and well-arranged channel resources have always
been the precious treasure of the Group. In the future, the Group
will use such channel advantages to gradually transform into
a channel enterprise. The Group will plan to realize the mutual
integration of online and offline channels by getting through the
online channels; transform the offline channels and strengthen
control of the exclusive regional distributors, so as to master
the initiative power for engineering projects; initiate a new era of
strategic transformation by creating sub-brands or introducing
other matured brands, so as to create a new era of strategic
restructuring of the Group.
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Market and Business Review

In 2017, the global economy grew faster. The growth rate of
developed economies, such as the Eurozone, the United States
and Japan, was better than the expectation, while the relatively
quick growth of emerging markets and developing economies
became the major impetus stimulating global economic recovery.
Therefore, the global economy achieved the best performance
this year as compared to recent years. In spite of the highlights
in global economy, the long-term low interest rate environment of
developed countries, the continuous accumulation of global debt
level and the three consecutive interest rate hikes by the Board
of Governors of The Federal Reserve System, etc. all became
the uncertainty factors inhibiting the continuous growth of global
economy.

Under the background of the overall upturn of the global
economy, the 2017 Gross Domestic Product in the PRC enjoyed
a growth rate of 6.9% as compared with the Corresponding
Period, which realized the first upswing since the downward
economic growth rate in 2011, reflecting that Chinese economy
has become the bellwether of global economic growth.
Meanwhile, as the Chinese government further implemented the
“Belt and Road Initiative” strategy, the export volume of lighting
products in China kept rising. According to the Monthly Report
on Export of LED Lighting Products in China, during January to
November 2017, the amount of LED lighting products exported
by Chinese enterprises totaled to US$19.76 billion, representing
an increase of 5.4% on a year-on-year basis; meanwhile, due
to the lower power consumption level, developing countries
alongside the “Belt and Road Initiative” had huge demand for
LED energy-saving lighting products. “Belt and Road Initiative”
has become the new blue ocean of export for the Chinese LED
lighting enterprises having the cost-effective products and great
overseas marketing capability (Data Source: Semiconductor
Lighting Network).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As one of the eleven emerging industries in the PRC, the pattern
of LED industry tended to be clear and the industry concentration
degree became increasingly high through the rapid development
in the recent years. However, the continuous increase in the cost
of metallic raw materials, elements and labor led to the shrinkage
of profit space. Therefore, the LED manufacturers can eventually
improve quality, enhance efficiency and raise core competence,
and achieve sustainable development only by the internally in-
depth technological upgrade or adjustment of product mix, or by
the externally horizontal mergers and acquisitions to realize scale
economy and enhance entry barriers, or by vertical mergers and
acquisitions to realize optimization and integration of upstream
and downstream resources.

Attributable to the advantages as the No. 1 brand in the
domestic lighting industry, the extensive and profound layout
of sales channels, as well as the comprehensive cost reduction
and efficiency improvement in internal management, the Group
made satisfactory growth in results during the Reporting
Period. In terms of channel expansion, the Group continued
to implement resolutely the full channel development model
with a focus on “commercial and home lighting” and gradually
strengthened the control and expansion of the channel, such
as continuously intensifying the 400 engineering system in the
commercial lighting sector, effectively expanding project reserves
and upgrading project conversion rate, and successfully winning
or participating in winning bids for lots of large-scale national
outdoor engineering projects. As for the home lighting sector,
the Group continued strengthening terminal retail capability and
independent design and R&D capability, thereby seizing market
shares from various market segments by applying product
differentiation strategies. During the Reporting Period, the kitchen
and bathroom electric appliance channel performed well, which
provided customers with the overall house integrated solutions
by optimizing the product mix. In addition, the Group succeeded
in entering the engineering fields, conducted strategic partnership
with numerous famous real estate developers, and finally doubled
the results. Meanwhile, the Group started to focus on the
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extensive township channel and market, and initiated the plans
of establishing exclusive outlets in towns, so as to expand the
sales channels and fill up the gap of exclusive outlets in towns.
In terms of internal quality increase and efficiency improvement,
the Group’s overall profitability was remarkably enhanced
through implementation of the four cost saving measures for
reducing R&D cost, manufacturing cost, purchasing cost and
labor cost. In addition, through integrating internal resources and
optimizing the organizational framework, the Group established
the corresponding logistics platform, customer service platform
and R&D platform system, which provided powerful back-end
guarantee for the overall and orderly operation of the Group.

Sales and distribution

As for the NVC Brand in the PRC market, the Group had
exclusive cooperation with 36 regional distributors during the
Reporting Period. These exclusive regional distributors had a
total of 3,634 exclusive outlets (100.0% coverage rate in the
provincial capital, 93.36% coverage rate in the prefecture-level
cities, 64.96% coverage rate in the county-level cities and 1.45%
coverage rate in the town centers), and 3,733 counters (these
counters were mainly located in township channels). During
the Reporting Period, the Group adopted different marketing
strategies by dividing the exclusive outlets into commercial
lighting exclusive outlets, home lighting exclusive outlets, and
commercial lighting & home lighting integrated outlets. As for
the commercial lighting sector, the Group continued focusing
on the implementation of the “400 Plan”, so as to establish
400 key engineering project distributor teams nationwide to
support the engineering projects. During the Reporting Period,
the Group made fruitful achievements in engineering projects,
and successfully won or participated in winning bids for lots of
major projects including “Beijing Sub City Center”, “Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge Zhuhai Port”, “Qingdao Municipal Lighting
Project”, “Spring Festival Gala Zhuhai Sub-Venue” and “Chengdu
Metro Line 7”, and entered into a long-term strategic partnership
agreement with Evergrande Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. to carry
out comprehensive strategic cooperation. Moreover, the Group
further reinforced the construction of invisible channels during
the Reporting Period, cooperated with 892 organizations and
gathered more than 2,500 designers to share their lighting design
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Management Discussion and Analysis

cases and concepts by sponsoring “Zhurong Award” National
Lighting Designers Competition, which effectively activated the
designer resources in different regions. As for the home lighting
sector, the Group has continued to implement the product
differentiation strategy and establish the stylistic exclusive outlets
to deeply dig out the potential various market segments. As a
result, our home lighting products have preliminarily achieved
the full-channel and all-user covered network advantages.
Meanwhile, the Group proactively promoted the innovation in
marketing models, established the “7S” customer experience
marketing system (including shop experience system, case
experience system, product experience system, service
experience system, visual experience system, participation
experience system and evaluation experience system) covering
thousands of outlets, and carried out twenty-one “7S” trainings
covering 1,016 exclusive outlets, thereby remarkably enhancing
the sales capabilities of shopping guides in these outlets.

In respect of the international NVC Brand market, continuous
efforts have been made to implement the globalization process
of NVC brand during the Reporting Period. For instance, the
Group conducted further channel expansion, independently
created demands and successfully carried out various
engineering projects in matured channels like UK. While the
Middle East office started to operate during the Reporting
Period, which enhanced understanding and control of the local
market and dug out product demands and market potential,
thereby providing market and technical support for distributors
in the Middle East region. During the Reporting Period, the
Group successfully won the bid for key engineering projects
such as “Beverly Hills in Qatar”, “Al Ghurai Apartment Complex
in Dubai”, “University of Kuwait”, etc. Meanwhile, the Group
organized various brand marketing activities, such as major
client recommendation event in Middle East, product show in
Qatar and Kuwait, opening ceremony of new exclusive outlets in
Kuwait, which have won favorable reputation. As for Southeast
Asia and other developing channels, the Group paid attention to
strengthening development of new customers and advancing the
progress of engineering projects. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has successfully developed distributorship resources
in Indonesia, Brunei and Italy, and successfully participated in the
first “Belt and Road Initiative Coal-fired Power Plant” and “NVC
Full Solutions for Diamond Twin Tower Project” in Vietham and
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Cambodia respectively. Meanwhile, the Group started to make
preparations for establishing the “Belt and Road Initiative” Project
Team so as to occupy more project resources alongside the One
Belt One Road. However, sales contributions in some regions
were limited as the Group just started operation there. During the
Reporting Period, some engineering projects were not delivered
on schedule, leading to the decrease in the international sales
turnover of the NVC Brand as compared to the Corresponding
Period.

As for the non-NVC Brand in the PRC and international market,
the Group mainly supplied the well-known lighting enterprises
with energy-saving lamps, energy-saving light tubes and other
accessories in the form of ODM. During the Reporting Period, the
Group specialized in serving major clients in North America and
Europe, and continuously strengthened input of market resources
to develop new clients. By virtue of the favorable opportunities
arising from LED lighting products that gradually dominated the
market, the Group gradually promoted the LED lighting products
to enter the sales channels of major clients by utilizing the cost,
technology and scale strengths, thus increasing the percentage
of LED lighting products in sales. During the Reporting Period,
the sales revenue of non-NVC brand products increased by
12.4% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Product research, development and design

The Group endeavored to improve the comprehensive
competitiveness of products mainly by R&D of new products and
cost optimization and reduction. During the Reporting Period,
the Group established a quick response mechanism, which was
oriented on the market demands, and successfully developed
160 indoor products and specialized products for outdoor
engineering, including key product series such as “Cezanne
Hotel Spot Luminaries (Z& 4B /& & /&)”, “Vi-domi Spot Luminaries
(MK TI2EE)”, “Lingke Series ($B&E &%), “Lingshi Series (%8
B %7%l))”, and “Gaosi Series (@H1£7%!)”. The Group improved
the outdoor engineering products and successfully applied
to outdoor engineering projects such as “Qingdao Municipal
Lighting Project”, “Zhuhai Night Scene Lighting Project” and
“Bangbu Olympic Sports Center”, and accumulated strong
delivery capability of engineering products. Under the initial
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framework of the smart lighting control system, the Group
completed the development of the new track system 1.0 during
the Reporting Period. As for cost optimization, the Group
continued to promote the platform orientation, standardization,
modularization and series reform of the products, optimized
the power configuration platform, and improved the flickering
phenomenon. As a result, some products become flickering
free. Meanwhile, the Group promoted the upgrade of light
source platform, and obviously enhanced lighting effect of the
products. In addition, the continual optimization of the LED912
spot luminaries automation project made the production capacity
increase by 15% as compared with the Corresponding Period,
and lead to sharp shrinkage of labor cost. In addition, the Group
filed 303 new patent applications during the Reporting Period
and together the Group had 233 successful patent application
cases.

Brand promotion and honor

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued implementing
the core brand concept of “Expert in Luminous Environment”,
and devoted to creating the No. 1 brand of the lighting solution
service providers in the era of Internet. During the Reporting
Period, the Group with the brand value of RMB20.685 billion was
elected by the World Brand Lab as one of the “14th China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” again and remained the No.1 brand in the
lighting industry for 6 consecutive years, reflecting the Group’s
powerful brand strength and influence. During the selection
of the Twelfth China Lighting Award held in September 2017,
the Group’s “G20 Hangzhou Qianjiang Century City Lighting
Project” won the “First Prize of China Lighting Award” with its
amazing design and prominent overall lighting solution capability.
Meanwhile, the Group was also honored as “Leading Brand
of the Industry” of the 2017 China lighting industry, “Top 30
Enterprises for LED Technological Innovation in China” and “2016
Top 100 Enterprises of LED Lighting Industry in China”, which
fully reflected the highly social recognition of NVC brand, and
further enhanced our brand reputation. In addition, the Group
further promoted the globalization process of the brand by
means of advertising, media reporting and sponsoring the FINA
Diving World Series, and the influence of NVC brand among the
public was gradually deepening by carrying out activities such as
“Zhurong Award” China Lighting Application Design Competition,
interview of the Group’s President by the CCTV Dialogue TV
programme.
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Progress of Litigation

Since December 2014, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”) initiated a series of court proceedings in the PRC
against Mr. WU Changjiang, a former director and the former
chief executive officer of the Company, and other persons
in relation to a number of alleged pledges and guarantees
entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang purportedly on behalf of the
Subsidiary, and certain counter-guarantees provided by a PRC
company. During the Reporting Period, the Subsidiary was also
a co-defendant in three PRC court actions commenced by two
PRC banks and a finance company, respectively, in relation to
several alleged pledges and guarantees purportedly entered
into by Mr. WU Changjiang. Please refer to the Company’s 2016
annual report and 2017 interim report for details.

In relation to one of the aforementioned court actions
commenced by a PRC bank against the Subsidiary as a
co-defendant, certain funds held by the Subsidiary had been
frozen by such PRC bank. In April 2016, Chongaging Fifth
Intermediate People’s Court issued a judgment, which, among
other things, ordered that the Subsidiary was jointly liable with
another PRC company for the payment of RMB60,000,000,
plus interest and costs, to such PRC bank. The Company filed
an appeal against such judgment with the Chongging Higher
People’s Court. In early 2017, the Company received the
judgment of the Chongging Higher People’s Court which rejected
the Subsidiary’s appeal and upheld the first instance judgment.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 February
2017 for details. The Subsidiary subsequently filed an application
of retrial of the relevant PRC court judgments (please refer to
the Company’s 2017 interim report) but its application was
rejected by the Chongaqing Higher People’s Court. The Subsidiary
has recently filed an application of protest with the Chongging
People’s Procuratorate to overturn the relevant judgments
and for a retrial of this matter. The outcome of the protest
application, according to the official legal documents received
by the Subsidiary, is pending as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.
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In relation to one of the aforementioned court actions
commenced by another PRC bank to Chongging First
Intermediate People’s Court which alleges, among others, that
the eight individuals/institutions (the “Eight Guarantors”) including
the Subsidiary should be jointly and severally liable as Guarantors
for the debt of RMB35,497,000, plus interest, as owed by
Chongaing En Wei Xi Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (“En Wei
Xi”) to the Bank. The Company received a judgment from the
Chongaing First Intermediate People’s Court in September 2016,
which held, among other things, that the Eight Guarantors,
including the Subsidiary, were jointly and severally liable with
En Wei Xi for the payment of RMB35,497,000, plus interest
and costs, to such PRC bank. The Subsidiary filed an appeal
against such judgment with the Chongging Higher People’s
Court. In June 2017, the Company received the judgment of the
Chongging Higher People’s Court which rejected the Subsidiary’s
appeal and upheld the first instance judgment. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2017 for more
information. The Subsidiary subsequently filed an application
of retrial of the relevant PRC court judgments. The outcome of
the retrial application, according to the official legal documents
received by the Subsidiary, is pending as of the date of approval
of these financial statements.

In relation to the aforementioned court action commenced by the
finance company in the Chongqging First Intermediate People’s
Court, it was claimed that Mr. WU Changjiang, the Subsidiary
and two other entities should be jointly and severally liable as
guarantors for the debt of RMB34,000,000, plus interest, as
owed by Ms. WU Lian to the finance company pursuant to
several alleged agreements. The Company received a judgment
from the Chongqing First Intermediate People’s Court in October
2016, which, among other things, ordered that the guarantors,
including the Subsidiary, were jointly and severally liable with Ms.
WU Lian for the payment of RMB34,000,000 plus interest and
costs, to the finance company. The Subsidiary filed an appeal
against the judgment with the Chongging Higher People’s Court.
In September 2017, the Company received the judgment of the
Chongging Higher People’s Court which rejected the Subsidiary’s
appeal and upheld the first instance judgment. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 September 2017 for a
more information. The Subsidiary is in the process of applying for
a protest of the relevant PRC court judgments.
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The Group’s Main Products

The Group focuses on developing creative R&D capability,
providing professional and optimized LED lighting solutions, and
aim to promote the national energy-saving, emission-reduction
scheme and enhance green lighting industry forward to more
sustainable, healthy and well-regulated growth. The revenue from
LED lighting products account for more than 78% of the Group’s
total revenue.

The Group’s product can be divided into three segments: lamp
products, luminaire products and lighting electronic products.
The luminaire products mainly designed for 2 applications:
commercial lighting luminaire products and home lighting
luminaire products. Main product of commercial lighting include:
downlights, ceiling lights, spotlights, panel lights, batten lights,
flood lights, wall lights, garden lights, bollard, in-ground lights,
underwater lights, street lights, tunnel lights and emergency
lights series, which can be widely used in the large conference
halls, hotels, supermarkets, offices, landed properties, roads and
airports etc. Main product of home lighting include: aluminum
lights, candle lights, wrought iron lights, flat-panel low-voltage
lights, brass lights, Acrylic lights, kitchen and bathroom series
etc, which can be widely used in the living room, dining room,
bed room, children’s room, kitchen, bathroom, balcony and many
other indoor applications.

1. Luminaire Product Segment:

rEEFTEEM

AREBEHNRITERIFETEREN B
EFRHERNLEDIRASE KA B(LER
RITE - NEEB KRG BR
REeRARREX[EM - HEELEDR
PREXRFE @F BAF0%E- B
LEDMRBAE mEV M A RSB A HE W
ABI78% °

AEENERS RAEAREM BEE
m RAESRER=-ADE HPEE
EmXRERESETRAD SEERAE
AERNRERABRAEER - EFBEE
RATEERREREEE - XEE - 5
&R TR BRE - BRE - ER
B EFE - BE - KTE - BRE
BBE N B RSB R EMR  TBH
ERGMERAINKEES  EE &
B -REFE HE - B B5EF
FERATEZEERREEREME - §
& HBE - PIREEE - 28 - 5
ROEMBHERTRIEMR  BRET
B £B ME REE BH Be
FZEERNERSH -

—REERD :

Samples of Main Products of Commercial Lighting Luminaire:

B ERAAE AT 2E MRS

B

Downlights Series

[BrcESd

Ceiling Light Series
RIERE Z 75
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BETRPERBRDF

Multiple Light Series
FEAM ST 8 2 5]



Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR =R EC R

Samples of Main Products of Commercial Lighting Luminaire:

BERARATIZER R

Track Light Series
BB ST R

Underwater Light Series

KBRS

Bollard Series
EIE R

Flood Light Series
BRI E ZT

w

\ /

Garden Light Series
FEBT1E Z 5]

Wall Light Series
BE & 227
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Batten Light Series Panel Light Series Street Light Series
XRET| x-S B 25|

Tunnel Light Series In-ground Light Series Emergency Light Series 1
BRIBE 37 3 5 2 5| HP = FR T —

Emergency Light Series 2
SHE &R =
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Samples of Main Products of Home Lighting Luminaire:
XERPBEETEERRA :

Aluminum Light Series Flat-panel I_Scaw-voltage Candle Light Series
B B RT Light Series 918 %
ok FARIE B 21 el

Brass Light Series Wrought Iron Light Series Acrylic Light Series
ExTlCES]l BE G ZT TRNEET

Ventilator Series Bath Heater Series Integrated Ceiling Light Series
BRE R AERT SR BIRRT
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2. Lamp Product Segment:

-
_—
- -
i
gy N
' @ : Spiral Energy-saving
Bulb Lamp Series Candle Lamp Series
B CESTl 181815 55

Lamp Series

R RERE R T

U-shaped Energy-saving

S-shaped Energy-saving
Lamp Tube Series Lamp Tube Series
UZBLE B IE B &5 SEUENRE R & 27
3.

Lighting Electronic Products Segment:

American Standard

European Standard
LED Drive Series LED Drive Series Electronic Ballast Series
EELEDERE B IR A5 BUZLEDERS)E R 51 ETERERT

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
ETRPERBRD R



Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting
Period, the revenue of the Group increased by 6.7% from the
Corresponding Period to RMB4,063,163,000. In particular, the
LED lighting products recorded revenue of RMB3,165,613,000
with an increase of 17.4% from the Corresponding Period.

Revenue by product segments
The table below sets forth the revenue by product segments

(luminaire, lamp and lighting electronic products) and the growth
rate of each segment.

SRR =R EC R

5 % 121 B
HEWA

HERAEBCEEYHNERERE &
?DB%L ST FRE - RBEFE
CAEERBHEBRARARE
4,063,163¥rc £ [F HA 18 K6.7% -
HAFLEDRBEERESHEKRAARK
3,165,613F 7T * A HIIERA17.4% o

BEG D BEA YA
TRUSIREROM (BR KRN
P EE) BI5 B A B AR -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE

2017 2016  Growth rate
20174 20164 R =

RMB’000 RMB’000

TARYE TAR
Luminaire products P& B i 2,882,289 2,644,430 9.0%
Lamp products YR EE 917,645 942,142 (2.6%)
Lighting electronic products AR RAE 25 o 263,229 219,757 19.8%
Total AEF 4,063,163 3,806,329 6.7%

During the Reporting Period, the sales of luminaire products
increased by 9.0%, which was mainly benefited from the
successful transformation of the dual-channel development
model of “commercial and home lighting”, as well as the
stable growth in the sales of commercial and home luminaire
products of the Group. The sales of lamp products decreased
by 2.6%, which was mainly attributed to the gradual shrinkage
of market size and the decline in both sales volumes and
prices of the traditional lamp products. The sales of lighting
electronic products grew by 19.8%, mainly benefited from the
Group’s increase in development of and investment of market
resources in non-NVC brand LED lighting electronic products
and the stable increase of sales orders from major international
customers for non-NVC brand LED lighting electronic products
during the Reporting Period.

RBEEFERN BREAERHEEEER
9.0% FTEEaENAEEBERAM
EN=REE %/Eﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁ_tﬂ’]ﬁwiﬁ'l
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%k“ﬂ&%%ﬁﬁ%k’*ﬂ?uuﬁﬁ’%
RERET : HRERHEE T[#2.6%
ERBRNERNRERTISTER S 1
N HERERFEEEME  RAE
FREEmiH B K£19.8% @ &L KT EEEA
BEFENLEBMAIEE L RIELE
RAEREmMMAZELMHEREA - I
ZMEIREFPMNIFE L mELEDIRAE
EREmmIHE R ERLEM

%

12,8

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWmED AT

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and

non-NVC brand sales

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the
growth rate of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily

consist of ODM products.

BMENERE T i EEHE L mEH
B8 7 1R A

TRV ERE T mEERM
FELTmEEMIIDNHERAREER
BHIERE - RANFELmEERE
2 HODMEE mAHRK °

Years ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEEE

2017 2016  Growth rate
201745 20164F iR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Sales revenue from PRC REFEEEKRA
NVC brand EL g 2,543,813 2,316,747 9.8%
Non-NVC brand JFEL W 266,481 313,080 (14.9%)
Subtotal /NEf 2,810,294 2,629,827 6.9%
Sales revenue from international KEBMRHEE WA
market
NVC brand E LM 280,852 387,859 (27.6%)
Non-NVC brand JEELME 972,017 788,643 23.3%
Subtotal IEF 1,252,869 1,176,502 6.5%
Total A 4,063,163 3,806,329 6.7%

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Revenue by LED lighting products and non-LED lighting
products

The table below sets forth our revenue from LED lighting
products and non-LED lighting products and the growth rate of

SRR =R EC R

HLEDSR 89 & i M FLEDSR 85 & im 57 58
&7

™R & 71 LEDAR FA 2= a0 F1 JELEDHR AR
ERETHBRARSHEENERR -

each item.
Years ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2017 2016  Growth rate
20174 20164 ERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARK
LED lighting products LEDARERE f 3,165,613 2,696,868 17.4%
Non-LED lighting products JELEDRRRR = fh 897,550 1,109,461 (19.1%)
Total & 4,063,163 3,806,329 6.7%

During the Reporting Period, the sales of LED lighting products
increased by 17.4%, and the sales of non-LED lighting products
decreased by 19.1%, mainly because the Group grasped the
favorable opportunity in the rising consumer demands and
market penetration of the LED lighting industry, and successfully
seized the market share of LED lighting products by continuously
strengthening the R&D of new LED lighting products, expansion
of marketing channels and input of market resources; as affected
by the fierce competition of LED lighting products, the sales of
traditional lighting products shrank, the both of which took on a
trading-off trend.

R|EFEAN - LEDIRAE @& 18
’17.4% - JELEDR A E M35 & T B
19.1% ' T2 XS EFLEDRAATT
XHEHEBEFTRKEMBE2EEXE LANE K
B 0 BIBFHE INSRLEDAR AR 3 o 25 -
REHRERMBEREA  KIEHA
LEDREAEmM 5D &R ¢ M X LEDAREA
EmMBRFTE  BREHEMM
EEMH  MEZRWHBR RS -
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials,
outsourced manufacturing costs, direct and indirect labor costs
and indirect costs. Major raw materials of the Group include
iron, aluminum and alloys, fluorescent powder, glass tubes,
electronics components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced
manufacturing costs primarily include the cost of purchased
semi-finished products and finished products produced by other
manufacturers and used in the production of our products.
Indirect costs primarily include water, electricity, depreciation
and amortisation and others. The table below sets forth the
composition of our cost of sales:

SHERA

HERANEZBERMEIRA « IME
ERA - BEEMEES TRAREEZER
A AKRBENETEZREMEBESE - 8K
e EhH - BHE  BFLHIHEMN
RLEDHEGAFZE - INBEEKRAETE
PREBEMREREEDN - ARRM
Y R A EE RO A AR DA A SR B9 B AR o
HEEBRAKAETEREK B TEM
B AR EAM o TRIREEKAMNAE
X

Years ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2017
20174
Percentage in

2016
20164
Percentage in

RMB’000 revenue (%) RMB’000 revenue (%)

L ON PN

FTARY e 51(%) FARK L6 151(%)

Raw materials [E MR 2,003,602 49.3% 1,907,153 50.1%
Outsourced manufacturing costs HNEL A EE AR 530,346 13.0% 508,702 13.4%
Labor costs BT R AN 254,050 6.3% 275,305 7.2%
Indirect costs EikZE=¢;5] 102,307 2.5% 94,211 2.5%
Total S5l 2,890,305 71.1% 2,785,371 73.2%

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage to
revenue decreased from 73.2% to 71.1%, the gross profit margin
increased from 26.8% to 28.9%, mainly benefited from, on the
one hand, the adjustment of operating price of some products,
and on the other hand, the positive effect resulting from the four
cost saving measures for reducing R&D cost, purchasing cost,
manufacturing cost and labor cost continuously implemented
by the Group, including strengthening technological upgrade,
structural optimization and improvement of process flow of the
products, adopting public procurement and tendering, dealing
with inactive stocks timely, implementing “Amoeba” operating
model and enhancing lean production management, etc., which
have significantly controlled the costs and improved the overall
gross profit margin level.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less
cost of sales.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit from sales was
RMB1,172,858,000, representing an increase of 14.9% as
compared with the Corresponding Period; gross profit margin of
sales increased from 26.8% to 28.9%.The gross profit and gross
profit margin by segments are as follows:

(i) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit
margin by product segments (luminaire, lamp and lighting
electronic products):

SRR =R EC R

ERNRENZR

EMEHERABEHEK AR EF
B

RBEFERN HEEZTFNABAREK
1,172,858F Jr - H [A B bt & K
14.9% + 8§ & £ F X {#26.8%HA =
28.9% ° N HWHEF REF KR
s ¢

(i) TRENWNSERD I (BE - X
RABRAERS) WEFFMEFE

Years ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 (%)  RMB’000 (%)
TFARHK (%) TARK (%)
Luminaire products & B E 993,378 34.5% 817,517 30.9%
Lamp products IR EE A 114,519 12.5% 152,193 16.2%
Lighting electronic products  HREA B 22 & 64,961 24.7% 51,248 23.3%
Total A5 1,172,858 28.9% 1,020,958 26.8%

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin
of luminaire products increased from 30.9% to 34.5%,
mainly benefited from the positive effect resulting from
the four cost saving measures for reducing R&D cost,
purchasing cost, manufacturing cost and labor cost
continuously implemented by the Group, as well as the
increase in operating price of some luminaire products.
The gross profit margin of lamp products decreased from
16.2% to 12.5%, mainly because on the one hand more
favourable price discounts were offered to major clients in
order to stabilise the order resources of the international
market; and on the other hand, the traditional lamp
products suffered from decline in both sales volumes

RBEFERN - BAEREMNEX
#30.9% +FFH E345% £ ER
REBIFEHEITHOREREKAE
IR A - BERKARAL
Be B S S5 PO K P& A AN 18 E B 1S 1B
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EEMRES: XRERERNE
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BmZiEERMETEERP
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and prices as affected by the competition with LED lamp
products, thereby leading to the decrease in overall
gross profit margin of lamp products. The gross profit
margin of lighting electronic products increased from
23.3% to 24.7%, mainly attributed to the favorable effect
resulting from the launch of new LED lighting electronic
products with high gross profit margin into the market,
the comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, and the impact from the exchange fluctuation.

The table below shows the gross profit and gross
profit margin by geographical locations and NVC brand
products and non-NVC brand products:

(i)

BLIREMEMETE : mEA
EREMEMNEN23.3% LAZE
24.7% - TER S EHNEHLED
REAERT RIS ILERGER
HHR UERAEEHETHZE
PEAEERER RSN E -

TRSIRA R SR R B
RETRIBLRENERRE
FIE

Years ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 (%)  RMB’000 (%)
TARE (%) TARE® (%)
Gross profit from FEHEEEEN
PRC sales: EF :
NVC brand ELTmiE 924,100 36.3% 745,727 32.2%
Non-NVC brand FEELTmE 49,443 18.6% 58,579 18.7%
Subtotal NEF 973,543 34.6% 804,306 30.6%
Gross profit from BIFRSHEEER
international sales: EF :
NVC brand E LM 59,023 21.0% 78,376 20.2%
Non-NVC brand JEEL R 140,292 14.4% 138,276 17.5%
Subtotal NEF 199,315 15.9% 216,652 18.4%
Total = 1,172,858 28.9% 1,020,958 26.8%

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin
from PRC sales increased from 30.6% to 34.6%, mainly
benefited from the favorable results resulting from the
comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, the increase in operating price of some products
and the impact of changes in product mix. The gross
profit margin from international sales decreased from
18.4% to 15.9%, mainly attributed to the more favourable
price discounts offered in order to stabilise the order
share of major clients at the international market, as well
as the decline in the gross profit margin of a subsidiary
of the Group that operated on the international market as
affected by local exchange fluctuation.

The table below sets forth the gross profit and gross profit
margins of LED lighting products and non-LED lighting
products:

(i)

RFEFERN - FREEELEN
E F & #£30.6%_t F+ F134.6% °
FEBERAEENZAEMBK A
SIS EBRAR BoERE
BEERAUREREREHNY
2 MEREEEENERN XK
18.4% N £ 2|15.9% * £ B & R
EFEANAEEREBTERBE TS
FERFHIIBENEMATES
MERER  UERAEE—XRE
HEEMISEENHB AR E
PE R ENBUE EFETE o

T & # JILEDR B & & A & 3F
LEDRRBHE m ) EF REHM =

Years ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2017 2016
20175 20164

RMB’000 (%)  RMB’000 (%)

FARY (%) TFAR® (%)

LED lighting products LEDIRRRE f 994,832 31.4% 788,901 29.3%

Non-LED lighting products  FFLEDERBAE 178,026 19.8% 232,057 20.9%

Total gross profit FEES 1,172,858 28.9% 1,020,958 26.8%
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Other income and gains

Our other income and gains mainly consist of rental income,
gain on sales of scrap materials, fair value gain of derivative
component of convertible bonds, gain arising from waiver of
other payables, government grants and interest income (the
breakdown of other income and gains is provided in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 284 to 285 of
this annual report). We received various types of government
grants in the form of tax subsidies and incentives for research
and development activities and expansion of production capacity
of energy-saving lamp. Government subsidies are provided by
relevant authorities at their discretion, and may not be recurring
in nature. During the Reporting Period, other income and gains
increased significantly to RMB127,604,000 as compared with the
Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to the effect from
the fair value gain of derivative component of convertible bonds
and the gain arising from waiver of other payables during the
Reporting Period.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and other
expenses. Others include office expenses, custom clearance
expenses, travelling expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
insurance fees and other miscellaneous.

During the Reporting Period, our selling and distribution costs
were RMB401,923,000, representing an increase of 11.7% as
compared with the Corresponding Period. The increase was
mainly attributed to the increase in staff costs and freight costs
compared with the Corresponding Period. Our selling and
distribution costs as a percentage in revenue increased from
9.5% to 9.9%.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs,
amortisation and depreciation, research and development
expenses, office expenses and other expenses including
tax expenses, audit fees, other professional fees and other
miscellaneous expenses. These taxes mainly include land use tax
and stamp duty in connection with our administrative functions.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BETRPERBRDF
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During the Reporting Period, our administrative expenses
were RMB356,895,000, representing a decrease of 13.5% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
due to the decrease of staff costs, other professional fees and
impairment loss as compared with the Corresponding Period.
Our administrative expenses as a percentage in revenue
decreased from 10.8% to 8.8%.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly consist of losses on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and scrap, fair value change of
held-for-trading investments, net exchange losses, donation and
other miscellaneous expenses.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interests on bank loans, interest
expenses on convertible bonds and other interest expenses.

Share of results of associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net
losses in the associates during the Reporting Period.

Income tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expense
amounted to RMB104,256,000.

Profit for the year (including profit attributable to
non-controlling interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our net profit for the year
(including profit attributable to non-controlling interests) was
RMB331,600,000 during the Reporting Period.

SRR =R EC R

RBEFEAN - RANELERRFS
TF£13.5% © & A R #356,895F 7T °
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Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

During the Reporting Period, our exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations were RMB2,136,000. These
exchange differences primarily arose from the translation of
the financial statements of the Company and the overseas
subsidiaries which are denominated in foreign currencies.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year

Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners
of the parent was RMB314,268,000 during the Reporting Period.
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests for the

year

During the Reporting Period, profit attributable to non-controlling
interests was RMB17,332,000.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BETRPERBRDF

BMEBMIEBELENELEZRE

RBEFERN - RPWBREBINRTE
EMERZER/ARKE2136T T It
EXEZRERRUIINEFTENARE R
BN B A R TS IR VIR B A -

BRREE ARGHARFERE
HREEREZ  RBEFEAN > H§QF
BB ARMGOFNESARE314,268T
JC °

FEIR MR R B AL BV AN F R

RIEFENRN - FFFEHIMEEZS B A F)
HAARYA7,332F T °



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEmE DT

Cash Flow and Liquidity RERERREME

Cash flow BERE

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our TREINRHEMOEHBEERERTE
consolidated statement of cash flows. BHESREEE -

31 December

12A31H
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

TARY TARK

Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMESRE
MBI 493,774 743,483
Net cash flows used in investing activities "EEEMARS
mEFEE (543,709) (782,101)
Net cash flows from financing activities BREEBMSHEE
ME AR 171,308 251,968
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEY
¥ hnF R 121,373 213,350
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#IR& K& EEY 1,160,155 917,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXREFEFE T (15,939) 28,852
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REHRERERF 2
consolidated statement of cash flows MRS NIREEEY 1,265,589 1,160,155
Cash and bank balances classified as P REBEEFEEEN
assets held for sale RekBFeEEY - =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REHIBIRRERF 275
consolidated statement of financial position MRS MRS EEY 1,265,589 1,160,155
At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances REAREFER - NEENRE RIRTT
of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB, HK$, GBP, BRL ERETZEUARYE - Bx BEE BEFE
and US$. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, EOEREETHE ARBTAIEHRE
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control BAEMER - Af - BEFBEAHA
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment CONE BIRIEM ) K (4ETE - EIE M FE
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to BEAE) AEEEEBRBEREE
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to ITHNEXBHRITIEARE LR A EAM
conduct foreign exchange business. B o
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Liquidity
Net current assets and working capital sufficiency

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and
net current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period.

BN
FROEEREELETH A EM

TREIINBEFERORBDEE - R
BRELFRBDEE -

31 December

128311
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARK
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories TE 425,384 401,668
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R EBEWIRR 1,092,554 1,218,003
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR REESRK
H Al FE W BR X 397,213 343,115
Income tax recoverable AR TS 11,741 4,596
Other current assets HMREEE 41,512 25,303
Held-for-trading investments THMEREE 88,786 -
Restricted bank balances and ZRREIHIRITEE R
short-term deposits ySREL R 314,422 445,424
Cash and cash equivalents RENRREEEY 1,265,589 1,160,155
Total current assets RENEE /NG 3,637,201 3,598,264
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables B REBREMNER 820,833 750,036
Other payables and accruals Hi R TEIRE 728,749 749,975
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings FEERKRER 24,940 48,411
Government grants I I #66 B 2,012 2,026
Income tax payable FEBFTIS TN 34,071 24,951
Convertible bonds — derivative component AR E S
— PTHET ARG 11,933 60,230
Convertible bonds — liability component AR ES
— BEF 421,229 -
Total current liabilities REE B/ 2,043,767 1,635,629
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 1,598,434 1,962,635

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, net current
assets of the Group amounted to RMB1,5983,434,000 and
RMB1,962,635,000, respectively, and the current ratio was 1.78
and 2.20, respectively. In light of our current liquidity position,
the unutilised banking facilities available to the Group and our
projected cash flows generated from operations, the Directors
believe that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital management

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the

Reporting Period.

SRR =R EC R

2017912 H31 B 120165124318 -
AEBNIRBEELAEIIAAR
#1,593,434F 7T A K #1,962,635F
=5
TP B RTER B AR - NEBERTT
MARFEAMNEEARERBHALSEME
EWMRE  EERRBMEBREHE

B R 5 Bl A&1.78F12.20 « R

BESKREMBAIRARKI2EANER
= o
EXEHE

TREINBEFERNEARRLL

31 December

12H831H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFTAR% FARE
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5t B E R M E R K&
and convertible bonds — liability AR ES — aEsHm
component 446,169 488,683
Total debt BBE T 446,169 488,683
Less: cash and cash equivalents and il : IRE KB L EB M REHTER
short-term deposits (excluding (F0Br Z PR FISR1T1F70)
restricted bank balance) (1,580,011) (1,550,183)
Net debt FERS N/A N/A
~EA i A
Total equity attributable to owners of  BFA T A AFE(G KRS
the parent 3,242,052 2,703,481
Gearing ratio BARABGBHE N/A N/A
TEA TiE A
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The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the
stability and growth of our financial position. We regularly review
and manage our capital structure and make corresponding
adjustments, after taking into consideration changes in economic
conditions, our future capital requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.
We manage our capital by monitoring our gearing ratio (which is
calculated as net debt divided by the total equity attributable to
owners of the parent). Net debt is the balance of interest-bearing
loans and convertible bonds - liability component less cash and
cash equivalents and short-term deposits (excluding restricted
bank balances).

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of
raw materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the
end of the Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a
regular basis. For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover
of average inventories (in days) (average inventories equal to
the inventories at the beginning of the year plus inventories at
the end of the year (after provision), divided by two. Turnover of
average inventories (in days) equals to the average inventories
divided by the cost of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 52.2
days, while it was 58.8 days in 2016.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements on page 322 of this annual
report.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit periods generally
range from 30 to 180 days for major customers. Each major
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivables balance. Overdue interests of several trade
receivables are calculated at an annual interest rate of 12%.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover of average trade
and bills receivables (in days) (average trade and bills receivables
equal to the trade and bills receivables at the beginning of
the year plus trade and bills receivables at the end of the year
(before provision), divided by two. Turnover of average trade and
bills receivables (in days) equals to the average trade and bills
receivables divided by revenue and then multiplied by 365) was
118.4 days, while it was 129.4 days in 2016.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 323
to 326 of this annual report.

Trade and bills payables

During the year ended 31 December 2017, turnover of average
trade and bills payables (in days) (average trade and bills
payables equal to trade and bills payables at the beginning of
the year plus trade and bills payables at the end of the year,
divided by two. Turnover of average trade and bills payables (in
days) equals to average trade and bills payables divided by cost
of sales and then multiplied by 365) was 99.2 days, while it was
89.2 days in 2016.

SRR =R EC R

ESREBERRZ

AEBENE S RWESIERBEEYHE
WEWFBHRE AEBEEF2BE
ERBEARS  BEHMEFP—MRTER
RSt FERPHERABER—BITR
S0OKREI1BORTE - BN FERFPHR
ExmEARE AEESRKBERE
BREWIBER RS  WE gy —
&z A EEZEHBPIAKERRRREZE &
K- aRERABTEREZaAHER -
ER LB RARAERE S EWERERE
REFHEFPEH  ERRRBRNEFE
Wi e ARBWEREE HEUER
B A E R A EE s G AR -
A TEZRKERNE B ERFEHE
12%5TE o

B E2017F12A31B L FE  FH B
SRERRUERBEXRE (FHES
REBREKERERFVEIREIRE
WERNMEFRE S R EEEWERER
(FBREERT) BRIAZ - THEBH RER
ERERBERAEREHEHRER
JIE U BR TR AR A - SR 1% R LAS65) A
118.4K » M2016F A&129.4K °

BRE SN EEERERAFAIBE RS
2BARFEREFEI2ZEEFEI20HMA
HE B RERMIFE21 -

EZRELBEMERS

HZE2017F12A31B L FEE - FHE
SREBEMNERBEXE (FHES
REBRENERERFEVEIRERE
MERMEFRE 5 R EERAERERE
IRZ - FHEGREBEMNEFREX
HFENTFHE S REBE KRR AH
ERA - R 18 T A365) H99.2K ©
20165 &89.2K °
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More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 334
to 335 of this annual report.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

More details about the interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
provided in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 337 of this annual report.

Convertible bonds

More details about the convertible bonds are provided in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements on page 393 to page
396 of this annual report.

Capital expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from
operations and bank loans, and cash generated from issue of
shares or convertible bonds. Our capital expenditure is primarily
related to expenditure on property, plant and equipment, and
other intangible assets. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to RMB75,713,000, mainly
attributable to the increase in machinery equipment, moulds,
non-productive equipment and intangible assets.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

Except for the derivative component of Convertible Bonds
mentioned in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 393 to 396 of this annual report, we did not have any
outstanding derivative financial instruments or off-balance sheet
guarantees for outstanding loans. We did not engage in trading
activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Capital Commitments
The details of capital commitments are referred to in note 37 to

the consolidated financial statements on page 357 of this annual
report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Merger, Acquisition and Investment

On 21 April 2017, the Company formed the Guoyuan China
Growth Investment Fund LP (the “Limited Partnership”) with
Guoyuan Asset Management (Asia) Limited (as the general
partner) by the contribution of USD30,000,000. The Limited
Partnership intends to invest in (including but not limited to)
shares of private companies related to emerging industries
such as the lighting, energy saving, environmentally friendly
industries or private equity funds. Through the Limited
Partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting, energy
saving, environmentally friendly industries and achieving
economies of scale and synergies. This can also enhance the
Company’s ability to grow organically through the effective use of
resources which will save capital expenditure and optimise cash
management, thus improving the overall competitiveness of the
Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
21 April 2017 for more information. During the Reporting Period,
the limited partnership has not yet commenced its external
investment.

On 7 June 2017, Huizhou NVC, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has entered into a purchase agreement with
Zhuhai Ruiheng Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor”), pursuant
to which Huizhou NVC has agreed to acquire, and the Vendor
has agreed to sell, certain properties at a cash consideration of
RMB345,000,000. The Group intends to use the office buildings,
business exhibition rooms and car parking spaces comprised in
such properties for office purposes. The Group intends to use
such properties as the office for key businesses of the Group
such as household lighting business upon the completion of the
acquisition. The Board considers that the acquisition of such
properties will meet the Group’s rapid business development
demand, achieve rental savings and enable effective appreciation
of the assets of the Group. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 7 June 2017 for more information.

SRR =R EC R
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On 12 June 2017, the Board announced that it has resolved
to acquire shares of ETIC (the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002005) to the
amount of no more than RMB110,000,000 on market before
31 December 2017 with the acquisition price of no more
than RMB5.45 per share of ETIC. Assuming a purchase price
of RMB5.45 per share of ETIC, it is estimated that the total
number of shares of ETIC to be acquired by the Company will
be approximately 20,183,486 shares, representing 1.45% of the
total issued shares of ETIC on 12 June 2017.

Immediately prior to the above acquisition of shares of ETIC,
Mr. WANG Donglei indirectly held 20.94% of the total issued
shares of ETIC and was a substantial shareholder of ETIC. Mr.
WANG Donglei is also the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company. Although the Company
shall acquire shares of ETIC on market from the public, such
acquisition was regarded as a connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.28 of the Listing Rules.

ETIC is an important business partner of the Company in its
industrial chain. The strategic investment in ETIC will enhance
the Company’s strategic cooperation relationship with ETIC.
ETIC is focusing on the production and sale of small household
appliances and LED products in the PRC. With a positive outlook
on the LED products market and the future performance of ETIC,
the Company believes that such share acquisition presents a
valuable investment opportunity for the Group to capture the
potential growth of ETIC, which will bring benefits to the Group.
The Company also considers that the current stock price of ETIC
is also at a reasonable standard and of investment value. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 12 June 2017.

On 30 October 2017, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, proposed to invest RMB10,000,000
to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary Zhuhai NVC Logistics
Co., Ltd* ZREME W RBRAA]) (“NVC Logistics”). NVC
Logistics is principally engaged in providing transportation and
warehousing services etc. As at the date of this annual report,
the registered capital of NVC Logistics has not been fully paid.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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On 14 December 2017, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, contributed RMB9,000,000 to establish
a subsidiary, Zhuhai NVC Youpin Industrial Co., Ltd* (Bk/&5E L&
mEZEAR AT (“NVC Youpin”), 90% equity interest of which is
held by Huizhou NVC. NVC Youpin is principally engaged in the
production and sale of lamp products, luminaire products and
lighting electronic products etc.

Save as disclosed in the above, the Group made no material
acquisition, merger or sale of subsidiaries and associates during
the Reporting Period.

Other Significant Investment and Performance

Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, signed
a partnership agreement with the general partner to establish
a limited partnership. Through the establishment of the limited
partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting industry and
achieving economies of scale and synergies. For more details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 May
2016. During the Reporting Period, the limited partnership has
not yet commenced its external investment.

As mentioned in the announcement of the Company dated 23
May 2016, the Board has approved the Company to establish
an investment fund in form of a limited partnership to engage
in investment in the distributors of the Company. The expected
source of fund for the investment will be the fund generated from
the daily operations and financing of the Company. During the
Reporting Period, the investment has not yet been carried out.
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Contingent Liabilities

(@)

As at 31 December 2017, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were
as follows:

HERE

(@)

HZE2017F12A83181E » ARE
HHEBRRTIRBEOXAEE
N

31 December

12A31H
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARE
Alleged guarantees given to banks and EEBE T T
a finance company in connection with NS N
facilities granted to: BEEM4&4 TRITR
— XY RBIMER
Two PRC companies and Ms. WU Lian, MfE R B AR R R
an individual 2t (ARIAL) 131,497 131,497

The Group acted as defendant in lawsuits brought by
two PRC banks and a PRC finance company alleging
that the Group should assume guarantee liabilities and
interests according to alleged guarantee agreements
entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang (the Company’s former
CEO) purportedly on behalf of a subsidiary of the Group.
The Directors consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining further losses from the guarantees is remote,
and accordingly no provision for claims arising from the
litigations is considered necessary as at 31 December
2016 and 2017, save for the related legal and other
costs. Based on the respective court judgments, interests
are imposed on the principal amounts as disclosed in
(@) above, which are calculated on (i) principal amount
of approximately RMB62,000,000 at 9.9% per annum
plus compound interest at 9.9% per annum on unpaid
interest since 21 October 2014; (ii) principal amount of
approximately RMB34,000,000 at four times of six-month
borrowing rate of the People’s Bank of China since 8
October 2015; and (iii) principal amount of approximately
RMB35,497,000 at 0.05% per day since 4 January 2015.
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Pledge of Assets

Save for those disclosed in other parts of this annual report, at

the end of the Reporting Period, certain assets of the Group

were pledged as follows:

(1)

As at 31 December 2017, certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of RMB46,995,000 (31
December 2016: RMB48,314,000) and certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying amounts of RMB238,747,000 (31 December
2016: RMB242,510,000) and RMB43,797,000 (31
December 2016: RMB43,108,000) were pledged for the
Group’s applications of assets preservation in certain PRC
legal proceedings and bank borrowings respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, certain trade receivables with
carrying amounts of RMB24,004,000 (31 December
2016: RMB47,347,000) were pledged to secure the bank
borrowings.

In accordance with several letters of guarantee, deposits
with carrying amounts of RMB101,525,000 (31 December
2016: RMB34,533,000) were pledged for issuing letters of
guarantee.

The amount represented deposits with carrying amounts
of RMB27,561,000 (31 December 2016: RMB26,501,000)
pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.
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Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course
of business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the
adverse effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign currency risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises
from sales or procurement by an operating unit in currencies
other than its functional currency. As a result, we are exposed
to fluctuations in the exchange rate between the functional
currencies and foreign currencies. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had entered into several forward exchange contracts
in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency
exchange rates.

Commodity price risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
which are influenced by global changes as well as regional
supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw
materials could adversely affect our financial performance. We
did not enter into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential commodity price changes.

Liquidity risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by considering
the maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is
to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility of funding
through the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
Our Directors have reviewed our working capital and capital
expenditure requirements and determined that we have no
significant liquidity risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Credit risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial
number of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables from debtors. We have policies in place to ensure
that the sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit limit, and we have strict control over credit
limits of trade receivables. Our cash and short-term deposits
are mainly deposited with registered banks in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. We also have policies that limit our credit risk
exposure to any financial institutions. The carrying amounts
of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits included
in the consolidated statement of financial position represent
our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial
assets. We have no other financial assets which carry significant
exposure to credit risk. In 2017, we entered into a number
of one-year insurance contracts with China Export & Credit
Insurance Corporation, which covered 90% uncollectible
receivables from international sales between the period from
1 December 2017 to 30 November 2018 with a maximum
compensation amount of US$35,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB228,697,000). We purchased such insurance
in order to minimise our exposure to credit risk as we expand
our business. We plan to renew such insurance contracts when
they become due. For domestic sales, the insurance contracts
with China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation were due on
30 November 2017, and would not be renewed. In respect of
the exposure to domestic credit risk, it's expected that we will
take the approach of requiring the customers to provide relevant
physical collateral since 2018 to cover the credit risk arising from
domestic sales.

Employees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 6,441
employees in total (31 December 2016: 6,238). The Group
regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees
according to the relevant market practice and individual
performance of the employees. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, and
discretionary incentive and share option schemes.

SRR =R EC R

1= AEkR

ZMNEFEEARRKRENREBABNK
EESREERBER  RESREM
JEWBRTR - BRIE R L BURERE @ L
ETEEEGRBENRR - BRME
BIEHIE S EKERRAERREE - B
MRS MEBREREEFTRFBEKRER
BEREMRT - BMTBREIZER
FRcrREERNERRBRIE - &0t5
BRRARFNE S EEBREBERR - R
B MEMERRZFOERRE - He M
REEEYNRBERRR T AEEH
fEeREENZANERRR - HfE
EEMEEEACERRBHCMEE -
20174 » BHMEFRL OERARRBRAF
RAIVAET —FHREBAR - EEARES
BEA - BER2017F12 818 =20184F
11 A30R B /Y8 SN EH & FE I BR KT
AIEREENI0% @ BREEN RS
B &% /35,000FET (FIEHARK
228,697 F ) - ZHMEE LilRIEE A
T &R ARIZERREK PIEREBAE RS
EARR - ZAFTEIN B B &SR
BRERIER - MEtEBEANEE - BAE
EEERARRBAANRERERER2017
F11A30B 8 - BRMTBER - B
5T B 20184 Fita ¥ A B A {5 A & it O
5 BRPBRREREFIREEEE
VIERNAR  ABEBRNEEMES
B R

=]

M2017F12A318 * REBHBRE T A
H#96,4414% (2016512 A31H : 6,238
AN AEEBETHRBEBATSEN R
ErEEMXIBEZEEFTMRER -
BRENERFESIN  BEOEZXEME
FeEteRn BIAEESTE B
1B 2R & B AR A et & -

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Directors and Senior Management

ESKkESHEERE

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Donglei (£45), aged 54, is an
Executive Director, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in January
2013. He has many years of experience
in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management.
In 1996, Mr. WANG participated in the
founding of Zhuhai China Resources
Electric Co., Ltd* GRBEBHERER A
A]) (which was subsequently renamed as
Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd. (B {=
SHETRBMABRAF]) and the shares
of which were listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in China in 2004) and
served as the chairman and the general
manager. Since 2001, he has been
serving as the chairman and a director of
ETIC. At present, Mr. WANG also holds
positions in various subsidiaries of Elec-
Tech International Group which include: the
chairman of Zhuhai Hansheng Precision
Machinery Co., Ltd.* BREHEBZHERE
[R A A]), the chairman of Appliance Co. of
America (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.* (Jb==TE 2 (I
#8) AR A7), the chairman of Elec-Tech
(Hong Kong) Optoelectronic Technology
Co., Ltd.* (Bx (HFE) LBEREARLA),
executive director of 3E Semiconductor
(Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* (ZFE (Z&#) &2
f2 A 7l), executive director of Elec-Tech
(Dalian) Investment Co., Ltd.* (& = (X
#) % & A R 2 A7), director of Zhuhai
Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* &k &
EmxHEEERBMRAA), director of ETI-
LED Solutions Japan Co. Ltd, director of
Elec-Tech US Inc., director of ETIl Solid
State Lighting Inc. and director of ETI
LED Solutions Inc.. Mr. WANG graduated
from China Dalian Institute of Technology
(subsequently renamed as Dalian University
of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. Mr. WANG Donglei is the elder
brother of Mr. WANG Dongming and Mr.
WANG Sheng, and the father of Mr. WANG
Keven Dun.
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Mr. WANG holds 90% equity interest in
Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (%
i iE xR E AR A Al); Wuhu Elec-Tech
Investment Co., Ltd.* FEHEZIEEFRA
A]) in turn holds 16.57% of the shares of
ETIC. ETIC held 24.30% of the total issued
shares of the Company as of 31 December
2017.

Mr. WANG Dongming (E%88), aged 47,
is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in June
2013. Mr. WANG has more than 19 years’
of experience in electrical and finance
industry, and has many years of experience
in manufacturing, finance and business
management. He was the vice finance
manager of China Infrastructure Materials
Corporation* (B EZ ¥ & £ 2 7)) and
the general manager of its Shenzhen
subsidiary, respectively, from 1992 to 2000.
From 2000 to 2013, Mr. WANG acted
as an executive director, a vice general
manager, the chief financial officer of
ETIC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China, and
the general manager of lighting division
of ETIC. Mr. WANG is currently a director
of NVC Lighting & Electrical Technology
Singapore Pte. Ltd. Mr. WANG graduated
from Shaanxi Institute of Finance and
Economics (BRPEEF & E8T) with a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting in 1992.
Mr. WANG Dongming is the younger
brother of Mr. WANG Donglei and Mr.
WANG Sheng, and the uncle of Mr. WANG
Keven Dun.
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Mr. XIAO Yu (B ), aged 58, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. XIAO
joined the Group in May 2014 as a Non-
executive Director and re-designated as
an Executive Director in August 2014.
Mr. XIAO graduated from Dalian Institute
of Technology (later renamed as Dalian
University of Technology) with a bachelor’s
degree in 1985 and also graduated
with an EMBA’s degree from School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua
University in 2008. He holds the engineer’s
qualification certificate. From July 1986
to June 1996, Mr. XIAO worked in Beijing
Beinei Group* (3t m= dt A & E) as the
deputy chief coordinator and the party
secretary of the Communist Party of China
of the Central Coordination Office, during
which he was awarded the titles of Beijing
Model Worker and Beijing Excellent Young
Intellectual. He was the chairman and
general manager of Westar (Zhongshan)
Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd* (BHTZEESR (P I) REBR R F),
a subsidiary of Elec-Tech International
Group from July 1996 to August 2004,
was the deputy general manager of the
Elec-Tech International Group and the
chairman of Westar (Zhongshan) Electrical
Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (&
HEEH(P L) HEFRQAF) from
September 2004 to February 2008, and
was senior vice president of ETIC from
March 2012 to December 2014. From May
2008 to the present, he has successively
served as the consultant to the president
of Elec-Tech International Group, the
chairman and general manager of Elec-
Tech Photoelectric Technology (Dalian)
Co., Ltd* (RERBZ KB AR R A)
and the general manager of Elec-Tech
Photoelectric Technology (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.*
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ENEEE BRI AR AR, Currently,
Mr. XIAO works in different subsidiaries of
Elec-Tech International Group as: a director
of Zhuhai East Yingcheng Precision Die-
casting Co., Ltd.* /8™ R IBE A B E
B i B BR A 7]), a director of Appliance
of America (Zhuhai) Limited* (It & & 2%
(% %8) AR 2 7)), an executive director
of Elec-Tech Photoelectric Technology
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEEZHKERFER
A2 A]) and an executive director of Leitong
Photoelectric Device (Huizhou) Co., Ltd.*
FEIMNEBRERZMH AR QE). M. XIAO
has extensive experience in production
management. He once served as a senior
officer in companies listed in Mainland
China for several years and therefore has
in-depth knowledge and understanding
on corporate governance and corporate
management.

Mr. WANG Keven Dun (E18), aged 25, is
an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in December
2016. Mr. WANG has been the analyst in
Compass Lexecon LLC. from August 2014
to December 2016. Mr. WANG obtained
a bachelor degree in Economics and
Molecular and Cell Biology from University
of California, Berkeley in 2014. Mr. WANG
WANG
Donglei, the chairman and chief executive

Keven Dun is the son of Mr.

officer of the Company, and the nephew
of Mr. WANG Sheng, vice president of
procurement logistics system of the
Company, and Mr. WANG Dongming, the
Executive Director of the Company.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Huating (% =), aged 55, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr.
LI joined the Group in December 2016.
From September 1985 to May 1996, Mr.
LI worked in China Resources National
Corporation; from June 1996 to August
2001, he successively served as the
director and the general manager of
Zhuhai China Resources Electric Co., Ltd.,
and concurrently served as the general
manager of Zhuhai Hansheng Precision
Machinery Co., Ltd.; from August 2001
to now, he has served as the director of
ETIC (the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
002005); from August 2014 to now, he has
served as the deputy chairman and the
general manager of ETIC. Mr. LI obtained a
bachelor degree in engineering from Dalian
University of Technology in 1985.

Mr. LI Wei (Z5&), aged 47, is a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. LI joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. LI graduated
from Department of Economics, Renmin
University of China in June 1995 with a
Master’s degree in economics. He is a
certified public accountant in China and a
sponsor representative approved by China
Securities Regulatory Commission. From
June 2006 to July 2008, Mr. LI was the
general manager of the headquarter of
investment banking division of Shenyin &
Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (ERERE
HRMBRATR). From July 2008 to the
present, he is the managing director of the
headquarter of investment banking division
of China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (F
A F KD AR LQA). Mr. LI has
many years’ of experience in investment
banking services of financial institutions
and profound knowledge on domestic and
overseas economies and capital market.
His long involvement in investment banking
business has enabled him to acquire
insightful understanding and extensive
experience in corporate development
strategies, corporate governance and
financial management.
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Ms. YANG Jianwen (15 X), aged 39, was
a Non-executive Director of the Company.
Ms. YANG joined the Company in June
2016. Ms. YANG joined SAIF (Beijing)
Advisors Ltd. (“SAIF”, which is an affiliated
company of SB Asia Investment Fund Il
L.P., the substantial shareholder of the
Company) in 2007 and is currently an
Executive Director of SAIF. Prior to joining
SAIF, Ms.YANG was a Consultant in
Mercer Management Consulting Beijing
office from 2003 to 2005, providing
strategic insights and tailored solutions
to help clients achieve sustainable result.
Mercer Management Consulting is now
renamed as Oliver Wyman, a leading global
management consulting firm under Marsh &
McLennan Companies Inc. (NYSE: MMC).
From 2001 to 2003, Ms. YANG, served as
an auditor in KPMG Beijing office providing
audit service to multinational corporations
Ms. YANG
graduated from Renmin University of China

and Chinese companies.

with a bachelor’'s degree in Economics
in 2001 and from the Wharton School,
University of Pennsylvania, with a Master’s
degree of Business Administration in 2007.

Ms. YANG has resigned as a Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from
22 March 2018.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (Z#747), aged
63, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. LEE joined
the Company in November 2012. He
received a bachelor of arts degree from
Kingston University (formerly known as
Kingston Polytechnic) in London and
further obtained his postgraduate diploma
in business from Curtin University of
Technology in Australia. Mr. LEE served
as a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for
over 29 years, until 2009, during which
he held key leadership positions in the
development of EY in China. Mr. LEE is
a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,
the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Australia and New Zealand, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. LEE
currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director of the following
companies: Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, West China Cement Limited, China
Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GOME Retail
Holdings Limited, Tibet Water Resources
Ltd., Yashili International Holdings Ltd.,
GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, WH
Group Limited, China Rundong Auto Group
Limited (all shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange)
and Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the
shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). He acted as
an independent non-executive director of
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
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Limited (the shares of which are listed on
main board of the Stock Exchange) from
October 2009 to August 2013 and also
acted as a non-executive director and vice
chairman of Merry Garden Holdings Limited
(now known as China Environmental
Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited) (the shares of which are listed on
the main board of Stock Exchange) from
July 2014 to September 2015. He was
an independent non-executive director of
CITIC Securities Company Limited (the
shares of which are listed on main board
of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) from November 2011 to
May 2016. Mr. LEE was a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Hunan Province (T B #iE4&
E %% 8) in China from 2008 to 2017.

Mr. WANG Xuexian (T &), aged 54, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WANG joined the Company
in May 2014. Mr. WANG graduated from
Renmin University of China with a Master’s
degree in Civil Laws in January 1990. He
is a lawyer in China, and his qualification
for serving as an independent director has
been approved by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. From January 1990 to the
present, he has worked as an assistant
professor and lecturer in Dalian University
of Technology. He currently serves as a
deputy professor of Dalian University of
Technology, a lawyer of Heng Xin Law
Office* (EEBEAEMEMFAT in Liaoning,
and an independent director of ETIC (the
shares of which are listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange of China, stock code:
002005) and Yantai Zhaojin Lifu Precious
Metals Co., Ltd* (E=EREEEESBRHA
BRAF]). Mr. WANG is also an arbitrator
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EENSHREEE

of the Dalian Arbitration Commission. Mr.
WANG has extensive experience in law
studies, teaching and the work of lawyers,
once served as an independent director
of several listed or unlisted companies
in the Mainland China, and has in-depth
knowledge and understanding on domestic
and overseas laws, corporate management
and corporate governance.

Mr. WEI Hongxiong (Z27:1), aged 44, is
an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. WEI joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. WEI graduated
from Xi’an Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. WEI
is currently a full-time lawyer of China
Commercial Law Firm in Guangdong* (&
HEFEAMEHF and a law expert of
the Expert Pool of the Shenzhen Nanshan
Science and Technology Commission.
He is a statistician and patent agent
in China. Mr. Wei also obtained the
qualification of an independent director of
a listed company of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission on February
23, 2017. In 1998, he started to work in
the Shantou Haojiang Development and
Reform Bureau, mainly engaging in the
planning and studies of economic and
social development, and the feasibility
studies and approval of major projects.
From 2006 to the present, he has worked
as a full-time lawyer. Mr. WEI once served
as a deputy director of the Legal Services
Commission of the Cultural Industry of the
Shenzhen Lawyers Association. Mr. WEI is
mainly engaged in corporate establishment
and regulatory governance, restructuring
and reorganization, issuance and listing
of shares, acquisitions and mergers,
private equity, intellectual property rights
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and other law services. He once served
as a long-term legal advisor of many
enterprises, had/has been dealing with and
participating in the restructuring and listing
of many enterprises (A shares, red chips)
and special law services such as those for
the construction of major projects. He has
many years’ of experience in the provision
of law services such as those for corporate
governance, securities and capital market
and intellectual property rights.

Mr. SU Ling (8%28), aged 583, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. SU joined the Company in December
2016. From 1986 to 1990, he worked as
an officer in the former Bureau of Drugs
of the Ministry of Health; from 1992 to
1993, he served as a visiting scientist
in the Center for Drug Evaluation and
Research of the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration; from 1996 to 1999, he
served as a researcher in epidemiology of
the Merck Research Laboratories of Merck
& Co Inc.; from 2000 to 2002, he served
as the medical director of the Merck China;
from January 2003 to November 2003,
he served as the senior director of global
regulatory strategy of the Merck Research
Laboratories of Merck & Co Inc.; from
2004 to 2007, he served as the director
of the medical and drug development
department in Shanghai Roche
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.; from 2007 to
2010, he served as the vice president
and the head of the Asia-Pacific clinical
research and development department
in Wyeth Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.; from
2010 to 2012, he served as the senior
vice president and head of the Pharma
Development Department in Greater China
in Beijing Novartis Pharmaceuticals Co.,
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Ltd.; from 2012 to 2016, he served as
the life science strategic advisor in Sidley
Austin LLP; from 2016 to present, he
has been a venture partner of Lily Asia
Ventures, the professor and the director of
Institute of the Drug Regulatory Science in
Shenyang Pharmaceutical University. Mr.
SU graduated from School of Pharmacy,
Shanghai Medical University (currently
known as School of Pharmacy, Fudan
University) majoring in pharmacology in
1986, obtained a master’s degree in drug
clinical research and development from
University of North Carolina in 1992 and
obtained a doctoral degree in epidemiology
from University of North Carolina in 1996.

Senior Management

Mr. WANG Donglei (E4%), aged 54, is
the chief executive officer of the Company.
His biographical details are set out above
under the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors”.

Mr. XIAO Yu (B =), aged 58, is the vice-
president in charge of the components
system of the Company. His biographical
details are set out above under the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.
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Mr. ZHANG Peng (&M85), aged 45, is the
president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
joined the Group in June 2016. Mr. ZHANG
has about 20 years experience of sales,
brand operations and management. Mr.
ZHANG served as General Manager of
Beijing Industry and Trade in Haier Group
from 2003 to 2004. From 2004 to 2008,
he was the Director of Global Brand
Operations of Haier Group. From 2008
to 2016, he was the General Manager of
RRS (HHIJE) of Haier Group. Mr. ZHANG
graduated from Qingdao University in
1996 with a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the
Graduate School of Shanghai Jiaotong
University in 2014,

Mr. WANG Sheng (£ &), aged 51, is a vice
president of procurement logistics system
of the Company. Mr. WANG has over
20 years’ of experience in procurement
management. Before joining the Group in
2014, Mr. WANG has taken up the posts
of deputy general manager, vice president
and vice chairman at ETIC from 1996
to 2014. In 2004, Mr. WANG obtained a
master’s degree in Business Management
from Zhongshan University. Mr. WANG
Sheng is Mr. WANG Donglei’s younger
brother and Mr. WANG Dongming’s elder
brother, and Mr. WANG Keven Dun’s uncle.
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EENSHREEE

Mr. TAN Ying (FRJE), aged 51, is the chief
financial officer and vice-president of
overseas marketing company of the
Company. Before joining the Group in
2006, Mr. TAN was the financial accountant
in Goodman Fielder Ingredients Limited
from 1999 to 2000 and the financial
director in Shenzhen New World Sunlong
Tech Co., Ltd.* (& Il 7t 57 2 B8 49 48
fir & B A 7)) and Shenzhen Sun Long
Communication Co., Ltd.* (F3ImMBEm
AR AT from 2000 to 2006. Mr. TAN
received an MBA degree from University
of Manchester in 2007. He is a fellow
member of the Financial Service Institute of
Australia.

Mr. HONG Xiaosong (#tBE#2), aged 50, is
a vice-president of Research and
Development Department of the Company.
Mr. HONG served as the manager of
Shenzhen Golden Decorative Lighting
Corp. Ltd.* (Z ¥l & & /& £ & &) from
1995 to 2000. He was the deputy
general manager of Shenzhen Golden
Lighting Engineering Corp. Ltd.* (®3Il&
f8 B3 T 2 2 7)) from 2000 to 2004 and
Shenzhen Jinyueliang Lighting Technology
Co., Ltd.* (RIYITH & 17 = IR BT A R
A |l) from 2004 to 2007, respectively.
After joining the Group in 2007, Mr.
HONG successfully developed various
kinds of lightings specifically designed
for the Olympic Games, which paved
the way for our products to be used
in the Olympic Games. Mr. HONG is a
qualified national registered senior lighting
designer and a senior member of China
llluminating Engineering Society. He has
been committed to the development and
promotion of new type energy-saving
lamp products since 2004. He is one of
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Directors and Senior Management

the pioneers engaged in the promotion
of LED engineering application in China
and has obtained various patents for
product technologies. Mr. HONG obtained
a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacturing from Chongging University
in 1989 and also received an EMBA degree
from China Europe International Business
School in 2015.

Mr. XU Jin, aged 46, is the vice president
of the Household Product Business
Department of the Company. Mr. XU joined
the Group in May 2015. He has about
22 years of experience in marketing and
management. He acted as the channel
manager and the division general manager
of AVON Products (China) from 1996 to
2004. He served as the national marketing
director of Danone Group from 2004 to
2011. He acted as the general manager of
OPPLE Lighting in East China from 2011
to 2015. He has successively acted as the
general manager of household product
sales, the general manager of the Home
Lighting Business Department and the vice
president of the Group since 2015. Mr. XU
graduated from Western Sydney University
and holds a bachelor degree in law and a
MBA degree.

Mr. WANG Qingbo, aged 42, is the vice
president of the Commercial Lighting
Business Department of the Company.
Mr. WANG joined the Group in June 2015.
Mr. WANG has 18 years of experience
in finance and management. Mr. WANG
acted as chief financial officer of household
electric appliance in Midea Group Co., Ltd.
from 2002 to 2012. He worked as chief
financial officer of the Logistics Business
Department of Midea Group Co., Ltd.
from 2013 to 2014. He acted as the vice
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ESKkESHEERE

president of finance in Guangdong Xinbang
Logistics Co., Ltd.* (ERFHWTER A F)
from 2014 to 2015. Mr. WANG graduated
from Zhongnan University of Economics
(later renamed as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law) in 1999 and holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy.

Mr. LIU Qijiang, aged 42, is the deputy
general manager of the Strategic Center
of the Company. He joined the Company
in July 2017. Before joining the Group in
2017, Mr. LIU successively served as a
human resource specialist and manager in
Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. from 1997
to 2005. He acted as the vice president
of human resources in China Hasan
International Holdings Co., Ltd.* (FFEI/&LL
B BR # & 12 AR B BR A F]) from 2008 to 2012.
He acted as the assistant to chairman and
the director of human resources in Huafu
Industrial Co., Ltd.* FEREERHERA
Al) from 2012 to 2015. He worked as the
vice president of human resources and
operation in Hebei Jichi Investment Group
Co., Ltd. after 2015. Mr. LIU obtained a
master’'s degree from Tongji University in
2008. He has many years of experience in
enterprise operation and human resource
management.
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Joint Company Secretaries

Ms. LO Yee Har, Susan (E# &), aged 59,
was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 24 March 2010. Ms. LO is
an Executive Director of Tricor Services
Limited and a fellow member of both
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She
has over 30 years’ of experience in
corporate advisory services. Prior to joining
Tricor Services Limited, Ms. LO served
as a director of the company secretarial
department of Tengis Limited (now known
Ms. LO has
provided various secretarial and corporate

as “Tricor Tengis Limited”).
services to many listed companies.

Miss LEUNG Ching Ching (& &), aged
37, was appointed as a joint company
secretary on 1 April 2014. Miss LEUNG is
a manager of corporate services of Tricor
Services Limited. Miss LEUNG has over 10
years’ of experience in company secretarial
industry, and provided services to clients
ranging from private companies to public
companies listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Other than the Company,
Miss LEUNG is currently also named
company secretary to three other listed
companies of which the shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Miss LEUNG is a Chartered Secretary
and an Associate of both The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.
Miss LEUNG graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and admitted to
the bachelor’'s degree of Social Science.
She also received a master of arts degree
in Professional Accounting and Information
System from City University of Hong Kong.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
(“Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to
the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability. The Group’s operations
are conducted mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries
of the Company. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
development, production, marketing and sale of a variety of
lighting products including three principal product categories,
namely, luminaire products, lamp products and lighting
electronics products. During the Reporting Period, there is no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The analysis
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of the consolidated financial statements on page 199.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 199 to 404 of this
annual report.

The Board proposed to declare final dividend of HK1 cent
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.8 cent) per share payable
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 11 June 2018, which
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
(“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“Annual General Meeting”). Based on the 3,581,805,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2017, it is expected that the final
dividend payable will amount to approximately HK$35,818,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB29,940,000) (tax inclusive).
Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend is expected to be paid to the
eligible Shareholders by no later than 31 July 2018.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on 4 June 2018. A notice convening the Annual General
Meeting will be published and dispatched to Shareholders in due
course.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 30
May 2018 to Monday, 4 June 2018 (both days inclusive) and
from Friday, 8 June 2018 to Monday, 11 June 2018 (both days
inclusive), during which periods no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29
May 2018. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend
(subject to the approval by Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting), all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the abovementioned address for registration
before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 7 June 2018.

Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period
of the Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors
facing the Group are set forth in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 16 to 51 of this annual report. The
future business development of the Group are set forth in the
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 10 to 15 of this annual report.
The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set forth in the “Financial Highlights” on pages 6 to 7
of this annual report.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations
affecting the operation of the Group significantly.

Relationship with Stakeholders

As confirmed by the Group, our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development.
The Group is committed to the establishment of close
relationship with our employees and the provision of application
solutions for our clients’ premium lighting, and strengthens the
cooperation with our business cooperative partners so as to
attain the win-win outcome for various parties, and push ahead
with the healthy and rapid development of the lighting industry.

Environmental Protection and Social
Responsibility

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable
environmental protection. As the leading supplier for lighting
products, the Group shall comply with various environmental
protection laws and regulations formulated by the relevant
government department. The Group is the advocate pioneer
for green lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting
Environment”: to beautify the commercial and living space
with artificial lighting, protect the healthy living environment for
mankind with energy-saving lighting for environmental protection,
and support the energy-saving environmental protection
business for the PRC and even the whole world with action
taken. Meanwhile, the Group has proactively performed its social
responsibilities such as having advocated and pushed forward
with the public welfare project of “luminosity charity walk” for
a decade since 2007 with the footprints of charity covering
over ten provincial cities to take lighting and warmth to the
local children by means of improving the lighting environment,
supporting education with love, fulfilling their wishes and so on.
The Group will go further to continue to carry out the enterprise
social responsibilities as a means of feedback to our society.
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Issue of New Shares under General Mandate

On 2 June 2017, the Company and Rising Wealth Limited, Lead
Investment Limited, Mr. YE Yong, Mr. FENG Chuntian and Ms.
Z0U Xiaoyang (being the subscribers) entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the subscribers conditionally
agreed to subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to
allot and issue in aggregate a total of 368,357,000 subscription
shares.The subscription price of HK$0.80 per subscription share
represents a discount of approximately 8.05% to the closing
price of HK$0.87 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
2 June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement; and
a discount of approximately 8.05% to the average of the closing
prices of approximately HK$0.87 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange for the last five trading days immediately before
2 June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement.
The subscription shares represent approximately 11.46% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the subscription agreement and approximately 10.28% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares. According to the
par value of US$0.0000001 each share, the nominal value of the
subscription shares is US$36.84 (equivalent to approximately
HK$286.62).

The Directors have considered various ways of raising additional
funds for future use and they consider that the issue of the
subscription shares is an appropriate means of raising additional
capital for the Company since the shareholder base of the
Company will be enlarged, the capital base of the Company
can be broadened at a relatively low cost compared to bank
borrowings or the issue of debt securities, and the financial
position of the Group will be improved for establishing and
strengthening the existing and future business of the Group. The
Board considers that the terms of the subscription agreements
mentioned above are on normal commercial terms and are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. As at the date of this annual report, all
the net proceeds had been used for general corporate (including
purchasing office, supporting facilities and exhibition hall).
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The gross proceeds of this subscription amounts to
approximately HK$294,686,000. After deducting the relevant
expenses, the net proceeds from the issue of the subscription
shares amount to approximately HK$294,000,000. The net price
for each subscription share is approximately HK$0.798. For more
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
4 June 2017.This subscription was completed on 13 June 2017.

On 27 June 2017, the Company and Rising Wealth Limited (being
the subscriber) entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant
to which the subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe and
the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue in aggregate
a total of 257,330,000 subscription shares. The subscription
price of HK$0.80 per subscription share represents a discount
of approximately 2.44% to the closing price of HK$0.82 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 27 June 2017,
being the date of the subscription agreement; and a discount
of approximately 7.19% to the average of the closing prices
of approximately HK$0.862 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the last five trading days immediately before 27
June 2017, being the date of the subscription agreement. The
subscription shares represent approximately 7.18% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the subscription
agreement and approximately 6.70% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the subscribed shares. According to the par value of
US$0.0000001 each share, the nominal value of the subscription
shares is US$25.73 (equivalent to approximately HK$200.67).
For more details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 June 2017. This subscription was terminated
on 27 December 2017. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the company dated 27 December 2017.
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Convertible Bonds

On 20 May 2016, for the purpose of raising additional capital
for general corporate and business development and working
capital requirements, the Company and an independent third
party entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) in relation to the issue of convertible bonds
denominated in HK$ in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$500,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible
Bonds have been issued on 7 June 2016.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Convertible Bonds
are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares:

(a) on or after the issue date (i.e. 7 June 2016) and up to and
excluding the close of business on the second anniversary
of the issue date (the “First Maturity Date”), i.e. June
2018, at an initial conversion price of HK$0.925 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments); and

(b) with extension up to and excluding the close of business
on the fourth anniversary of the issue date if agreed by
the Company and the bondholder in writing at least 30
days prior to the First Maturity Date (the “Second Maturity
Date”).

Based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.925, a maximum
number of 540,540,540 conversion shares will be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the Conversion Rights attached to the
Convertible Bonds in full.
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The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 7.8% per
annum on the principal amount of the bonds outstanding.
The interest will be payable by the Company semi-annually in
arrears. The outstanding amount of the Convertible Bonds will be
redeemed on maturity (the date falling on the First Maturity Date
or the Second Maturity Date where applicable) at a value equal
to the aggregate of (1) its principal amount outstanding; and (2)
the interest accrued.

The Convertible Bonds that contain both liability and conversion
option components were classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. The embedded derivative
of conversion option is therefore accounted for as a derivative.
The fair values of the derivative component are determined
based on the valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial option
pricing model. Changes in fair value of that component between
the measurement dates are recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of the liability component is measured as the present value
of the expected payments and principal repayment at maturity
on initial recognition and is carried as a liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

During the Reporting Period, no convertible bonds have been
converted into shares of the Company.
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The movements of the liability component and derivative RMEFE  ABERESHNEGEIHD &
component of the Convertible Bonds during the Reporting Period A

are as follows:

Liability Derivative

component component

of Convertible ~ of Convertible

Bonds Bonds
TRRESN  TRRESH Total
afEHe  TEIARG CHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR® TAR®
Issued Convertible Bonds BEETIARES 416,493 10,841 427,334

Effective interest expenses RERXBANERFES T
recognised to profit or loss 22,321 - 22,321
Interest paid 2AF8 (17,936) - (17,936)
Fair value change NREEE - 46,889 46,889
Exchange realignment INEFE 19,394 2,500 21,894
31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 2016124318 %2017F1 /18 440,272 60,230 500,502
Effective interest expenses RERXRBANERFES T

recognised to profit or loss 40,262 - 40,262
Interest paid BAF 8 (33,664) - (33,664)
Fair value change AREBRE - (46,228) (46,228)
Exchange realignment HINEE 2 (25,641) (2,069) (27,710)
At 31 December 2017 20174124318 421,229 11,933 433,162
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The major inputs for the valuation of the fair value of the
derivative component of Convertible Bonds as at 31 December
2016 and 2017 are shown as follows:

R2016%F12 4318 K 12017412531
AAMRESITETABO AR EBER
ENEZRHABRIIRAT -

31 December

12A31H
2017 2016
20175 20164F
Share price Rz (B HK$0.770 HK$0.990
0.770% 7T 0.990/& 7T
Conversion price HAR(E HK$0.925 HK$0.925
0.925% 7T 0.9257 7T
Risk-free rate 4 3 g 1) = 1.018% 1.002%
Volatility I8 37.01% 28.00%

Equity-linked Agreement

Apart from the Share Option Scheme of the Group set forth on
pages 86 to 91 and the Convertible Bonds of the Group set
forth on pages 73 to 76 of this annual report, the Group neither
entered into nor had any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each
director is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and
profits of the Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages, expenses or liabilities incurred due to the execution
of his/her duties or taken place related to such execution. The
Company has taken out the appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for the directors and officers of the
Group as a means of security.
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Use of Net Proceeds Received from the Initial
Public Offering

On 20 May 2010, net proceeds received from the initial public
offering, including the exercise of Over-allotment Option, after
deducting related expenses, were approximately HK$1.467
billion. Out of which, as at 31 December 2017, approximately
HK$367 million was used for capital expenditure, approximately
HK$367 million was used for the continual implementation of
our branding strategies and enhancement of our sales network,
approximately HK$147 million was used for enhancing our
research and development efforts, approximately HK$439 million
was used for our expansion plans, both in the PRC and the
international markets and approximately HK$147 million was
used for working capital and other general corporate purposes.

Financial Highlights

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five reporting periods is set out
on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings and the Convertible
Bonds are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 337 and note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 393 to 396 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions, Potential Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, the Group did not grant any
loans to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to
its associates or make any guarantee for the facilities granted to
its associates.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for
the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 300 to 302 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting
Period are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 339 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 343 to 345 and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 203 to
204 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB1,703,229,000, of which
RMB29,940,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
Reporting Period.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules for the Reporting Period and at any
time prior to the date of this annual report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s Articles of Association or applicable laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated.
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Tax Allowances

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances
granted to the Company’s shareholders due to their interests in
its securities.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

WANG Donglei appointed on 11 January 2013
and re-designated as
an Executive Director
on 2 February 2015
WANG Dongming appointed on 21 June 2013
XIAO Yu appointed on 29 May 2014
and re-designated as
an Executive Director
on 8 August 2014
WANG Keven Dun appointed on 12 December 2016

Non-executive Directors

LI Wei appointed on 29 May 2014
LI Huating appointed on 12 December 2016
YANG Jianwen appointed on 15 June 2016

and resigned on 22 March 2018
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Independent Non-executive Directors

appointed on 28 November 2012
appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 29 May 2014
appointed on 19 December 2016

LEE Kong Wai, Conway
WANG Xuexian

WEI Hongxiong

SU Ling

Ms. YANG Jianwen resigned as a Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee and a member of Independent
Investigations Committee in order to devote more time to pursue
her other business commitments with effect from 22 March 2018.
Ms. YANG Jianwen has confirmed that she has no disagreement
with the Board and there is no other matter in relation to her
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

Directors’
Biographies

and Senior Management’s

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 52 to 67 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out
in the section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors”
in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 115 to 116 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for the Acquisition, the Renewed Trademark Licensing
Agreement, the Renewed Framework Finished Products and Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement, the New ETIC Sales Agreement,
the Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement and the Sales Framework Agreement as disclosed
below, no Director nor an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company’s holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during or at the
end of the Reporting Period.
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Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr.
WANG Xuexian, Mr. WEI Hongxiong and Mr. SU Ling, the annual
confirmation letter of their respective independence pursuant to
Rule 3.183 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that the
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent from
their respective date of appointment to 31 December 2017 and
remain independent as of the date of this annual report.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
or Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of the Model Code.

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following shareholders
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) had
5% or more interests or short positions in the issued shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:
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Name of shareholder

KR&®

Nature of Interests

BimtE

Class of shares

griEpil

Number of shares or
underlying shares

gl )G G

Percentage of

the total
issued shares
EERTRA
BENEAL

Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited
ExBEER (B8) ARAA

ETIC

exEE

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.

Haitong International Securities
Group Limited

Andrew Y. YAN

Cisco System, Inc.

SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.

SAIF Il GP, L.P.

BLRAZERARDE

Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

TRBRRAAEH M ZEN R

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

TERRAEH AR ER

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

T RBRAAEH A AE A R

Beneficial owner

EafAA

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

TRRRAEH RN R

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

TRBRAEH A ZEN R

Beneficial owner

ExfAA

Interest of corporation controlled
by the substantial shareholders

TRRRAEHE AR B

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED

Ordinary shares

gl

Ordinary shares

ERK

Ordinary shares
EFEL

Ordinary shares

EER
Ordinary shares
¥l
Ordinary shares

ERK

Ordinary shares

ERK

Ordinary shares

gl

Ordinary shares

ERK

870,346,000 (L) (Note 1)
(1)

870,346,000 (L) (Note 2)
(K7:22)

845,746,000 (L) (Note 3)
(#15#3)

845,746,000 (L) (Note 3)
(Hi#3)

92,974,000 (L)

599,123,000 (L) (Note 4)
(Hit4)

588,223,000 (L) (Note 5)
(B1:t5)

588,223,000 (L)

588,223,000 (L) (Note 6)
(H1it6)

24.30%

24.30%

23.61%

23.61%

0.62%

16.73%

16.42%

16.42%

16.42%
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Percentage of

the total
Number of shares or issued shares
Name of shareholder Nature of Interests Class of shares underlying shares HERTRE
RREB Bty R E R ROZEBROHE  BENEIL
SAIF Partners Il LP Interest of corporation controlled  Ordinary shares 588,223,000 (L) (Note 6) 16.42%
by the substantial shareholders ~ Z3@ A% (H156)
FERRAEHMERNER
SAIF 1| GP Capital Ltd Interest of corporation controlled  Ordinary shares 588,223,000 (L) (Note 6) 16.42%
by the substantial shareholders iM% (Hiiz6)
FERRAEHNZENER
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series  Investment manager Ordinary shares 540,540,540 (L) (Note 7) 15.09%
SPC (Acting on behalf of RELE Limk (Hizt7)
Guoyuan Global Income
Fund Segregated Portfolio)
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series
SPC (A& Guoyuan Global
Income Fund Segregated
Portfoliof7 %)
Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 8.05%
Limited BRBEBA LB
Schneider Electric Industries SAS  Interest of corporation controlled  Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) (Note 8) 8.05%
by the substantial shareholders — EZ3@A% (Hi28)
FERRATEHINEENER
Schneider Electric SE Interest of corporation controlled  Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) (Note 8) 8.05%
by the substantial shareholders @& (H15#8)
FERRAEHMEEOER
YE Yong Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 270,227,000 (L) 7.54%
5B BREBA B
Spouse’s interest Ordinary shares 7,433,000 (L) (Note 9) 0.21%
[ TL g B (#7it9)
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Notes:

(L) represents long position.

These shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.)
Company Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to
be interested in all these shares.

These shares are held by Haitong International Securities
Company Limited. As Haitong International Securities Company
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International
Finance Company Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Haitong International (BVI) Limited, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited, 61.77% interest of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited is held by Haitong International Holdings Limited,
and which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd., Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. and Haitong International
Securities Group Limited are deemed to be interested in these
shares.

These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.
(588,223,000 shares) and SAIF Partners IV L.P. (10,900,000
shares), respectively. As all these companies are held by Mr.
Andrew Y. YAN indirectly, Mr. Andrew Y. YAN is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by the aforesaid
companies.

These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.. As
Cisco Systems, Inc. (as limited partner) held 38.9% interests in
SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P., Cisco Systems, Inc. is deemed
to be interested in these shares.
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6. These shares were held by SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P.. As
the interests of SB Asia Investment Fund Il L.P. is held by SAIF Il
GP, L.P., SAIF Partners Il LP and SAIF Il GP Capital Ltd directly
or indirectly, SAIF Il GP, L.P., SAIF Partners Il LP and SAIF Il GP
Capital Ltd are deemed to be interested in these shares.

7. These shares represent the maximum number of shares to be
issued and allotted upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds issued by the Company
pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 20 May 2016
entered into between the Company and Guoyuan Investment
Fund Series SPC (acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global Income
Fund Segregated Portfolio).

8. These shares were held by Schneider Electric Asia Pacific
Limited. As Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric Industries SAS, which
in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SE,
Schneider Electric Industries SAS and Schneider Electric SE are
deemed to be interested in these shares.

9. As these shares are held by Ms. GAO Xia, the spouse of Mr. YE
Yong, Mr. YE Yong is deemed to be interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and
chief executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Report of Directors

EEEWE

6. #% % B 15 HMSB Asia Investment
Fund Il L.P. £ & o B SB Asia
Investment Fund Il L.P. 2% A
SAIF Il GP, L.P. - SAIF Partners I
LPXSAIF || GP Capital Ltd & #z sk &
BE#E - FISAIF 1| GP, L.P. » SAIF
Partners Il LPXSAIF II GP Capital
LidE R AR ZERO P E R -

7. ZE B RARE KR R R R2016%F5
HA20H E2Guoyuan Investment Fund
Series SPC (ft Z#&Guoyuan Global
Income Fund Segregated PortfoliofT
) FIVRE S RNAREET
Y AT AR (B 25 PR BT #R AR R T R B A T {3
& HTEITREEZZHRMD

8. 2 % % {7 B Schneider Electric Asia
Pacific Limited®f & ° Schneider
Electric Asia Pacific LimitedsZ
Schneider Electric Industries SASH)
2 &M B /AR * MmSchneider Electric
Industries SASX &Schneider
Electric SEMZ &I B A A + & it
Schneider Electric Industries SAS K&
Schneider Electric SE#R BRZE
ROFPHEEERS -

9. ZERMBEBTENRBEERLT

8 AREBEERBR/NZER
DA -

BREXHEBEEEN RESHA B
2017F12H318 » IEEMAL (KA
RIEEARSTERABRIN SOEEHE
BRABTRBREBE(ESFRBEGKRAD) 2
33BIEMEARRNBEBEHECMAL
RNA R RABBERD5%3K A £ & #E

S A
ﬁﬁgz,/ﬁ\()?. S

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Report of Directors

552

R

Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

(a)

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved and adopted at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 April 2010. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means of incentivising and retaining employees,
and to encourage employees to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and promoting the long-term
growth of the Company. This scheme will link the value
of the Company with the interests of the participants,
enabling participants and the Company to develop
together and promoting the Company’s corporate culture.
The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors), employees and
advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, agents, customers, business partners and
service providers of any member of the Group who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group to participate in the Share
Option Scheme. The period within which the options
must be exercised shall be determined by the Directors
at the time of grant and such period must expire no later
than 10 years from the date when the Board resolves to
make the offer of options to the grantees. All outstanding
options shall lapse when the grantee is dead or retired,
the employment of the grantee ceases or where the
grantee is no longer an employee of the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% (the
Company may refresh the 10% limit in certain conditions)
of the aggregate of the shares in issue on the listing date
or 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant
of options which would result in the number of shares
issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit requires
shareholders’ prior approval with the relevant participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. At the time
of grant of the options, our Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The Share Option Scheme
does not contain any such minimum period.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Option
Scheme shall be no less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share upon its issue. The amount payable by a grantee
on acceptance of a grant of options is US$1.00. Life
of the Share Option Scheme is ten years and ends on
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.

During the Reporting Period, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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(b)

‘i’

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) as approved by
the Board on 15 October 2006 and amended on 23
December 2009 and 24 March 2010. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to assist the Company
in attracting, retaining and motivating key employees,
Directors, consultants and strategic suppliers. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for
the period of time commencing on 15 October 2006
and expired on the day immediately prior to the date
on which dealings commence in the ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange. The Company may at any time
amend or terminate the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as advised by the Board at its discretion. The termination
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has no effect on
the outstanding share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. Any such outstanding share
options shall continue in effect in accordance with their
terms and conditions and the terms and conditions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The extent to which any
eligible person is entitled to be granted options pursuant
to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to be determined
in the sole discretion of the Board, provided, however, that
the number of shares issued to or reserved for issuance
to any one person pursuant to the options and other
stock option plans or share compensation arrangements
shall not exceed 3% of the number of shares in issue
(on a fully-diluted basis), including those shares of
the Company which are issuable upon the exercise or
conversion of outstanding securities of the Company,
including the options previously granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any options granted under
other stock options, stock option plans or other share
compensation arrangements which the Company may
issue or establish in addition to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme. The aggregate number of shares subject to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 240,429,000 shares,
representing 8.11% of the issued share capital of the
Company following the IPO.
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Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and shall expire no later than 10 years
from the date the Board resolves to make the offer of
options to the grantees. Options granted to grantees
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vest
immediately to the grantees, or vest to the grantees at
a rate not more than 25% of each such grant for each
year commencing from the date when the grantees can
exercise such options granted to them. The exercise price
of these share options was determined by the Board with
reference to the market value of the Company’s ordinary
shares and the Company’s equity value.

In the event that the Board allows a grantee to exercise
an option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by delivering shares previously owned by such
grantee and unless otherwise expressly provided by the
Board, any shares delivered which were initially acquired
by the grantee from the Company (upon exercise of a
share option or otherwise) must have been owned by
the grantee at least six months as at the date of delivery.
The Company will not be obligated to deliver any shares
unless and until it receives full payment of the exercise
or purchase price therefore and any related withholding
obligations and any other conditions to exercise or
purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwise expressly
provided, the Board may at any time eliminate or limit
a grantee’s ability to pay the purchase or exercise price
of any option granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme by any method other than cash payment to the
Company. The Board may take all actions necessary to
alter the method of option exercise and the exchange and
transmittal of proceeds with respect to grantees resident
in the PRC not having permanent residence in a country
other than the PRC in order to comply with applicable
PRC foreign exchange and tax regulations. Further details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.
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As at 31 December 2017, details of outstanding options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

R2017F12A318 » X AR ZEITH]
REARAEST BIIE T R ARTTR M B RETIS

LU
Percentage of
the number of
Shares
outstanding as
Number of Number of at 31 December
Shares Shares 2017 to the total
outstanding as  outstanding as issued shares
at1 January at 31 December Exercise R2017%
2017 2017 price 12R31H
i 20175 (HKS HR{TEN
Name of the Class of Relationship 201751818 128318 per share) RHEE
grantee shares with the Group HARTEL HATEN TEER  Dateof grant Expiry date  HEZTRH
ARALE RtvER — RASENEE k##A ke#R  (En/R) Sl MR ARWESM
Others Share Employees 1,000,000 - 21 24 March 2010 8 February -
(including senior options and others 2017
management)
EAR BiE EERAM 20108 0175
(ERAEEAR) 3R24H 28H
Total
=) 1,000,000 - -

For further details, please refer to note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 340 to 342 of this annual report
and the prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.

During the Reporting Period, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, none of the share
options was exercised or cancelled.
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During the Reporting Period, out of the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 1,000,000 share
options lapsed due to the expiration of the share option. The
lapsed share options are as follows:

Number of share Exercise price
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options lapsed (HK$ per share) Date of grant Expiry date
K¥uBREHE TRER (B R) ®FA ZHA
1,000,000 2.1 24 March 2010 8 February 2017

As at 31 December 2017, these was no outstanding share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Period.

Interests of Directors in Competing Business

Save for those disclosed in the following paragraphs by the
Company, during the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company was interested in any business which competes or
is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group.
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Mr. WANG Donglei, an Executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, holds 90% equity
interest in Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (ZE#E=1%
ZAMRAF), Wuhu Elec-Tech Investment Co., Ltd.* (%=
SIE BB AR in turn holds 16.57% of the shares of ETIC,
and ETIC in turn holds 24.30% of the shares (870,346,000
shares as at 31 December 2017) of the Company. Mr. WANG
Donglei is also a director and chairman of ETIC and holds
directorships in a number of subsidiaries of ETIC Group.
Apart from this, Mr. XIAO Yu holds directorships in a number
of subsidiaries of ETIC Group and Mr. LI Huating is a deputy
chairman and general manager of ETIC. To the best knowledge
of the Company, ETIC was established on 14 May 1996 with
issued capital of RMB1,764,720,000 as at 31 December
2017, the shares of which were listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in June 2004. Based on the preliminary annual result
of ETIC dated 13 February 2018 (unaudited and subject to
further adjustment), its operating revenue for the year of 2017 is
approximately RMB4,203,131,000, its net loss is approximately
RMB896,495,000 and its total assets is approximately
RMB14,209,926,000. The principal business of ETIC is
production and sale of small household appliances and LED
products, while the Group’s subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the production and sale of lamp products, luminaire products
and lighting electronic products, including a variety of LED
lamps, luminaires and electrical products. As a result, Mr. WANG
Donglei, Mr. XiAO Yu and Mr. LI Huating are deemed to be
interested, directly or indirectly, in the business that competes or
may compete with that of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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Controlling Shareholders and Their Pledge of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any
controlling shareholders.

Connected Transactions, Potential Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Acquisition

On 12 June 2017, the Board announced that it has resolved
to acquire shares of ETIC to the amount of no more than
RMB110,000,000 on market before 31 December 2017 with the
acquisition price of no more than RMB5.45 per share of ETIC.
Assuming a purchase price of RMB5.45 per share of ETIC, it was
estimated that the total number of shares of ETIC to be acquired
by the Company would be approximately 20,183,486 shares,
representing 1.45% of the total issued shares of ETIC on 12
June 2017. (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
12 June 2017 for more information).

On 31 December 2017, the total number of shares of ETIC
held by a subsidiary of the Company was 20,363,832 shares,
representing 1.154% of the total issued shares of ETIC on 31
December 2017.
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Immediately prior to the Acquisition, Mr. WANG Donglei indirectly
held 20.94% of total issued shares of ETIC and was a substantial
shareholder of ETIC. Mr. WANG Donglei is also the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company.
Although the Company will acquire shares of ETIC on market
from the public, the Acquisition will be regarded as a connected
transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.28 of the Listing
Rules. ETIC is an important business partner of the Company in
its industrial chain. The strategic investment in ETIC will enhance
the Company’s strategic cooperation relationship with ETIC.
ETIC is focusing on the production and sale of small household
appliances and LED products in the PRC. With a positive outlook
on the LED products market and the future performance of ETIC,
the Company believes that the Acquisition presents a valuable
investment opportunity for the Group to capture the potential
growth of ETIC, which will bring benefits to the Group. The
Company also considers that the current stock price of ETIC is
also at a reasonable level and of investment value. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the Acquisition is on normal commercial terms, fair and
reasonable, and is in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

Potential Connected Transactions
Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements

Please refer to the relevant section in the 2016 annual report of
the Company for details of the Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements. The Company repeats its earlier statement that it
is still seeking legal advice in relation to the legal validity of the
Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements.

The Board would like to reiterate that the entering into of the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements was not
carried out with the knowledge of the current Board. Accordingly,
the Board is not presently aware of a fair and reasonable
justification for the entering into of the Relevant Purported
Pledge and Guarantee Agreements, nor has the Board been
provided with a proper explanation which indicates that the
Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements are in the
interests of the Company or its shareholders as a whole. NVC
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China has commenced several proceedings in the PRC against
Mr. WU Changjiang and other defendants in connection with
certain Purported Pledge and Guarantee Agreements. In those
proceedings, NVC China’s position is that the Purported Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements are not legally valid or enforceable.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 14 April
2015 for more information.

Please refer to the section headed “Progress of Litigation” in
pages 22 to 23 in this annual report for more information about
the progress of the relevant litigation.

Counter Guarantees from Wu Ji

Please refer to the relevant section in the 2016 annual report of
the Company for details of the Counter Guarantees from Wu Ji.

The Company repeats its earlier statement that the Letters of
Counter Guarantee are currently referred to in ongoing litigation
in the PRC involving NVC China, and the Board notes that the
court has not yet made a determination in relation to their legal
validity and enforceability.

The Board would like to reiterate that the Board only became
aware of the executed Letters of Counter Guarantees in 2015.
The Letters of Counter Guarantee relate to a number of pledge
and guarantee agreements, entered into by Mr. WU Changjiang,
purportedly on behalf of the Company. The Board was not
previously aware of NVC China’s purported entering into of
the pledge and guarantee agreements. The Board is also not
presently aware of a fair and reasonable justification for the
Letters of Counter Guarantee and/or the pledge and guarantee
agreements, nor has Mr. WU Changjiang provided the Board
with a proper explanation which indicates that these letters
and agreements are in the interests of the Company or its
shareholders as a whole. Nonetheless, the Board notes that the
Letters of Counter Guarantees have apparently been granted
in return for the purported pledge and guarantee agreements
entered into by the Company in relation to the various loans
mentioned above. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 2 September 2015 for more information.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempted from Independent Shareholders’
Approval

Renewed Framework Raw Material Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework raw material purchase
agreement dated 22 January 2016 with World Bright and Quzhou
Aushite. As World Bright and Quzhou Aushite are associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Jiannong, a director
and a substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary of the Company, World Bright
and Quzhou Aushite are connected persons of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Pursuant to
such agreement, we agreed to purchase raw materials (on a
non-exclusive basis) including glass tubes from World Bright,
phosphor powder from Quzhou Aushite. The quality, quantity
and technical standards of the raw materials delivered by these
suppliers must meet the Company’s standards as set out in
the sub-contract for each purchase and the prices charged by
these suppliers will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the relevant parties with reference to the prevailing
market rates. The term of the renewed framework raw material
purchase agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2016.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us to World
Bright and Quzhou Aushite under the renewed framework raw
material purchase agreement for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB18,760,000, RMB18,760,000 and
RMB18,760,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us under
the renewed framework raw material purchase agreement was
RMB8,096,000, which did not exceed the annual cap.
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Renewed Framework Equipment Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework equipment purchase
agreement dated 22 January 2016 with Jiangshan Youhe during
our usual course of business. As Jiangshan Youhe is an associate
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. WU Jiannong, a
director and a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Zhejiang NVC, a subsidiary of the Company,
Jiangshan Youhe is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Pursuant to such
agreement, we purchase manufacturing equipment and software
from Jiangshan Youhe. The fees charged by Jiangshan Youhe will
be agreed based on arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the prevailing market rates. The term of this renewed framework
equipment purchase agreement is three years commencing on 1
January 2016.

The maximum aggregate annual amounts payable by us
under the renewed framework equipment purchase agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
are RMB4,500,000, RMB3,500,000 and RMB3,500,000,
respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with Jianshan Youhe arising from the renewed framework
equipment purchase agreement.

Renewed Trademark Licensing Agreement

Huizhou NVC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a renewed trademark licensing agreement on 22
January 2016 with ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to
which, Huizhou NVC grants ETIC, a non-transferrable right to
use certain registered trademarks of the Company, including
“NVC” and “B =", as well as granting ETIC the right to use the
Company’s registered trademark in combination with ETIC’s own
brand as “NVCETI” and “& £1Z%” on ETIC’s LED lamp products.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

The licensing is worldwide but is exclusive only on certain ETIC’s
LED lamp products. As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined
under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. The trademark licensing fee
is agreed based on arm'’s length negotiations and is on normal
commercial terms. The term of the renewed trademark licensing
agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. To
further promote the Company’s brand name and to implement
the Company’s strategic development plan for LED products, the
Company decided to enter into such licensing agreement for the
production of certain LED lamp products using the Company’s
registered trademarks. ETIC has a well-established sales channel
for LED lamp products which is complementary to our existing
product sales channel. ETIC is a vertically well-integrated
LED lamp producer and its product quality and price are very
competitive in the market. The Board believes that through
cooperation with ETIC, the Company’s sales and distribution
network coverage of LED lamp products will be further extended,
which is expected to further improve the Company’s operation
results (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22
January 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts of trademark licence
fees receivable by us from ETIC under the renewed trademark
licensing agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB55,000,000, RMB55,000,000 and
RMB55,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, we did not have any transaction
with ETIC under the renewed trademark licensing agreement.
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Renewed Framework Finished Products and Raw
Materials Purchase Agreement

We entered into a renewed framework finished products and
raw materials purchase agreement on 22 January 2016 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to purchase finished products and raw materials
including but not limited to LED chips and LED lamp products
from ETIC and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC
is a substantial shareholder of the Company, it is a connected
person of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between which and the Company constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
Listing Rules. The quality, quantity and technical standards of
the products delivered by ETIC and its subsidiaries must meet
the Company’s standards as set out in the sub-contract for each
purchase order. The prices charged by ETIC and its subsidiaries
will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations between
the parties with reference to the prevailing market rates. The
term of the framework agreement is three years commencing
on 1 January 2016. The Company entered into such purchase
agreement given the Group has a continuous demand for
the relevant finished products and raw materials in the next
three years and the fees charged by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2016 for more information).

In view of the better-than-expected demand of ETIC’s products,
the Company expects the original annual caps will not be
sufficient to meet the Company’s requirements. On 29 November
2016, the Board approved to revise upward the original annual
caps (Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2016 for details). The maximum aggregate
annual amounts payable to ETIC and its subsidiaries under
the renewed framework finished products and raw materials
purchase agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB120,000,000, RMB130,000,000 and
RMB140,000,000, respectively.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us
to ETIC and its subsidiaries under the renewed framework
finished products and raw materials purchase agreement was
RMB124,248,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.

New ETIC Sales Agreement

We entered into a framework sales agreement (the “New ETIC
Sales Agreement”) on 14 March 2016 with ETIC, which is a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to sell
finished products including but not limited to LED luminaire
products to ETIC on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, it is a connected
person of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between which and the Company constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
Listing Rules. The quality, quantity and technical standards of
the products delivered by the Group must meet ETIC and its
subsidiaries’ standards as set out in the sub-contract for each
sales order. The prices paid by ETIC will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market rates. The term of the framework agreement
is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The Company
entered into such sales agreement given the continued demand
for such finished products by ETIC and its affiliates in the next
three years and the fees paid/payable by ETIC and its affiliates
are competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 March 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable by us from
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales Agreement
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are
RMB100,000,000, RMB100,000,000 and RMB100,000,000,
respectively.
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During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by
us from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales
Agreement was RMB2,934,000 which did not exceed the annual
cap.

The Lease Agreement |

We entered into a lease agreement on 22 January 2016 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
agrees to lease certain properties from ETIC and its affiliates (the
“Lease Agreement I”). As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined
under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Details of each properties
to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract for each lease.
The rent charged by ETIC and its Affiliates will be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with
reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the Lease
Agreement | is three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The
Company entered into the Lease Agreement | given the Group
has a continuous demand for the relevant properties in the next
three years and the rent charged by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts paid by us to ETIC
under the Lease Agreement | for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB2,000,000, RMB2,000,000 and
RMB2,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by us to
ETIC and its subsidiaries under the Lease Agreement | was
RMB183,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

The Lease Agreement Il

We entered into a lease agreement on 22 January 2016 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
agrees to lease certain properties to ETIC and its affiliates (the
“Lease Agreement II”). As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as defined
under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between which and
the Company constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Details of each properties
to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract for each lease.
The rent charged by the Group will be agreed following arm’s
length negotiations between the parties with reference to the
prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement Il is
three years commencing on 1 January 2016. The Company
entered into the Lease Agreement Il given ETIC and its affiliates
have a continuous demand for such properties in the next three
years and the rent paid/payable by ETIC and its affiliates are
competitive (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2016 for more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts received by us
from ETIC under the Lease Agreement Il for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB5,000,000,
RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount received by us
from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the Lease Agreement Il was
RMB1,143,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.

Please refer to the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for information of the
Directors’ positions and interests in ETIC group.
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Services Agreement

NVC HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Services Agreement on 18 May 2017 with NVC Lighting
& Electrical Technology Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“NVC Singapore”),
pursuant to which NVC Singapore has agreed to provide
services in relation to lighting solutions and management of the
distributors and dealers in the Asia Pacific and East Europe
region for NVC HK. NVC HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. NVC Singapore is a subsidiary of Mr. WANG
Dongming, an executive Director of the Company. Mr. WANG
Dongming holds 60% equity interest of NVC Singapore.
Therefore, NVC Singapore is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement
constitute the connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Services Agreement, NVC
Singapore will charge consultant fee from NVC HK based on
monthly expenses of human resources incurred by the Service
Provider. The annual actual expenses depend on actual business
developments and the related budget. The term of the Services
Agreement is three years commencing on 1 January 2017. NVC
Singapore can provide the Group with desirable profession
services based on its personnel with professional knowledge
and experience, and it is more cost-efficient than operating and
managing such activities overseas by the Group itself. (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2017 for
more information).

The maximum aggregate annual amounts paid by us to NVC
Singapore under the Services Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 are RMB5,000,000,
RMB6,500,000 and RMB8,500,000, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the actual amount paid by
us to NVC Singapore under the Services Agreement was
RMB3,430,000 which did not exceed the annual cap.
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Report of Directors

EXEEWE

Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement

The Company entered into a transportation and warehousing
services framework agreement (the “Transportation and
Warehousing Services Framework”) on 22 December 2017 with
ETIC, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the company, pursuant to which the Group
agrees to provide transportation and warehousing services to
ETIC and its associates; As ETIC is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, it is a connected person of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions between
which and the Company constitute connected transactions
of the Company under the Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Individual agreements will be entered into between the parties
with respect to the specific services pursuant to the terms
of the Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework
Agreement. Such individual agreements will be entered in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The payment arrangement should be provided in the
individual agreements. The prices charged by the Group will
be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the
Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework is three
years commencing from 1 January 2018. The entering of the
Transportation and Warehousing Services Framework Agreement
will enable the Company to (i) enhance the customer base in the
field of transportation and warehousing services; and (ii) expand
sources of income by providing transportation and warehousing
services. (Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2017 for more information)

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable to
ETIC under the Transportation and Warehousing Services
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020 are RMB60,000,000, RMB80,000,000 and
RMB100,000,000, respectively.
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Sales Framework Agreement

We entered into a sales framework agreement (the “Sales
Framework Agreement”) on 22 December 2017 with NVC
Singapore, pursuant to which the Group agrees to sell finished
products to NVC Singapore and its associates. NVC Singapore
is a subsidiary of Mr. Wang Dongming, an executive director of
the company, who holds 60% equity interest of NVC Singapore.
Therefore NVC Singapore is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the proposed
transactions under the Sales Framework Agreement constitute
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Individual agreements will be entered into between the parties
with respect to the specific finished products pursuant to the
terms of the Sales Framework Agreement. Such individual
agreements will be entered in the ordinary and usual course
of business and on normal commercial terms. The payment
arrangement should be provided in the individual agreements.
The prices charged by the Group for the finished products will
be agreed upon arm’s length negotiations between the parties
with reference to the market price for the same or similar type
of products provided in the same or surrounding regions. The
entering of the Sales Framework Agreement will facilitate the
penetration of the Company’s products into Singapore and
ASEAN market and enhance the Company’s brand awareness.
The term of the Sales Framework Agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2018. (Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2017 for more
information)

The maximum aggregate annual amounts receivable to NVC
Singapore under the Sales Framework Agreement for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are RMB20,000,000,
RMB30,000,000 and RMB40,000,000, respectively.
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Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transaction

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above
Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors, who confirmed that these
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(if) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
the connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
a letter containing a conclusion that the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above have no non-
compliance with Rule 14A.56 of Listing Rule. The auditor’s
letter has confirmed that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group as stated in this annual
report;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in

accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
continuing connected transactions; and
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(iv) have exceeded their respective annual caps for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 set out in the
previous announcements of the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into certain transactions with “related parties” as defined
under the applicable accounting standards, which include (1)
transactions that could constitute connected transactions in
the event that the Relevant Purported Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements are determined to be legally valid, and (2)
transactions that constitute continuing connected transactions
for which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with. Details of the material
related party transactions are disclosed in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Disclosures pursuant to Rules 13.21 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

Report of Directors

EEEWE

(ivy HBEEAARZAZELNAS
FEESEREBE-S—tF+
A=+ RALEMBRFEENFEE
R -

AR BE 5B B 2R K 1 B AN X 2 B
R e

HZE2017F12A31B L FE - A% H
HRBRER T ERA TN [FEET ]
FIVETRS - BN MIEEATEE R
RERBERRBERBEAERT - AlgE
BRBEXINXS  RQFE(LET
RAD BUAEBRBRRENFERBER
SNRG  EANBHM AR INFBEHRE
RAFEIRE 26 M EmERMTFE40 o

BE LW HBE13.211% K
13. 226K E

EFeVTANBETARECETAID
E13.21{EM13.22{F BT IRERIE N ©

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Report of Directors

EXEEWE

Remuneration Policy

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our
employees based on their performance, qualifications and our
results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are
determined by our Remuneration Committee with reference to
our results of operations, their individual performance and the
comparable market statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which
a Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five
highest-paid individuals are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 288 to 293 of this
annual report, respectively.

Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in
the housing fund and the defined contribution pension scheme
operated by local governments. Under these schemes, the Group
is required to pay to the defined contribution schemes based on
a certain percentage of the remuneration of its employees. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the housing fund
and pension scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions made under the housing fund and
pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Company may not utilize any forfeited contributions in order
to make fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme were RMB65,855,000. Details
of the Group’s contributions to the housing fund and pension
scheme are set out in note 7 on pages 286 to 287 and note 9
on pages 288 to 292 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, respectively.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Charitable Contributions

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of
approximately RMB190,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales to our
top five customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue and the purchases of goods and services from our
top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices and the Code on
Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company had complied with
the principles and codes provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, except for code provision A.2.1. Please refer
to Corporate Governance Report on pages 112 to 134 of this
annual report for further details.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all Directors, and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with all relevant requirements
as set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period, the
details are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on
page 112 to 113 of this annual report.
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Events after the Reporting Period

On 14 March 2018, the Company entered into a non-binding
co-operation framework agreement (the “Co-operation
Framework Agreement”) with ETIC and Mr. WANG Donglei (each
a “Party”,together the “Parties”), pursuant to which, subject
to entering into definitive agreements, the Company intends
to sell, and ETIC and Mr. WANG Donglei intend to acquire,
directly and indirectly, the Company’s domestic lighting products
manufacturing business (the “Target Assets”) which includes
but not limited to the entire share capital of Huizhou NVC (the
“Potential Disposal”). The definitive scope of the Target Assets
will be subject to further discussions between the Parties.

In the past two years, the profitability of lighting product
manufacturers shrunk due to sustained increase in costs of
certain metal raw material, components and labour. In 2018,
in order to strengthen its core competitiveness and achieve
sustainable development, the Group formulated a strategy
of gradually transforming from a manufacturing enterprise to
a channel enterprise. The Potential Disposal contemplated
under the Co-operation Framework Agreement can reduce
the proportion of manufacturing business in the Group, and is
therefore in line with the development strategy and long-term
interests of the Group. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 March 2018.

On 16 March 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
Roman International (HK) Co., Limited (B8 ZESBEE AR AT
(“the Seller”), pursuant to which, the Company agrees to acquire,
and the Seller agrees to sell, a 40% equity interest in Blue Light
(HK) Trading Co., Limited (BB R &S E S ER A 7 (“the
Target Company”) at a consideration of RMB315,000,000. The
Target Company controls a business engaged in the sale and
distribution of lighting products through e-commerce platforms
and distribution channels. As at the date of execution of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, the Target Company indirectly holds
85% equity interest in Wuhu NVC Electronic Business Co., Ltd.
(“Wuhu Electronic”) and the Company indirectly holds 10% equity
interest in Wuhu Electronic. Upon Completion, the Company will
hold 40% equity interest in the Target Company, and indirectly
hold, in aggregate, 44% equity interest in Wuhu Electronic.
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Such acquisition will strengthen the Company’s ability to develop
and/or cooperate with online-to-offline sales and distribution
channels. The source of funds for such acquisition is mainly self-
owned funds and bank loans. Following such acquisition, the
Company will continue to expand the variety of its sales and
distribution channels and benefit from the collection, analysis and
application of big data in respect of consumer behaviour. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 March 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Auditor

On 16 December 2015, the Board passed, by a majority,
resolutions to terminate the contract with Messrs Ernst & Young
(“EY”) as the auditor of the Company and appoint BDO Limited
(“BDO”) as the new auditor of the Company (together, the
“Change of Auditor”). The above-mentioned Change of Auditor
has been passed by the Shareholders in the Extraordinary
General Meeting which was held on 17 March 2016.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the related
notes thereto for the year ended 31 December 2017 as set out
in this annual report have been audited by the Group’s auditor,
BDO, to the amounts set out in the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as our auditor will be submitted
for shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
22 March 2018
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The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Board are of the opinion that, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had fully complied with the principles and
code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for Code
Provision A.2.1. which requires that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The details of deviation are set
out in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below in this Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all of
them have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
the relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”).
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The Company is not aware any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.

Board of Directors

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors: WANG Donglei (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Dongming
XIAO Yu
WANG Keven Dun
Non-executive Directors: LI Huating (Vice Chairman)
LI Wei
YANG Jianwen
(Resigned on 22 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive LEE Kong Wai, Conway
WANG Xuexian

WEI Hongxiong

SU Ling

Directors:

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 52
to 67 of this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the
respective Director’s biography under the section “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 52 to 67 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Donglei assumed the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Company
deviated from this code provision. Mr. WANG Donglei is the
chairman and general manager of ETIC, which is the controlling
corporation of the largest shareholder of the Company, Elec-Tech
International (H.K.) Company Limited. Mr. WANG Donglei has
many years of experience in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management. The dual role
arrangement provides strong and consistent market leadership
and is critical for efficient business planning and decision making
of the Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and its other relevant committees,
and there are four Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore
of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board will also
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for
the purposes of complying with the CG Code and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG Xuexian, Mr. WEI Hongxiong
and Mr. SU Ling in respect of their respective independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
Independent Non-executive Directors were independent from
their respective date of appointment to 31 December 2017.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-
executive Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election, while code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years with effect
from their respective date of appointment unless terminated by
not less than three months’ written notice served by either the
Executive Directors or the Company. Each of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has signed
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
with effect from their respective date of appointment unless
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served
by either the Non-executive Directors of the Company. The above
appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment, any new director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the next following
annual general meeting after appointment. And in accordance
with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of directors
to retire by rotation) any director who wishes to retire and not
to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further directors so
to retire shall be those of the Directors subject to retirement
by rotation who have been longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot. Accordingly, Mr. WANG Donglei, Mr. WANG
Dongming, Mr. XIAO Yu and Mr. LI Wei will be subject to re-
election on the forthcoming annual general meeting. None of the
Directors who is proposed for re-election or any other Directors
has a service contract with us that is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Responsibilities of the Directors and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company
and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company and may request the joint company secretaries
and senior management to provide services and advice. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

TEERHRE

FIBEER (BRIFNTEST RBILIFH
TEF)EREFETRZRENES
EBER  AREER FESUNRE
R E A

BUFRPTEFARERARARKE
MEERR AEFENCXTHRE
BB R E LA R AT

FrEEEHA 2T MKERFARRM
BERMARERABBERE SR
EEERHRELER -EFARBR
REFEERA IS KBIEXRER - A
AARAREITERE - BHAAQEE

= ©

=

EXARNARARERSETNHE MR
BHFHE MEFSTHRMASESZN
ARAETEBERAFELNER -

EXCRATREMAEESRE  EHY
MBREER  RBEEAE  ABEER
REREE BARS (B EH R
NBEERE) HBEHN ZEEEFR
ARAPEMBALESH -

BEATESTSRE BERBALR
FAAREEEREEZBENETEEN
TEREMERE - BREBENTIE
EBNESR RS - DS HRBERLE
MEARZRARSEZTSHE

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Corporate Governance Report
ﬁé% /IZI #& =

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses.
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The record of continuous professional development relating ZEENEE2017F12A31H IEFE W
to director’'s duties and regulatory and business development IMEREERENEEEFEENG
that have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 EMREERECSEEMAT

December 2017 are summarized as follows:

Type of

Name of Directors Training’otes
= $ 119 Bl
Executive Directors HITES
WANG Donglei FLE B
WANG Dongming F &8 B
XIAO Yu HTF B
WANG Keven Dun Tig B
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
LI Huating TES B
LI Wei =g B
YANG Jianwen (Note 1) B (KHiE1) B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITESE
LEE Kong Wai, Conway FEE A/B
WANG Xuexian FE% B
WEI Hongxiong BRI B
SU Ling B B

Notes: Hiat -

1. Ms. YANG Jianwen resigned on 22 March 2018. 1. BENLZER2018F3 H22HBHE -

Types of Training ZFEE 5

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, Ak 2B RE BEETERNA

seminars, conferences and workshops e ffisve  enfMESH
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines B: BEAEF B - R - BT - 5
and relevant publications T A0 A8 B8 R
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Board Committees

The Board has established five committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Strategy and Planning Committee and Independent Investigations
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include maintaining relationship
with the auditor of the Group, reviewing financial information
of the Group, supervising the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, and the
duties of corporate governance designated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review, in respect of annual financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the interim results and reports
for the period ended 30 June 2017, and significant issues on
the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit function, appointment of external
auditors and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice.

Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to
comprise a minimum of three members with Independent Non-
executive Directors in majority and at least one member with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 22 March 2018, therefore, she ceased to be
the member of Audit Committee. As of the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee consists of two members, namely,
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian,
respectively. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway has been appointed as
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Following Ms. YANG Jianwen’s resignation, the Audit Committee
would have two members only, which falls below the minimum
requirements provided in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee. The Company is in the process of identifying and
shall appoint suitable candidates to fill up the vacancy of the
Audit Committee as soon as practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item
(i) under the code provision B.1.2(c) of the CG Code, i.e., making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met
twice to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
performance and the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review the terms of
Executive Directors’ service contracts and other related matters.

Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to establish a
Remuneration Committee chaired by Independent Non-executive
Director and comprising a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, Non-executive Director
Mr. LI Wei, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong
Wai, Conway and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI
Hongxiong, respectively. Mr. WEI Hongxiong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in
note 9 and note 10 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 288 to 293 of this annual report, the remuneration of the
senior management of the Company falls in the following bands:
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Number of Members of
Senior Management
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Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
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Nomination Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services) to
implement the Board diversity policy and review such objects
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee met
once to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the Annual General Meeting.
The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code requires an issuer to
establish a Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive director and comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely, Executive Director Mr.
WANG Donglei, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE
Kong Wai, Conway and Independent Non-executive Director Mr.
WEI Hongxiong, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is
to propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the
Company for the Board’s consideration.

As of the date of this annual report, the Strategy and Planning
Committee consists of four members, namely, Executive Director
Mr. WANG Donglei, Executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu, Non-
executive Director Mr. LI Wei and Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is
the chairman of the Strategy and Planning Committee. During
the Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by the Strategy
and Planning Committee.
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Independent Investigations Committee

To advance the internal investigations into matters involving
Mr. WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the Company has established
the Independent Investigations Committee under the Board.
The Independent Investigations Committee has been authorized
by the Board to exercise powers and perform duties on behalf
of the Board in relation to the conduct of the investigations
into, among other things, the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU
Changjiang. The Independent Investigations Committee has also
been authorized to consider and make recommendations to the
Board with respect to any potential proceedings arising from
the internal investigations. In connection with the Company’s
investigations of the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang,
the Independent Investigations Committee has instructed a
third-party service provider to conduct a forensic review of
related irregularities and an internal controls assessment of the
Company and its key subsidiaries. The forensic review and the
internal controls assessment has been completed. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 July 2015 and
17 September 2015 for details.

Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-executive Director
with effect from 22 March 2018, therefore, she ceased to be the
member of Independent Investigations Committee. As of the date
of this annual report, the Independent Investigations Committee
consists of three members, namely, Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Independent Non-
executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian and Independent Non-
executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong, respectively. During the
Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by the Independent
Investigations Committee.
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Appointment and Resignation of Directors and Change
in Directors’ Information

From 1 January 2017 to the date of this annual report, the
appointment and resignation of Directors and changes in the
Directors’ information of the Company are as follows:

Mr. WEI Hongxiong, the Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, has obtained the qualification to be the
independent director of listed company from China Securities
Regulatory Commission in February 2017.

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd.
(the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 2611
and 601211) with effect from 11 April 2017.

Ms. YANG Jianwen has resigned as a Non-executive Director,
member of Audit Committee and member of Independent
Investigations Committee with effect from 22 March 2018.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has delegated the responsibility for performing the
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code to
the Audit Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Attendance Records of Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Company held eight Board
meetings in total. The attendance record of each director at the
Board and Board Committee meetings and the general meetings
of the Company held during the Reporting Period is set out in
the table below:

TEERWE

ESHFERNCR

R|EFEAR  ARBHBITNRES
2eF BEFHFERBRSFERITH
EFeESTRERERUARARAIR
RAGHREREIIN TR -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

L/ EBETNY
Strategy and  Independent Annual  Extraordinary
Planning Investigations General General
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
Name of Director Board  Committee  Committee  Committee ~ HHEHE Bugs REAE RR%&H
£33 E2¢ EHZRE  FMZERe  R4ZE% 3= 3 H 7N -
WANG Donglei %5 8/8 111 010 111 0/
WANG Dongming I4H 718 0 01
XIAQ Yu AT 8/8 00 1 11
WANG Keven Dun 1% 8/8 i 17
LI Huating FE= /8 1 01
LI Wei 5k 18 202 00 11 01
YANG Jianwen (Note 1) BRI (i1 88 33 00 1 01
LEE Kong Wai, Conway 7 8/8 33 2/2 1 0/0 1 n
WANG Xuexian 8% 78 33 0/0 0/0 1 0
WEI Hongxiong YN 8/8 22 171 0/0 1 h
SU Ling ks 8/8 1 01
Note: e
o Ms. YANG Jianwen resigned on 22 March 2018 and was 1 BN Z T HR2018FE3 A22H BHT -

no longer a member of Audit Committee and a member of
Independent Investigations Committee.

2. During the Reporting Period, no Board or Committee meeting
was attended by a Director’s alternate.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one
meeting with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive
Directors during the Reporting Period.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board shall confirm its responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control of the Group and examine
its effectiveness through the audit committee to safeguard the
assets and investment of the Group as well as the interests of
shareholders. The risk management and internal control system
aims at the management but not the elimination of risks of failure
to attain the business target, and only provides reasonable but
not absolute guarantee for not having material misstatements or
losses.

Characteristics of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company, and the program for
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system:

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and
internal control system, continue to inspect its effectiveness and
warrant that the Group shall establish and maintain the effective
risk management and internal control system; inspect the risk
management and internal control of the Group at least once
a year; supervise the management in respect of the design,
implementation and supervision of the risk management and
internal control system;

The audit committee shall be responsible for the inspection of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company;
the assessment for the outcome of the evaluating and auditing
the risk management and internal control system; the supervision
and promotion of rectifying the defects of the risk management
and internal control; the discussion with the management over
the risk management and internal control system in order to
ensure that the management has performed its duties to set
up the effective system; at the same time, proactively or upon
the appointment by the Board, the research in respect of the
material investigation outcome regarding the matters of the risk
management and internal control system and the response of the
management for the outcome of the investigation;
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The management shall undertake the duties of risk management
and internal control; formulate the appropriate strategy in
response to the risk; conduct the risk alert in advance and
promptly issue the risk management report; at the same time, be
responsible for evaluating the internal control; identify the defects
of the internal control and formulate the rectification scheme;
inform the Board and the audit committee of the relevant
information.

Programs for ldentifying, Assessing and Managing the
Material Risk:

Risk identification: to determine the standards for measuring the
risk; identify the potential risk which may affect the Group.

Risk assessment: to assess the identified risk and classify the
level of the risk.

Risk response: to select the strategy in response to the level of
the risk for the risk control department to follow up whether the
strategy in response is effective; at the same time, formulate the
relevant policy in response to avoid the recurrence of the risk or
minimize the relevant risk.

Risk supervision: to continue the regular inspection of the
relevant risk; promptly revise the risk management and internal
control procedure; ensure that the relevant controlling procedure
is appropriate and effective; provide the management and the
Board with the regular report on the outcome of risk supervision.

The Company shall set up the internal audit department and
the risk control department to regularly monitor and assess the
internal risk and control system of each department in order
to determine the risk which may affect the business and other
aspects of the Group (including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information safety).
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With the support from the audit committee, the Board, having
examined the risk management and internal control system
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (including the financial,
operational and compliance control) by means of the risk
assessment report and the internal audit report, is of the opinion
that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
examination has also covered the adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Company has set up the program for the purpose of issue-
reporting, so as to encourage the employees of the Company
to express their questions on the premise of confidentiality in
respect of the potential misconduct concerning the financial
report, the internal control or other matters of the Company.

As for the surveillance and disclosure of the inside information,
the Company has adopted the policy for the disclosure of inside
information, with the aim to ensure that the internal personnel
shall comply with the requirements for confidentiality and
perform the responsibility for the disclosure of inside information.
The policy has expressly set forth the identification of inside
information and the decision-making tree for taking the required
action. The employees and other relevant parties shall maintain
strict confidentiality in respect of the inside information. In the
event of disclosing the inside information, it shall be made on the
fair, true and effective basis.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 187 to 198 of this annual report. Shareholders are advised
to read the paragraph of qualified option in the independent
auditor’s report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB3,000,000 and
RMB1,000,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of

the Company, BDO Limited, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

Service Category
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Fees Paid/Payable

REER e, ENER

RMB’000

FARYE

Audit Services EAZ RS 3,000
Non-audit Services: IEEZARTS ¢

— Review of interim results — BHEPHES 1,000

4,000

Company Secretary

Ms. LO Yee Har Susan and Miss LEUNG Ching Ching of
Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, have been
engaged by the Company as its joint company secretaries. Its
primary contact person at the Company is Mr. TAN Ying, the
chief financial officer and vice-president of overseas marketing
company of the Company. During the Reporting Period, Ms. LO
and Miss LEUNG have complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director.
Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll except where the
chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened
by the Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit
of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the
requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or the company secretaries or the primary contact person
of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the Articles of Association of
the Company. However, shareholders who wish to put forward
proposal at general meetings may convene an EGM following the
procedures set out above.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Primary Contact Person
Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions

for the general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned
above to the primary contact person of the Company as set out

below:

Name: The Chairman of NVC Lighting Holding Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2956 2192

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The
chairman of the Board as well as chairman of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees will
make themselves available at the annual general meetings to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company did not make any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.nvc-lighting.com.cn, where information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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About the Report
Reporting Guideline

This Report is the second Environment, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report published by NVC Lighting Holding Limited.
It has been prepared in compliance with the “Environmental,
Social, and Governance Reporting Reporting Guide” set out in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
as well as based on actual situation of the Company. The Report
aims at improving stakeholders’ awareness of environment,
social and the sustainability strategy of the Company. The Board
of Directors of the Company has approved the Report and
confirmed that it is accurate, factual and complete.

Reporting Scope

The Report discloses the environmental and social performance
of the Group from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. In
addition to the headquarters of NVC Lighting Holding Limited
and Huizhou base, the scope of this Report was expanded as
compared to 2016, including data from Chongging Wanzhou
base, Zhejiang Jiangshan base and Shanghai Qingpu base. The
disclosure of all indicators in the Report can be seen in the ESG
content index at the end of the Report.

Feedback

We will continue to improve the content and format of the ESG
Report in the future. For any inquiries or recommendations,
please do not hesitate to contact us. Contact information is as
follows:

NVC Lighting Holding Limited

Address: NVC Industrial Park, Huicheng District, Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province

Email address: ir@nvc-lighting.com

Tel: +86-752-2786600

Fax: +86-752-2786689
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

In 2017, we were making steady progress on implementing the
new meaning of NVC, i.e. open and connected, continuous
growth, and leading the transformation. We fully leveraged the
advantages of our entire corporate value chain, striving for the
transition towards green and environment-friendly LED lighting
products, and providing energy-efficient, healthy and comfortable
lighting solutions for our customers. We adhered to the
attitude of independent innovation and participated in research
projects of green lighting technology such as Research on Key
Technologies of High Efficiency and High Reliability LED Lamps
during the year. We have been committed to offering excellent
products and technologies to lead our businesses, and the
sustainable development of the lighting industry.

Building on last year’s our first Environment, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report, we looked at and improved the data
collection process and expanded the scope of disclosure in order
to be compatible with the industry’s best practices gradually.
Through ongoing data collection and reporting, the Group
have had significantly more understanding of the environment
protection, employees, operation management, etc, and
continuously improved its ESG management by internal scrutiny.
In 2017, we further expanded the sustainability data collection
scope to cover additional three production bases, i.e. Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shanghai Qingpu
Base, representing NVC’s all main production bases. We hope
this helps present to all stakeholders comprehensively about
NVC’s work and performance on ESG.
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In 2017, the priority of our environmental management was the
control of resources consumption and emissions of the four
major production bases. Each production base’s environmental
management process is completed through cooperation
and coordination between departments through a mode of
corporate autonomy and supervision of the Group, satisfying
the bottom line of compliant emissions. Building on compliance,
we paid attention to the consumption of energy, water, raw
materials and many other resources, studied on and carried
out related energy-saving, water-saving measures to lower the
consumption of the natural resources of the company. We were
committed to reducing the impact on the environment during
the production process. We also made our employees aware of
the idea of green office and green living through advocation and
education, guiding them to take practical actions to participate in
environmental protection.

Employees are NVC’s core resources. We have been looking
deep into creating and optimizing human resources and
transforming them into a drive for sustainable development
of the Group. We offer all-rounded protection on the rights
and interests of our employees. We require the entire Group
to fully achieve compliance in all aspects related closely with
the employees such as employment benefits, work safety and
occupational disease prevention. On the basis of providing safe
and harmonious work environment, we put emphasis on the
development of individual employees so that they can develop
themselves while utilizing their own talents at NVC. We provide
different development channels for different employees through
professional training curriculum system including NVC university
so that they can grow together with NVC.

On the operational front, we aim at providing excellent products
and services for our customers. Independent research and
development have always been our top priority. With a strict
quality management process and detailed supplier management
process in place, our teams are committed to making excellent
products from the cradle of research and development in a
reliable and environment-friendly way. We have set up complete
quality management standards regarding the inspector’s
qualification management to selection of verification standards,
and from the inspection of raw materials of suppliers to the
quality inspection of the finished products. We also regularly
analyzed and reported the product quality within the Group. Our
professional, comprehensive and caring services have helped
us to be able to provide excellent solutions for customers in all
fields such as construction, transportation, office, housing and
industry.
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We advocate continuous improvement and sustainable growth.
My team and | believe that sustainable development can
supplement with the Company’s operation and management.
In 2017, we strengthened our communications with the
stakeholders regarding the topic of sustainable development.
Through a wide variety of communications channels including
questionnaire and phone interview, we learnt the feedback and
perspectives from our employees, suppliers, customers, etc,
regarding NVC’s management approach on environmental and
social issues. We also responded to their demands and accepted
their suggestions. Looking forward, we will continue to uphold
our attitude of open interconnection and listen to the opinions
of all parties in an open manner. We will also continue to launch
green lighting solutions compatible with the national development
strategies to further improve the Group’s work on environmental
and social aspects. We hope you continue to support us on the
journey of our development!

By Order of the Board
Wang Donglei
Chairman

March, 2018
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Sustainability Management

Artificial lighting is closely related to modern work and living.
The Group is devoted to independent innovation and committed
to providing energy-efficient, healthy and comfortable lighting
solutions for customers in all fields. We integrate internal
and external resources through design, R&D, manufacturing,
sales, etc, to maintain a continuous growth, creating values
for customers and bringing positive benefits to the society
and environment. As with the new meaning added to NVC (N
represents Nexus, meaning open and connected; V represents
Vigor, meaning continuous growth; and C represents Change,
meaning leader of transformation), the Group is committed
to leading the transformation of the lighting industry through
innovation and creativity to promote the energy-saving and
environment-friendly lighting programs, driving the sustainable
development of the economy, society and environment.

In addition to efforts put in products, the Group is also dedicated
to continuous improvement of its operation and management.
Since we published our first Environment, Social and Governance
Report in 2016, we have gradually established an embryonic
governance framework for sustainable development. Led
by Risk Control Center of the Group, relevant departments
including System Management Department, Human Resources
Department, Property Department, Suppliers Management
Department, etc., are gathered to establish a working group
for governance and report work of sustainable development. In
2017, we further connected with the Group’s main production
bases and expanded our sustainability data reporting scope to
cover Chongging Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and
Shanghai Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangzhou Huizhou Base,
such data reporting scope basically covered the Group’s entire
production business.
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NVC’s Value Creation Model

Human and Intellectual |
Capital |
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5,895 employees
58952128

Researchers, engineers and
technicians

HEAR - TREAERFITAE
Cooperation with Tsinghua
University, etc, to achieve
integration of industry,
academic and research
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Social and Relationship |
Capital |
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36 exclusive regional

distributions, 3,634 NVC outlets |::>
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Charity donation: RMBA40,000
HEBRABETARE
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4 major manufacturing bases
LR BLEE

2 internationally standardized
R&D centers
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Environmental Capital |
IRIFER |

58,943,989 kWh of electricity
% /758,943,989 T FL i

83,221 liter of fuel oil

#Rh 83,221 A F

1,361,813 ms of gas
51,361,813 75K

100,387 kg of liquid gas
#BE5100,387 2 fr

488,925 tons of tap water

[ 757k 488,9251F

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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As an expert in luminous
environment, the Group

advocates green lighting
and provides energy-efficient)

lighting programs for
customers in different fields.
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EOREEEES

Design Sales
B $HE

Manufacturing

=
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Customer Value

65 new patents granted
FRINES65TB T F
Awarded the “China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands”, with
brand values of RMB20.685
billion

R B & BB E 55005

e (EEH206.85(F T

Top among “2016 Top
100 Enterprises of China’s
Decorative LED Lighting
Industry”

1 8520167 BILEDAR 85 /& £
7310038 15

Qualified rate of products is
maintained above 99.5%
EmiHREe 8 EGREE
99.5% A £
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Social and 6

Environmental Benefits

Disposal of 2875 tons of non-
hazardous wastes (for external
recycling)
—REEYIHINDBERESE =
28750

Total hours of employees’
training and development: 72,870
B T3R8 272,870
aNs

Total safety training hours: 7,432
2 21T 4R R E 432/ b5
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In 2017, the Group continued to conduct materiality assessment
on environmental and social topics. By commissioning a third-
party consultant to conduct phone interviews and questionnaires
with different stakeholder groups, the Group aims to understand
the outcome of its socially responsible initiatives and get the
grips with the improvement direction on sustainability. Based
on the assessment, we identified two major material topics,
i.e. employees and products. On the employee front, the
material topics are employees’ rights and interests, as well as
occupational safety and health. On the product front, the material
topics are green products and product health and safety. This
Report has disclosed more detailed information as to the above
material topics.

Material Topics

REMEE

Descriptions of Topics
B

X‘ié& /I:I #& =
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Response from the Group

REEE E

Employees’ rights
and interests

Occupational safety
and health

BT D@

Legally guarantee the employees’

basic rights and interests; anti-
discrimination; safeguard human
rights;
employees

and provide training to

REREBE TEA#R - RIERE - RE
AHE - KRBT

Caring about the employees’ physical
and mental health and provide safe
working environment for employees

BAUBITHLREE -
TEIRIR

REEBREZZK

e Compliance with international labor
standards

e |Improvement of remuneration and
welfare management system

e Design of dual-channel occupational
training and development road

e Establishment of NVC University

o BB IRE

. *%ﬁ%&%ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ

. [EBERE | NBERIBRER

. ﬂtut ELTAE

e Development of emergency response
procedures and regular arrangement of
escape drills

e Provision of occupational safety and

health training for employees

HIERSERER  THLBRERE

s RETIRMEBLEEI
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Material Topics

BEEMHEE

Descriptions of Topics

R

Response from the Group

REMEE E

Green product Researching, developing and producing
green energy-saving lighting products

to protect the environment

MREEmMR

FRALEGEHLRBER - RERS

Product health
and safety

Provision of high quality and safe
lighting products for customers

EmEEze AREPRHELZ2HNRAER

Cohesion of Employees

In the knowledge-based economy era, the Group regards its
human resources as a major impetus for its continuous business
development. We attach great importance to the management
of human resources, dedicating to improve employees’
welfare, providing training and opportunities of development for
employees, putting occupational safety and health as top priority,
and creating harmonious and friendly working environment for
employees. Looking ahead, we will continue to recruit, nurture
and retain excellent talents to ensure long-term success of the
Group.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA

Establishment of NVC (Beijing) Lighting
Environment Innovation Institute

The key national special project —
Research on High-Efficiency and
Long-Life LED Driven Power Supply
Technologies — has been approved
PRI E T+ (b)) RERIBRIF 7B
EHBRREREIE — [ &M RSHLEDSE
B EIRR ML

Establishment of product monitoring,
measurement and control procedures
Obtaining ISO 9001:2008 certification
for quality control system
HE(ERBERMASZEHIRT)
HR131SO 9001:2008 5% & & il 88 R R &

REBEETHE
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BPFEEERANERNERE  BN5%
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T UHBXL2REREEM - 2E&
MR EH TERE - KK - RAIHGHE
BHRE BERRBEEAL - LER
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Diversity and Harmony; Respect for Human
Rights

We strictly comply with relevant national labor laws and
regulations, including the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and provisions for prohibition of use of child labor, making
sure equal opportunities for work and avoiding any form of
discrimination, including age, sex, marriage, sexual orientation,
race, religion, disability or political background. We strictly
prohibit the use of child labor and forced labor in our business
operation process. In 2017, the Group were not aware of any
reports regarding violation of employee’s basic rights, or the use
of child labor or forced labor.

The Group is engaged in design, manufacturing and sale of
lighting electrical products. We comply with the code of ethics
of Electronic Industry Corporate Citizenship, making sure the
work environment of the electronic industry’s supply chain is safe
and the employees are treated with respect and dignity. To this
end, in addition to compliance with national laws, the Group also
adopts several international accepted standards, including ILO
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, and
UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights, to ensure our labor
standards are in line with international levels.

Employee Composition

Diversity of employees helps the Group to flexibly respond
to changes in business environment and improve innovative
capability. As of 31 December 2017, there were 5,895 employees
in the headquarters of the Group and its four major bases, 26%
of which were management staff and the remaining 74% were
frontline employees. Among the above-said employees, the
ratio of male to female is 43:57. Most of our employees were 30
years old or under, accounting for 53%; those between 31 to 50
accounted for 46%; and those above 50 accounted for 1%. In
terms of education background, 21% were associate degree or
above, among which, 34 were postgraduates.

?\i@& /I:l #& =

ZuiE TEAR

BMBEEETERBES I EREE
HOBR(PEAREMBEEBE) -
(RFEAREMBELEERE)  (EIE
FAEIRE)S  UBRRIESENIH
BeW#eETRAFEANES  8FF
B - 1R - EIEARR - MER - R -
T BREIBUAESZFER - HMRN
¥R EERRBPREFEAET kEH4
T o 2017 - AEBEERTANEH
BERESERER - EREI KRG
THIEER -

AEBERERAESREm KT HEH
T EREFITELORBBATAER
NEREFITEHRERBNTHERER
2 BIXRIEEVWZRER- - At
AEERBTEHZOEE  THRAZHEE
BRARWRE  BREBERS TAS(H
RIVERNEXRRUMENEF) AR
HEBI(ERARES)  BEREMARS
TREHENRET S BEAKE -

ETHARK
%I%’U_ﬂtﬁﬁjﬂﬁ’il? JE B P8 ¥ 3R
BHE (MRS EIFTRE ] © @izowi

128318 - zﬁ%lmwmkghﬂ/\ 2
Fi5,895% E T + HH26% A EEE A
B 74%APRET - HMEINEX
LBl B43:57 c ETHFREEEFRE
0B MIAR © 1553% : 31E505 8 T1h
46% ' S50IA FB T 1% - BFE D
FHE 21%METIHEAEAES A EHNE
- HPEAMRESEIIA -

2017 Annual Report
FIR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRE - ERERRE

Functional Distribution Gender Distribution
BT Rse D1 BT 4RI
1550 3359

BIE geg:d
74% Management Female
AIAR S

Frontline Male

Educational Distribution ) Age Distribution

m ARRELE A8 AEUT .
Undergraduate Associate  Below associate >
or above degree degree _‘ <31
The Group actively improves its remuneration, benefit, training R E BB 1R A 75 = 19 3 048 A A 52 5
and development system to retain and attract excellent talents. In ZRAIEHRERRNES AT 2017
2017, the Group’s quarterly average new hire rate and turnover F -AEENZTEFHABE R -
rate of employees were 6% and 11% respectively, as shown by EHRREE11% o L TTERIZER KR
gender and age in the figure below. FRIHEEE INEEFHMAERM

AR o

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Quarterly Average Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate of Employees by Age

BEREANNETFTEFHRRERABE

.
31-50
.,
0.00 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.12 0.15
B 7Rk = Turnover Rate AR = New Hire Rate

Quarterly Average Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate of Employees by Gender
RURESHWE TEEFHRAERABE

<

Female

= I

Male
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B k=R Turnover Rate AR = New Hire Rate
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Talent Management

The Group has set up well-rounded human resources
management policy and system, including employee manual,
recruitment and dismissal management system, remuneration
management system, performance management measures,
social liability procedural documents, and measures for human
resources information management. This has laid a good
foundation for personnel management.

Remuneration and Benefits

Employees create value for the Group while we share our
development outcome with employees. In order to retain talents,
the Group has set up an improved and highly transparent
remuneration management system. The employees’ remuneration
structure includes basic salary, performance bonus, overtime pay,
allowance and reward. According to the requirements of national,
provincial and municipal governments, the Group has developed
different remuneration strategies for different types of talents to
provide performance and ability-oriented, internally equal and
market-competitive remunerations to employees by referencing
the remuneration levels of proximate regions and the industry,
combining with the actual production features of the Company
and based on the value of a position. The working hours and
holiday benefits are all in line with the local laws and regulations
of the places where the Company operates.

To boost morale, the Group provides diverse benefits to
employees. We provide all statutory benefits to employees as
required by the state, including social insurance and housing
provident fund for employees from mainland China. In addition
to statutory benefits, the Group also provides employees with
corporate benefits such as mobile phone communication subsidy,
business trip subsidy, lunch subsidy, summer high temperature
subsidy, full-attendance bonus, work age bonus, and quality
improvement bonus.
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Recruitment and Promotion

The Group upholds a fair, impartial and open recruitment
principle, and recruits talents by external recruitment, internal
promotion, recommendation from employees, etc. In addition, the
Group’s management model offers an open work environment
for employees, mechanisms for fair treatment of employees and
employee complaints, such that employees are able to give full
play to their functions. The Group has systematic promotion
systems which encourage excellent employees and promote
them to actively make contributions to the Company’s operation
and management.

Team Cohesion

To strengthen the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
organizes various types of employee activities irregularly to
enrich the employee’s life and relieve their work stress. In 2017,
our regional bases organized several team building activities.
For example, Shanghai Base held a sport contest. Enriched
employee activities can effectively enhance communication and
exchange between employees and enhance cohesion of teams
while showing good team style and features.

Training and Development

As a leading company of China’s lighting source product
industry, the Group attaches great importance to talent nurturing
and development. The career development model features dual
channels. One is the channel towards management, i.e. one
can be promoted to higher level of management by leading
teams and enhancing their own management skills; the other
is the channel towards professionals, i.e. one can be promoted
to higher level of professionals through sustained and in-
depth development in certain specific field. The Group has
invested enormously to establish NVC University and appointed
international and domestic renowned lecturers to provide
systematic professional training to professional managers of
all business modules, frontline employees and dealers. We
implement complete training plans to help our employees to
make progress in career. This will promote the Group to grow
and develop in turn.
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We are dedicated to designing and implementing diversified
training programs in order to provide trainings for employees
of different levels and professional background. We target to
deliver effective training to cope with the diversified demand of
our employees. The employees’ training and career development
commences as of the first day they joined in the Group. We
implement pre-job training for newly-employed employees.
Human Resources Department will organize training for new
employees, so that they can understand the Company’s basic
system and related safety policy. This will help them integrate
into the working environment of the Group. Then, further training
will be arranged for new employees by their functions. Such
training will be conducted in different ways, including classroom
teaching, seminars, and group meetings. Special operators will
need to accept statutory training and obtain related operation
certificates. In 2017, the Group conducted various types of
specific training programs, providing development opportunities
to employees of all levels including managers, directors, shop
managers and new graduates. We believe that such programs
could improve general capacity and quality of employees and
facilitate a continuous increase of value of our Group. In 2017,
the Group’s total training person-time reached 28,451 and the
total training hours reached 72,870 hours.

BREEITRMNERER  BMEN
BETRAITEZIAHFIEE - HET
BEHR TRFXEFKHETREEY
MIEIIRIE - BEMEIRBEEES
HEHMAREENE — KBS o B
BEITHEEB ARSI ANBRBSHE—
B E T#THEI - FEIERAD
AIMERGEMBBLEZEBER - B8
THREFBANEETERE - WiERE
BB 2B — B 1ET o FINRTE
FRET BEREHZ  Hfimg N
HeE -  MEBEXABRFTERESE
EFIIWESRIERE © 20176 + AEE
BEMABZETRER - B E NS
JIIEE  RARISEMMETL  BIEL
BB ERMEEEEXELESREE
JIEEgE  KMARFELERERS
BETHREBRENIREER  BOAEERFE
HEAEEE - 2017F AEBEIIRAKX
728,451 + 15 3| 48 B 81 = 3£ 72,870/
B o

Occupational Training Site in Shanghai Qingpu
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Total Training Person-time by Function
RBEEEI DR AR
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2017 Key Training Programmes

2017 EXZHIIER

Reserved General
Manager Nurturing Plan

BB HBEETE

Gold Medal Shop

Manager Nurturing Plan

[EhER] BEAE

Special NEW Graduate
Management Trainee

The Group’s headquarters implemented reserved general manager cultivation
plans and created a three-year special product manager training camp and a
half-year special new graduate management trainee training camp.
EXREARERACERRERHE  TERM=FNERLSEBFIEMRRA+LF
HEEEEEBEFINE -

As to sale channel system, a three-year gold medal shop manager cultivation
plan was implemented and dealer corporatization operation trainings were
conducted.
EHERBZGTH  ARAM=ZFN2BER] BETENECHEHBRAMLES
BEIERIE -

The Group recruited new graduates from colleges and universities to participate
in management trainee training camp for establishing the Group’s young talent

Training Camp pool.

EEZEXEHLERIE
Occupational Safety and Health

The Group is devoted to providing a safe working environment
for all employees, safeguarding their safety and health. We
strictly comply with related laws and regulations, including the
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law
on Prevention of Occupational Disease of the People’s Republic
of China, Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health Surveillance, Regulations of Guangdong
Province on Production Safety and others. We are committed to
taking all necessary measures to reduce the risks of jeopardizing
the health and safety in workplace. In 2017, the Group were not
aware of any work-related fatalities. The rate of work-related
injuries of the Group was 0.51% and the lost days due to work-
related injuries was 310 days.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA
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The Group developed a series of codes of conduct regarding
occupational health and safety, and professional ethics according
to EICC, including hiring safety and health professionals to
arrange regular safety inspection and assess the safety and
health status of the Company’s activities, in order to reduce
potential risk factors and prevent accidents. Meanwhile, the
Group developed emergency response procedures, regularly
arranged first-aid treatment, outfire, evacuation and escape drills.
The Group also established accident report and investigation
systems to encourage its employees to report any accident and
unsafe factor.

REEFITEARBBATR/ER K&
BFHE-RIMBREREL2BERE
BOTREE - EFEEERTEMHE
HEAL RHEHMZE2RA - FEA
AEBNREFERR BB ENR
BRI BHBINFR - R - HEE
SEEERF  EHRPESR BMAFGR
BOLEIRE - ARBE TR EHHEM
AEHE  ZBMETIRESTHAMNIZE
ESE

As for the prevention of occupational disease, the Group
established a comprehensive set of rules on managing
occupational safety and health, with the Human Resources
Department being the core coordinator. Such rules are clear in
functions and responsibility. The functions and responsibility of
each department have all been clearly included into the Details
about Management of Occupational Health and Safety of the
Group and shall be reviewed on a regular basis. In addition,
as required by regulations, we regularly organize employees
for health examination, and provide employees with personal
protective equipment which are replaced regularly.

HREHBER  AEEETE—EMN
ANBERBR/ZL B ITHE &
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In order to improve the employees’ awareness of occupational
safety, the Group promotes the education related to occupational
health and safety, delegating the Human Resources Department
the responsibility to organize relevant trainings, including pre-
job training on professional health and on-the-job training,
such as provision of employees training on prevention of cross-
infection of disease. Apart from regular trainings, we required
that all departments shall place obvious labels or marks at
production and construction sites and declare rules, procedures
and emergency rescue measures in relation to the prevention
and control of occupational diseases and release the test
results about dangerous factors that might lead to occupational
diseases in workplace. In 2017, the person-time of occupational
safety and health education training reached 2,575. There were
7,432 hours of safety training in total.

Occupational Safety and

REREINBERZE2EH  ~NEHHE
TREZZREHE  AANBERHNE
ZRRFIEHEMAEY - BREEABES
IR E E - mAB THRMH
B LB R AN B OB )l o B TE AR
AMASN - HPIERESHBFIFTREE
IRGNERUERERT  RHA
FABERIDANRESE - RERE
BEREEFTWESNERE URT
ESFBEREERRRAIER - 2017
FrBRZBHEBHEIEANXR2,5675
R R IE RS BUET 432/ NFF o

Health Performance 2017 2016
BEZZREEN 20174 20164
Rate of work-related injuries 0.51% 0.43%
ITHESEHER

Lost days due to work-related injuries 310 140
EIGEXAY

Work-related fatalities 0 0
EITAH

Total training person-time 2,575 1,686
B AR

Total training hours 7,432 2,565

AR B

Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou
Base. The data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA
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Create Greener Environment

As an expert in luminous environment, the Group is devoted
to pushing forward green lighting through innovation and
R&D, providing efficient and energy-saving lighting solutions
to customers of all fields, such as, building, transportation,
city lighting, supermarket, hotel, office, housing, industry. We
strictly follow laws related to environment, continue to improve
management systems, improve the efficiency of energy use, and
control discharge of waste water, waste gas and solid wastes to
gradually alleviate the impact over environment by operation.

Environmental Compliance

The Group strictly complies with national laws and regulations
related to the environment, including Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Guangdong Standards
about Limitations on Discharge of Air Pollutants, Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution Law, Marine Environmental Protection
Law and Limit on Discharge of Water Pollutants of Guangdong.
In 2017, the Group had not been imposed any fines or non-
monetary sanctions due to non-compliance of environmental
laws and regulations.
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Environmental Management

The Group is dedicated to achieving harmonious coexistence
between its operation and the natural environment. It
developed Environmental Operation Control Procedures, with
an aim to realize efficient management of the environmental
problems related to its operation through cooperation
between departments. First, all departments shall identify
the environment-related problems in sections where they are
responsible for. And the General Affairs Department and Human
Resources Department shall be responsible for setting goals for
environmental protection and the management of equipment
requirements and coordinating with System Management
Department to evaluate the actual environmental factors before
taking corresponding measures for correction and prevention.
Finally, the System Management Department shall be responsible
for the verification of the results of correction and prevention.

IREAEHR LERBEZERE
Environmental Faollltles and
Aspects Objectives
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Factors
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Correction and
Prevention

Identification Management

In 2017, the Group completed the renewal of ISO 14001
environmental management system certification (2015 version).

The bases of the Group also developed corresponding
Environmental Protection Management System, strictly managed
the Company’s environmental protection facilities and production
devices, implemented construction project Three-Simultaneities
system, conducted environmental impact assessment, developed
emergency response plans for environment pollution accidents,
conducted education and training on environmental protection
for employees, etc. Some production bases set up environmental
protection management committee according to the actual
conditions who is responsible for organization, coordination and
assessment of the Company’s environmental protection work,
requiring all members of such management agency to strictly
perform their duties.
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BREREAS
Environmental Protection
Management Committee

RIREME
Environmental Protection
Director

RIREIEE
Environmental Protection
Deputy Director

q‘ié& /|:| #ﬁ =

SLERLIRREEA

Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Processing Center

ZEPIRREEA
Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Each Department

MIRMRREEA
Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Processing Center

FZEPERREEA
Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Each Department

R LIRIREEA
Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Assembly Center

BHPIRREEA

Responsible Person for
Environmental Protection of
Each Department

Environmental Protection Management Structure of Shanghai Qingpu Base
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Resources Consumption

The Group strictly follows the Rules about Management of
Energy and Resources, advocates and educates its employees to
save water and electricity, etc., in order to reduce consumption

of resources.
Energy

The main types of energy consumed by the Group’s four major
bases included electricity, natural gas, diesel oil, gasoline and
liquefied petroleum gas, of which, the electricity accounted for
a largest percentage, up to 78%, followed by the natural gas,
accounting for 19%. In 2017, the Group’s four major bases
consumed a total of 58,943,989 kWh of electricity, equivalent to
212,198 gigajoules (GJ), a total of 1,361,813 m® of natural gas,
equivalent to 53,017 GJ, a total of 1,132 liters and 82,089 liters
of diesel oil and gasoline respectively, equivalent to 2,657 GJ,
and a total of 100,387 kg of liquefied petroleum gas, equivalent
to 5,037 GJ. The total energy intensity of the Group’s four major
bases was 0.067 GJ/one thousand of revenue in RMB. The
Group’s vehicle decreased in quantity, thus leading to significant
drop in oil consumption of cars.

Consumption Distribution of Main Types of Energy (GJ)
RIBZGER DM (THREE)

diesel oil 41 gasoline 2,616
S8 ﬁ;ﬁﬂ
natural gas 53,01 7
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Followed by the project to replace Huizhou Base’s public lighting
with LED lamps that save energy last year, in 2017, Shanghai
Base replaced its fluorescent lamps in its plant and office
lighting system with energy-saving LED tubes, greatly reducing
its electricity consumption. In addition, the Company also set
up Equipment Department responsible for unified management
of central air conditioning and office air conditioning and timely
maintenance of all blown switches and valves to reduce energy
consumption.

Water Resources

The Group’s four major bases mainly use tap water as water
resources and there is no problem in sourcing fitable water. It
consumed a total of 488,925 tons of water in 2017 and the
water intensity was 0.120 ton/a thousand of revenue in RMB.
The Group is continuously exploring feasible water-conservation
methods. In respect of domestic water consumption, we
installed water-conservation facilities in staff bathrooms and
toilets. In respect of production and building equipment water
consumption, we used water-conservation cooling towers. In
Guangdong Huizhou plants, the Group implemented techniques
combining cooling towers and cooling pool, which allow the
reuse of cooling water when it get cooled after flowing through
underground reflow cooling pool.

EAEEFEINEMM R ERAAEIRLED
BREE TR HEBEMAE0I7TFEBE
WERAENBREERSHENEERA
LR RMLEDEE » AAXRMALHEBE
2o B REIREREHEFE—EE
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#E o
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I RE - 20174F 48 FA 7K 2 5488,9250
F/KZE B0.12018 /T IL AR & 2
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RosHEFTAK RMEETAE -
RIS R EE/KAS A SR EEME
FREAK - HARBE KRS AN o
FEEREMNEWAESR - AEBHTT
% AL RS Al AR 4 A I Bl - ERKE
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Types of Resources Unit 2017 2016
ERER By 20174 20164
Electricity kWh 58,943,989 18,624,000
% &/ THE

Natural Gas m? 1,361,813 278,443
RAR SR

Diesel oil Liter 1,132 -
55 7t

Gasoline Liter 82,089 1,611,076
v al

LPG Kg 100,387 -
BALSE YN

Tap Water Ton 488,925 272,983
B 3k A

Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou
Base; and the data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base.
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Emissions Management

The Group has developed Management of Emission of Waste
Gas, Waste Water and Solid wastes as to such emissions during
the process of manufacturing and marketing of luminaires, with
an aim to ensure its such emissions meet related requirements.
In 2017, the Group delegated a third party to conduct tests and
no excessive emissions were found. These tests included waste
water, waste gas and noise test.

Greenhouse Gas

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are mainly direct
emissions from natural gas, gasoline and diesel oil burning, and
indirect emissions from electricity consumption. In 2017, the
Group’s four major bases discharged a total of 39,943 tons of
greenhouse gas.

HREE

BT ¥E R ELE N 3 E B IE T P B R BE
R BKRERY AKEHE[=ZFE
BEMEE] BMREEEPCEDIABER
EEXR - 2017F - AEBEFEE=TF1
MITHIREK ~ BER R RERAD - IR
BEMBESERIERELE

REBEMBEERBHRREZBIEME
RAR - BTG HEENEEENR -
NERBEE IHEEHER - 20174 -
REBMAEMAEERBBHENESR
39,943 °

2017 2016
Greenhouse Gas Unit Emissions Emissions
BERE By 2017FHME  2016FHmE
Total emissions Ton carbon dioxide 39,943 16,215
BHME equivalent
oSt REE
Direct emissions Ton carbon dioxide 3,469 4,335
(Scope 1) equivalent
BHESER (BE-) MoE(tiRE=E
Indirect emissions Ton carbon dioxide 36,474 11,800
(Scope 2) equivalent

AN (8ES) Mo_StiEE

Remarks: The data boundary of 2016 only covered Guangdong Huizhou
Base; and the data boundary of 2017 covered Chongging
Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and Shangha
Qingpu Base, in addition to Guangdong Huizhou Base.
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Waste Gas

The Group strictly controls the emissions of industrial waste
gas according to the requirements of the local environmental
protection departments of the places where it operates. Some
plants even set up online pollution source monitoring system.
During the year, third party test reports showed that emissions of
all bases complied with related laws, regulations and standards,
including Prevention and Control of Air Pollutants Law, Standards
about Comprehensive Discharge of Air Pollutants, Limit on
Discharge of Air Pollutants of Guangdong, and etc.

The waste gas pollutants discharged from the Group mainly
included nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide and smoke released from
fuel combustion by plant and vehicle. The Group actively takes
measures to deal with such wastes and pollutants. For example,
on plant VOCs emissions, Shanghai Qingpu Base delegated
an accepted environmental protection equipment company to
design waste gas governance engineering and adopted advance
and mature processes, including activated carbon adsorption
device, in order to reduce the impact of the pollutant emissions
on the environment. In 2017, the nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide
and particulate matter (PM) released from the Group’s vehicle
exhausts were respectively 0.177 tons, 0.001 tons and 0.016
tons, while the nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide and smoke released
from the waste gas pollutants generated by the plant equipment
were respectively 3.459 tons, 1.601 tons and 6.560 tons.

ER

RERE I IRGE S PR IR R ARFI 2 K
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2017 » AEEBEHEREMHA AL
Y &R RBEEENBERE S B A
0.177WE + 0.001 Mg F10.016MA o if1 By T
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b #¥)3.459M8 « — &L #R1.601 M8 [ & EE
6.5600M8 °

Types of Pollutants Unit 2017 Emissions
SRYBERER B 2017F BN E
Nitrogen oxide Ton 3.636
AELY Mg
Sulfur dioxide Ton 1.601
—ELER MR
PM Ton 6.576
BT BN I

Remark:  The sources of waste gas pollutant emissions included
emissions from plant equipment and vehicle exhausts
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Waste Water

In 2017, the waste water generated in the Group’s operation
process was mainly the sanitary sewage. Its chemical oxygen
demand, and ammonia — nitrogen pollutant emissions were
respectively 18.2 tons and 1.4 tons. The third party test reports
showed that such emissions of all production bases were
in line with Integrated Sewage Discharge Standard and the
discharge standards set up by the local people’s governments.
As to sewage treatment, we have developed strict rules about
treatment of sewage and carried out separate treatment for
industrial waste water and sanitary sewage. The General Affairs
Department was responsible for the management of equipment
in the sewage treatment station, and also for the training and
management of the equipment operators.

K

FA - AEEESBETAELMNREKX
UNEEREKSE  HEEEFEERAR
AR E 205 R E D Rl 18208 K
1408 FE=RAMEBRTIMAELE
PRI & Co7KE| FERE)
K75 ARBUTHBERURZE o $TH#57K
B3R - BAPIE B E B A BV RENOR IR IR IE
MR B ITRFKREERZKD A
B KA R KEBEREE R
MRERIEABRIFIIEERE

Types of Pollutants Unit 2017 Emissions
SRS R B 2017F BN E
Chemical oxygen demand Ton 18.2
LEFEE 7]
Ammonia - nitrogen Ton 1.4
L= ]

Wastes BEEY

We are devoting to reduce the wastes generated from our
operation and have developed Provisions for Management of
Wastes to effectively manage the process to dispose of the
hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes in order to avoid
polluting the environment.

In the production process, the Group generates hazardous
wastes, such as waste oil, waste sludge, packages for waste gas
and mineral oil, mercury contained waste lamp tube, oily waste
water, waste packing bucket and waste lamp tube. In 2017,
the Group’s four major bases generated 918 tons of hazardous
wastes, of which 95% was waste sludge generated from waste
water treatment. All bases centrally collected the hazardous
wastes according to local legislation and then transported
them to the qualified environmental protection companies for
treatment. In 2017, there were no hazardous waste spilling
events occurred.
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As for the non-hazardous wastes, we, according to the guidelines
of the Provisions for Management of Wastes, categorize and
collect the recyclable wastes, such as, waste paper, plastic,
metal, wood and powder, and then transport them to qualified
recycling agents for treatment. Wastes with no recycling and
utilization value are passed to local municipal environmental
sanitation department for central collection and treatment. During
the year, the Group processed a total of 2,875 tons of non-
hazardous wastes for external recycling.

X‘ié& /IZI #& =]

HE—REBEEY  BMBRE(EEDNE
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Types of Discharged Pollutants Unit 2017 Emissions
SR EERER By 2017 HHE
Hazardous wastes Ton 918
EREEEY A
Non-hazardous wastes Ton 2,875
(for external recycling) 148
—REEY
(FhEBE Yr)

Remark:  The disposal tonnage of general wastes (for external
recycling) excluded Guangdong Huizhou Base

Green R&D and Production

As a national brand in lighting field, the Group strives to research
and develop energy-efficient lighting system and internally
promote environmental protection culture to ensure the Group
compliant with environmental protection spirits in design, R&D,
production and sales and to drive the industry to achieve the
goal of “Make the World More Healthy and Sustainable”.
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Green and Innovative

The Group supports lighting research innovation and sets up
NVC (Beijing) Lighting Environment Innovation Institute. It is a
technology innovation entity. It promotes the LED era luminaires
to develop and provides more environment-friendly and clean
solutions for solving professional lighting problems.

BRERH
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T+ (b)) HIRWAIF MRS - F L (At
) RIRIBAIFTR BT E R BT AR =
BRABHEMEFER L #H
LEDR R ZE R EAMNERE - RREA
EEXRBERBRERRRFOMBARSE -
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NVC (Beijing) Lighting Environment Innovation Institute

B (X)) SRERIF I

In 2017, led by Institute of Engineering Thermophysics, Chinese
Academy of Sciences, the proposal of the key national special
project — Research on Key Technologies of High-Efficiency
and High-Reliability LED Luminaires — applied for by 23 units,
including the Group’s Guangdong Huizhou Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, has been approved. And it has formally began the
start-up procedures. This Project will significantly increase the
lighting efficiency and reliability of high power luminaires. The
innovative technologies based on this Project will significantly
increase the industrial level of China’s high power LED luminaires.
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Promotion of Green Culture

The Group is dedicated to promoting the green culture and
strives to reduce unnecessary wastes in the production process.
We advocate and education employees to save water and
electricity, including turn off lights, water and air-conditioner, save
paper and separate wastes into different dustbins depending on
whether they are “recyclable” or “non-recyclable”. We are also
dedicated to reducing consumption of resources, cutting use
of unnecessary packaging materials and adopting renewable
materials.

Pursuit of Excellent Quality

As a leading company of lighting industry, NVC sets up
strict requirements on product safety, stability and reliability
and implements various quality management measures
on product design, R&D, manufacturing and sales. It is
dedicated to improving its product quality and meeting the
needs of its customers.

Compliant Operation

NVC strictly complies with laws and regulations of electronic
products in order to safeguard consumer safety. The sales of
the Group’s products complies with Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China as well as industrial and regional
regulations. We, by strictly following the procedure of inspection,
ensure that all our products to be sold are in compliance with
requirements. In addition, we set up a standard for the usage
of our brand logo. Our product adverts are carried out in
compliance with the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other applicable laws and regulations. In 2017,
the Group had not been imposed any material fines or non-
cash sanctions relating to the health and safety of products and
services, advertising, logo as well as customer privacy matters.
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R&D and Innovation

NVC is dedicated to research and development of new
technologies and new products. We combine the market
demands with our product professionalization standards
to produce intelligent and healthy products. We have set
up improved R&D systems and achieved integration of the
industry, schools and research institutions through our rich
experiences and continuous inputs. At present, NVC has 4 major
manufacturing bases in China, 2 internationalized R&D centers
and nationally qualified labs. We also have set up overseas
product development centers in line with EU standards. During
the year, the Group had more than 94 new inventions and
patents applications, including 34 utility model applications
and 56 design patent applications, of which, 65 were granted
patents, including 22 utility models and 43 design patents.

The approved key national R&D plan and special project
- Research on High-Efficiency and Long-Life LED Driven
Power Supply Technologies
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Led by Institute of Engineering Thermophysics, Chinese
Academy of Sciences, the proposal of the key national special
project — Research on Key Technologies of High-Efficiency
and High-Reliability LED Luminaires — applied for by 23 units,
including the Group’s Guangdong Huizhou Base and Shanghai
Qingpu Base, has been approved during the year. Of which, the
subject of Research on High-Efficiency and Long-Life LED Driven
Power Supply Technologies was led by the Group. This subject
will lead to lower switching loss, less electromagnetic radiation
and higher power supply quality and 4 inventions and patents
to be applied for. Meanwhile, this subject will tackle the difficulty
in thermal management of high power and high power density
LED luminaires, break through the bottleneck of driven power
supply operating in a long service life under high temperature,
and improve the systematic lighting efficiency and reliability of
luminaires.

Quality Management

The Group has obtained the ISO 9001:2008 quality management
system certification in 2010 and continue to renew our
certification. Furthermore, the Group has set up Product
Monitoring and Surveying Control Procedures for inspecting
and surveying the purchased raw materials or parts, accessory
materials and OEM products, the characteristics of process
products during the production process, semi-finished products
and finished products, so as to inspect whether the products
meeting the specified requirements, and prevent those not
inspected or substandard from entering into markets.

As to quality management, the Group first checks the
qualification of the inspecting and surveying personnel. Such
personnel must qualify the probation and evaluation before taking
the job. As for the monitoring and surveying basis, the Group
has set up Inspection Department and regards the inspection,
test and methods related standard documents corresponding to
all stages as the basis for the Group to monitor and survey its
products.
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As to daily quality examination work, we monitor and survey
our products in procurement stage, intermediate stage and
final stage. In procurement stage, we test the materials from
suppliers in terms of its appearance, size and texture based
on Inspection Flow of Supplied Materials and Raw Material
Inspection, Feedback and Treatment Process to ensure that all
purchased materials complying with the Group’s designed quality
requirements. As for those unqualified products, the Purchase
Department shall return the products, accept after screening or
accept by concession in accordance with Control Procedures for
Unqualified Products.

In the intermediate stage, we, in the production process, set
up several inspection points for product inspection and test by
stationed inspectors of Quality Department based on Quality
Control Procedures for Process Products and the quality
characteristics of semi-products of different stages of the
production process. After being confirmed qualified, the products
will be labeled with inspection mark, and then recorded in
Product Flow Sheet. Qualified semi-products will be transferred
to next process and related inspection and test data will be put
into the Company’s computer LAN ERP system by designated
personnel.

In the final stage, we control the quality of the finished products,
including conducting quality inspection on multiple items, e.g. air
leak, cleanliness, and appearance inspection. Unqualified finished
products will be disposed of according to Flow of Processing
Quality Abnormality Feedback and Control Procedures for
Unqualified Products, so as to ensure they will not be used.
For unqualified products that can be reworked, we also make
second input and carry out second test.

Finally, the Quality Department will regularly analyze the
monitoring and surveying data about the purchased products,
semi-products in the production process, and finished products.
If any data is found abnormal, it will, according to the Control
Procedures for Correction and Prevention Measures, require
related departments to carry out correction and prevention
measures and track such measures for verification.
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Control Flow of Product Monitoring and Surveying

EmERNABEFRRE

BEERARE
ABEHR R BEAR AR 8 KR
Reviewing the qualification Establishing basis for
of monitoring and monitoring and surveying
surveying personnel

EITHEERERRN
ESRR AR =
Monitoring and surveying in
procurement stage

BB R ER A - \\
BB S DM ETRREBRNERMAE
Statistic analysis of Monitoring and surveying

monitoring and surveying of in final state
final products

ETHREERNEGTAE

Monitoring and surveying in
intermediate stage

Furthermore, the Group has also developed its Management N REBNEECHRBEERE
System for Recall of Defective Consumer Products. We have EBHIE) - ﬁzﬁ’ﬁﬁi% ma A @l J\%H ’
formed a product recall group and developed recall plans. If WHIEBLEE - FHEREEE R
any consumer product is found defective, we will safely and BMexs AEHWBEESD -  REZIE
quickly recall it. In this case, we will, within 5 working days, T B eNsEITEBRESME AT
take initiative to file our recall plan with the quality inspection EEFERIPIBERBEIETE - A%
department of the province where we operate. Then, the Group EEeNERTEEMAE  BFR - @5
will publicly release in a timely manner the recall information HEE AREEEREMNAREMED
through press conferences, posters, traditional media, network Bl e HMEBAMEEE  REOER
media and many other channels. We will notify the sellers and WEEMITE EM L - W BB ERE
reach a consensus with them about the responsibilities and o EJJ—TEEEI:IIII [@O1%& - sZEETTE O E
actions of recall measures, and take initiative to contact the mEE - SWERBRERRE - flEA1T
consumers. Upon recall, we will immediately process such RITERT FAL IEFE 1 - &x18 - BB HETT
recalled products, analyze the defection reasons and develop BOo#EstE  WTNEEEREANRS IR
feasible prevention and correction measures. Finally, we will §<<ﬁ‘9%5”éﬁ§ucl': O] B ER MR 45 ) A0 (iR
summarize our recall work and submit to the information system BHEBRARAERSE) MABES
of the provincial quality supervision bureau the Phased Report of o ﬁzﬁgﬂ&%é A B EG - A
Recall of Defective Consumer Products and Summarized Report PSP IETEY B EURESE
of Recall of Defective Consumer Products. In daily operation, HESAE o

we will collect teaching materials and cases about product recall
to provide training to related department so as to avoid the
occurrence of similar quality related events.
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Improved Product Certification

Product certification is an important part to ensure product
quality. The Group actively push forward product test and
certification work. In order to ensure the products to fully meet
related safety requirements, the Group conduct routine inspection
and confirmation inspection of the products to be certificated.
The Company establishes Certification Management Department
to undertake application for certification, rectification, renewal of
certification and etc. And as for the renewal of certificates due to
modification of relevant certification standards, the Department
of Standardized R&D System shall provide unified scheme.

At present, the Group headquarters and its production bases
have certificates such as China Compulsory Certificate
(CCC), China Quality Certificate (CQC) and CQC Energy-
saving Certification. For the products to be sold overseas, the
Group also follows the local requirements to obtain American
UL certificate, America DLC certificate and European ENEC
certificate and many other international certificates.

Customer-oriented
Customer Satisfaction

In order to fully understand the customers’ comments on
our products and services, thus, to improve the customer
satisfaction, the Group developed Evaluation Procedure for
Customer Satisfaction and carried out investigation on customer
satisfaction in each quarter. When a product quality problem is
found, we will organize such investigation for specific customers
in order to understand their satisfaction. In 2017, based on the
customer survey, the Group proposed appropriate correction
measures as to the delivery period, product quality, service,
price, etc. to keep improving our services. Furthermore, NVC
provided to employees “7S” customer experience-oriented
systematic marketing training. “7S” is a system including
participation, vision, store, service, product, case and evaluation
experiences. It gives a comprehensive diagnosis of any existing
problems of the store, helps propose practical solutions and
facilitates to improve the quality of our customer service.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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We devote to ensuring to timely and effectively process the
customers’ request for return of goods. Whenever an Application
Form for Customers to Return or Exchange Goods is received,
corresponding customer service specialist will review and
approve it. Meanwhile, Maintenance Department will conduct
a monthly analysis on the return to sale ratio, so that the staff
of related departments know the return information and also
the specific return reasons. This will be a drive for quality
improvement.

Customer Complaint

The Group keeps dealing with any customer complaint timely,
properly and effectively. We provide customers with convenient
means for consultation and complaints. We also deal with
different types of complaints by different means. During the
year, the headquarters and Huizhou base had received 45,050
calls from customers, of which 95.8% was for consultation, 4%
was about complaints and less than 2.8% was about product
quality. Upon receiving customer complaint, the engineer will
test the product, exchange and return defective products to the
Company.

We also have developed Process for Dealing with Customer
Complaints. Upon receiving a customer complaint, the
corresponding customer service specialist will timely extract
and then classify the valid information into appropriate grade
for handling it in a specified time limit. Finally, he/she will fill in
the Report on Abnormal Work of Customer Service Department.
Upon receiving such report, the appropriate customer complaint
engineer will check such information for product or service
problem, and feed it back to related department for handling.
In addition, our Quality Technology Department or the Quality
Department of any of our base will also, depending on the
grade of a customer compliant and specified handling time
limit, conduct preliminary analysis, provide temporary handling
counter-measures, and confirm whether the customer needs
to return the defective product for analysis or arrange an on-
site confirmation by a customer service specialist or quality
technology personnel. Customer complaint engineer will, within
the specified time, provide the final analysis of causes and
improved programs, inform the customer on the final solutions.
When we handle a relatively serious customer complaint, our
caring representative will, within 3 working days, pay a return
visit as to the final handling result.

BB EREFPRERBIILE - AN
MEE -  EREBWB(EFPERERE
AR BREETERY - AR - EERE
SHEPREEHELLHIETON -
NEHEBERFAAERBRREBIMEE
ARRA  #HPEMNOMENE -

BERIF

AEBRBEE ¥E SRMEER
PERF BMAEPREFIENGESR
MIZFTE o RETRMNZFER - &
MAEFPRHEMEENEESR - FR -
AREFETILBENENLZEETFEXE
45,050% + HHP A AR EEI5.8% &%
FREL BI% - MARED®DE A
DPR2.8% c TIRMKEIZERFE &
ETRATHRTTITRMAEREAR -

BATRE(EPRFRERE) - B
REBAERIEHREK  RERERDRERE
A BEFREAANERDE  ERE
BRIERRARRE  WES(ERIIE
RERE) MEFLIZMAEI RS
% ZERHREMSE B RE @RS
RIRE - I #ARRE IR SR B AR R R 45 AR A &P
FIBEIE - H40 - IR mE Rl af sk &
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BERETOE
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Brand Value

The Group has also received various corporate honors over the
yeas. In 2017, we again were awarded as “China’s 500 Most
Valuable Brands”. As an international lighting corporate, NVC’s
brand values in the amount of RMB20.685 billion, ranking first
in the lighting industry for 6 consecutive years. Furthermore, the
Group’s Shanghai Qingpu Base was also awarded as “High-tech
Corporate” and “Shanghai Municipal Patent Pilot Corporate”,
selected as a “Professional, Refine, Characteristic and Novel”
small and medium-size corporate, and identified as “Qingpu
District Corporate Technology Center”.

Management of Supply Chains

Suppliers are especially important to the quality of the Group’s
products. Therefore, NVC handles affairs related to suppliers from
two aspects, including the screening standards and management
of suppliers, as well as procurement procedures, in order to
create high quality supply chain platform. As of December 31,
2017, the Group has had a total of 400 material suppliers, most
of which are located in mainland China.

The Group screens and manages suppliers based on the
Procedure for Management and Control of Suppliers it has
developed. Every month, we collect data from suppliers, and
conduct a statistic analysis on aspects such as quality, delivery,
service and cost for grading. For low-grade suppliers, we
implement Quality Improvement Plan and other measurements,
such as lowering supply ratio, or even terminating cooperation.
Those suppliers with serious quality issues shall be examined on
site by personnel from the Group with immediate arrangement.

In addition, the Group has stipulated annual evaluation plan
for suppliers, ensuring that each supplier is examined for at
least once per year. The Group also updates Qualified Supplier
Catalog to timely end the business relationships with unqualified
and uncooperative suppliers. The Group shall convene at least
one conference for all suppliers to convey the new guidelines
and requirements about production quality of the Group and to
share cases of improvement, thus, promoting all suppliers to
improve the quality of the supplied products, therefore, meeting
the needs for the development of both the Group and suppliers.
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The Group will enter into Supply and Demand Cooperation
Agreement with new suppliers. In addition to requiring suppliers
to ensure the quality of products and services, we also examine
the suppliers’ performance in environmental protection and
occupational safety. We will add in such agreement terms
as to environmental protection and occupational safety and
health management. The suppliers shall guarantee that their
products and services comply with laws and regulations as to
environmental protection and workers’ occupational health at
national, local and industrial level. While maintaining production
quality, the Group gives priority to production craft or equipment
without contamination or with less contamination. In addition,
we also add in such agreement terms on confidentiality and
intellectual property rights, in order to protect each party’s
intellectual property rights.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Group has established anti-corruption systems, especially
standards about professional practice of the board directors and
medium and senior level management, in order to build up a
clean working attitude, to avoid wrong doings that harm interests
of the Company, shareholders and employees and to prevent
illegal behaviours of commercial bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

We have established Department for Internal Audit as our
standing organ directing reporting to the Company’s Board and
conducting anti-corruption work together with internally and
externally related institutions such as management at all levels
and suppliers. In addition, we internally conduct anti-corruption
trainings through many means, in order to ensure that the
employees understand relevant laws and the Company’s anti-
corruption policy, handling procedures and relevant measures.
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We carry out risk evaluation on anti-fraud annually, including its
importance and potential, and implement in various forms of
necessary measures for internal control of fraud in areas with
high risks, thus containing corruption from the very beginning.
The Group also encourages real-name whistleblowing.
Employees and parties who have a business relationship directly
or indirectly with the Group can report any illegal actions such
as fraud, through reporting telephone, e-mail, mail or by other
means. If what is reported is found true upon investigation, the
informant will be commended and rewarded by the Company.
Meanwhile, we require that we must keep confidential the
informant’s identity to ensure that his/her personal interests
are not infringed. Besides, we have worked out commitment of
honest operation and categorized the commitment separately for
our suppliers, customers and internal employees, encouraging
both internal and external actions to prevent fraud. In 2017,
the Group received no report of any illegal actions, such as,
commercial bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Fulfillment of Social Welfare Projects

For many years, NVC has insisted on fulfilling its corporate
social responsibility in practical action. It provides fund, material
and other supports to poverty relief, environmental protection,
education and many other aspects by carrying out branded
public welfare activities such as “NVC Guangming School”, “NVC
Public Welfare Forest”.

In addition, the Group actively assumes its social responsibility
by applying market-based means. NVC implements
“30,000+Township Franchised Stores”, in which, a certain ratio
of such stores must assume social responsibility for poverty
relief. NVC promises that within 3 years, it will select from poor
areas not less than 3,000 children from poor families, training
them to work in its plants or sale systems. Meanwhile, it will
also provide fund, goods credit, commercial skill training and
store establishment support to 500 to 1,000 excellent individuals
selected from such employees, in order to lead them to a
commercial road to gaining wealth on their own.
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In July 2017, NVC’s chairman Wang Donglei was invited to
attend the Forum “Hong Fund 7.27 — Chinese Community
Thinking Date” and delivered “Responsibility Creates Future”
themed speech. She said, corporations shall put emphasis on
taking up social responsibility to help poor areas to get rid of
poverty. NVC supports “Hong Fund (&% <)”, which cares for
the life and study of the left-behind children, joins hands with
Chinese poverty alleviation net and participates in the creation
of the Chinese entrepreneurs’ alliance for poverty alleviation,
to contribute to the cause of China’s poverty alleviation. In
addition, the Group also provides fund support to secondary
schools and primary schools in the place where it operates. In
2017, we provided a total of RMB40,000 to several secondary
schools and primary schools in Huizhou area. We make efforts to
create a society with harmonious-development together through
persistent social public welfare practice.
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Performance Data Summary BEXRERFE
Unit 20177 2016*
By 201754 20164F*
Environment Resources Consumption
RIE ERER

Electricity kWh 58,943,989 18,624,000
BH EY it
Gasoline Liter 82,089 1,611,076
v #
Diesel Oil Liter 1,132 -
S 7+
Natural Gas m? 1,361,813 278,443
RAR SR
LPG Kg 100,387 -
BILE NIN
Total Energy Intensity GJ/a thousand 0.067 -
BeLREE of revenue in RMB

FTREE

FRAREEHTE

Tap Water Ton 488,925 272,983
SRV U7
Water intensity Ton/a thousand 0.120 -
RXEE of revenue in RMB

WE T ARMEERE
Greenhouse Gas
BEREE
Total Emission of Greenhouse Gas Ton carbon dioxide 39,943 16,215
BERERIERE equivalence

W —E kg 2
Direct Emission (Scope 1) Ton carbon dioxide 3,469 4,335
BEHWR (HEE—) equivalence

ME—SEALIRE 2
Indirect Emission (Scope 2) Ton carbon dioxide 36,474 11,800
fEHER (SE =) equivalence

ME—SE tiRE S
Waste Gas Pollutants
BERI5HY
Nitrogen Oxide Ton 3.636 -
Realty U

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Unit 2017~ 2016*
By 20175~ 20164+
Sulfur Dioxide Ton 1.601 =
—a1ehR i
PM Ton 6.576 -
fEEE Mg
Waste Water Pollutants
BEXKTHY
Chemical Oxygen Demand Ton 18.2
tERaE g
Ammonia — Nitrogen Ton 1.4
anm Mg
Wastes
B!
Hazardous Wastes Ton 918 65.54
EREEY) Mg
Non-hazardous Wastes Ton 2,875 =

(for external recycling) U7
—MREEZEY) (HEDEYk)
Consumption of Packaging

Materials (Guangdong

Huizhou Base)
BEMAERE (EREMEH)
Plastic Bags Pcs 81,489,549 52,262,177
BRBR (s
Color Boxes Pcs 81,686,757 70,473,043
Ta (s
Paper Boxes Pcs 27,375,070 8,731,860
Fivic] (&3
Labels Pcs 209,404,146 126,463,389
R (&3

Employees Total Number of Employees 5,895 1,894
BT BAE

Gender Distribution
Bl 5 e
Male 2,536 1,143
St
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Unit 2017~ 2016*
By 20175~ 20164+
Female 3,359 751
g

Functional Distribution

e 2 e

Management 1,550 758
i

Frontline 4,345 1,136
Al 4%

Age Distribution

FHRD M

<31 3,106 891
31-50 2,693 946
> 50 96 B
Regional Distribution

WES

Mainland China 5,895 1,690
A

Hong Kong and Other Regions 0 204
BB REAM

Turnover Rate of Employees
(by ages)
MAER — RER

Number of Turnover Employees

MEANE

<31 1,445 1,676
31-50 1,053

> 50 57

Average Quarterly Turnover Rate

FEFHORAELR

<31 14% 18%
31-50 8%

> 50 10%

Turnover Rate of Employees
(by gender)
MAER — LR
Number of Turnover Employees
MEANE
Male 1,602 1,676

B

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Unit 2017~ 2016*
By 201745~ 20164F*
Female 953

4

Average Quarterly Turnover Rate

ZEFHYRALE

Male 15% 18%
E5l

Female 7%

g

New Hire (by ages)
FHRESER — RFR

Number of Employees New Hired

ABAE

<31 933 1,076
31-50 565

> 50 16

Average Quarterly New Hire Rate

FEFHHMARE

<31 9% 12%
31-50 4%

> 50 3%

New Hire (by gender)

FBEER — BRI

Number of Employees New Hired

FABAR

Male 975 1,076
Ej

Female 539

Zi

Average Quarterly New Hire Rate

ZEFIOHMARER

Male 9% 12%
Bt

Female 4%

g

Training Performance (by gender)

BEANER — &R

Total Person-time Training

B AR

Male 14,343 -

St
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Unit 2017~ 2016*
By 201744 20164*
Female 14,108 -
g

Total Training Hours

12 AR

Male 43,390 -
Eof

Female 29,480 -
gk

Training Performance (by functions)
B THIEN — BB
Total Person-time Training
- E DN/
Management 5,550 -
BIR
Employee 22,901 -
RATAR
Total Training Hours
12 AR 2
Management 24,675 -
‘B33
Frontline Employee 48,195 =
ATAR
Occupational Safety and Health

Training
B2 EEREE
Total Person-time Training 2,575 1,686
= H YN
Total Training Hours 7,432 2,565
(IS -
Occupational Safety and Health

Performance
BEZE2REEN
Number of work-related Injuries 30 10
THEEHE
Rate of work-related Injuries 0.51% 0.43%
ERER
Lost days due to work-related Injuries 310 140

SHEATIERH

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
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Unit
By

2017+ 2016*
20175~ 20164

Work-related fatalities
ETHT A

Community Participation and Public Welfare

HE

Investment
SEMABERA
Public Welfare Donation 10,000 RMB
INTEFN BTAREK

Unless otherwise specified, 2017 data collection boundary
included the Group’s headquarters, Guangdong Huizhou Base,
Chongging Wanzhou Base, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base and
Shanghai Qingpu Base.

Unless otherwise specified, 2016 data collection boundary only
included the Group’s headquarters and Guangdong Huizhou
Base

ESG Content Index

KPIs

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

RRENER BRXFTESGHREEEER

A INEE R R ER AR 0 20176 S W 2 42

REAEEAL BREMEN &
BEMEM D TILEMR EEF
VEE-S:i)

* WMEARFRIE A - 2016 BiE i & 38

RRAEB R R EREMNEM

AESE =]

Report Chapters/Remarks
BEEH EE

A. Environmental

A IRIR

Aspect A1 Emissions

EEA1 3¢

General Disclosure Information on:

— M E (a) the policies; and

Creation of Green
Environment —

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Environmental Compliance

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and Management of

and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water  Emission

and land, and generation of hazardous and non- ElEZEIRE —REGH

hazardous waste.

e EE

BRABRRIRERBHN - FKRLHOEES BERES

BEERYHELER
(@ BR: &

(o) BTHBITABERZENHBERZEAOIRER -
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Report Chapters/Remarks
BRENER BRFTESGHREREMER EEW O AE
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Creation of Green
HE R AR BE A K - Environment —
Management of Emission
BlEAR BRI — BENE R
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where  Creation of Green
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,  Environment —
per facility). Management of Emission
BERBASHNE (UEAE) k (MER) BE (WABE AEKERE — BINER
SE  BIERMITE
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where  Creation of Green
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,  Environment —
per facility). Management of Emission
ELEEEEDEE (UNETE) K (WER) BE (WA BEKERE — FMER
BESEN  SHEKRMEAHE) °
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Creation of Green
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production  Environment —
volume, per facility). Management of Emission
FEABREEEYREE (UNTE) kR (WEA) BE (A AlE&KEeRE — BENER
BES5N  BERMEHE) °
KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results  Creation of Green
achieved. Environment -
R R PE I E R R b R FTISRCR o Management of Emission
BliEF BIRE — HEE IR
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Creation of Green
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. Environment -
MR EERBEEEZMN AL  RIEEEEMEBEKLT  Management of Emission
TR - RIS BRI — BENE IR
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
BHEA2 ERER

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A2.1

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BEREAER (BREER - KEREMEME) BBER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.per unit of production
volume, per facility).

REAESHERER SEEER (10 - fh) BFES
(ATRETEREFE) REE (WMABEEEMN - FERME
)

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA

Creation of Green
Environment -
Consumption of Resources
BliEg BIRE — BRMER
Creation of Green
Environment -
Consumption of Resources
BliEZBIRE — BERFER
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Report Chapters/Remarks
BRENIER BRFTESGHREREER EEW O BE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.per unit of  Creation of Green
production volume, per facility). Environment -
BEKEREE (MAGEESN - BIERGBE) ° Consumption of Resources
BEZBIRE — BRER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results ~ Creation of Green
achieved. Environment —
R IR ARG B R FTEAR o Consumption of Resources
BERBIRE — BRER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Creation of Green
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and  Environment —
results achieved. Consumption of Resources
fACSKEUER KR ErI A EMEE - UREARKS GRS  AEEKERE — BRER
K PTSBR °
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in  Data Summary
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit ZIEXREHE
produced.
X MATAREMBNEE (EATE) k (ER) B4E
BAGE o
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 RERRAREIR

General Disclosure

—RRE

KPI' A3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

BEBETABRERAARBEREXNBAFZENEE

Description of significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HIMERESHRBRAANEBERNEAXERERKNERS
BRBNITE -

Creation of Green
Environment -
Environmental
Management

BERBEIRE — RIEER
Creation of Green
Environment — Green R&D
and Production
BlEZRBIRE — REMER
HE
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BRENIER BRFTESGHREREMER EEW O AE

B. Society

B.it®

Aspect B1 Employment

[EEB1 &=

General Disclosure

— BB

KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

Aspect B2
[EmB2
General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B2.1

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

promotion, working hours,

benefits and welfare.
Bk iRE B8
2 Zaft - RESUAREMES
(a) B&E &k
(o) EFHETABEATENBBEERZRRBINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group

Bt TEREC BRE -
Krafiay -

FEis

and geographical region.
RIER - ERER - FEER MRS 5D
Employee turnover rate by gender,

MBS B -

age group and

geographical region.

RIER - FieRI KR EDEESMKELLE o

Health and Safety

RERZR

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FAREZE2TERBRREEEHEBELEEN

()ﬁ%'&

(o) BFHEETABEAZENEBEELROINER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
B T ERBRIE T M A B R L -

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA

Cohesion of Employees —
Diversity and Harmony and
Respect for Human Rights,
Management of Talents
HBEEIHE - ZoipE
BA#E - ASTER

Cohesion of Employees —
Composition of Employees
REBETINE — BTHAK
Cohesion of Employees —
Composition of Employees
REEBINE — BITHARK

Cohesion of Employees —
Occupational Safety and
Health
HBEETHE —
/5953

Bxzen

During the reporting period,
there was no death due to
occupational injuries
HREFEAN  RARAIRT
FEL
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BRENER BRFTESGHREREER EEW O BE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Cohesion of Employees -
ATHBEATIERE - Occupational Safety and
Health
REEBINE —BELREHE
2R
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Cohesion of Employees —
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Occupational Safety and
HMFT RN R R L 2 - ARMEERITRESRT  Health
pr REBINE —BELREZHE
Ed55
Aspect B3 Development and Training
[EEmB3 BRI

General Disclosure

—RKE

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Aspect B4
[EmB4
General Disclosure

—RINEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work.Description of training
activities.

AR EERITIIEBEMAFRRAERBUR o fauttiFil
e -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
IR R EEER (WERE
XIEEESL -

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RIERREEREFIES  BEEET

HE  RREEES) Sl00

(SR Y15 B R o

Labour Standards

HIHA

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labour.

BB IEE T okog b4 THY ¢

(@) BUR : &

(o) BFHETABEATENBREEZRBAOIHNER -

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
REBETINE — HBilEER

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
BEBEETIHE — BilHEEE

Cohesion of Employees —
Training and Development
REBT Hhe — HIIHER

Cohesion of Employees —
Diversity and Harmony and
Respect for Human Rights,
REETIRR - ZiHma
BARE
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BRENIER BRFTESGHREREMER EEW O AE
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices  Cohesion of Employees —
to avoid child and forced labour. Compliant Operation and
FaaiR ST RIS B Gl TR e AR SR ZE T R %5 T Respect for Human Rights
REBINE —6HKEE
BARE
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices  During the reporting period,
when discovered. there was no report of
MM IRZ R EARER A BB R EREIE 25 - breach
WMEFERN  LABERMSE
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 ftEEEE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

Aspect B6
[EEB6

General Disclosure

—RKE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
EIRHEENIRE Mt G AR B
Number of suppliers by geographical region.
muRE D HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
AR R EEAED - mERTEREMNNHERE
B UAREREHNAITRERE -

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

B B PR o M AR TS O 188 R 22

HA R E

(a) X &

(o) BFHEBETABEAZENEBEZELROINER -

CEBE - REELES

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
BT RBERERAA

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains

EBREMRE — HEEER
Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains
EBREMRE — HEEER
Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Management of Supply
Chains

BREHmE — HEEEE

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Compliant Operation,
Quality Management,
Customer-oriented
BRE#EME - aRgE -
BEE AR EBAE
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BRENER BRFTESGHREREER EEW O BE

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to  During the reporting period,
recalls for safety and health reasons. there was no recycling
EENEEBAERERTRELREEREAMARKNES  events due to reasons of
A safety and health

BREFERN  RAEREAR
FHEEFREAMSBLEKNSE
%

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints  Pursuit of Excellent Quality
received and how they are dealt with. — Compliant Operation,
FREANRERMRGHIRFEE AREE X - Quality Management,

Customer-oriented
BREHME - aRKgE -
BEE  UAREBAE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and  Pursuit of Excellent Quality
protecting intellectual property rights. — R&D and Innovation,
il ERRESEZNERE@RNED - Management of Supply

Chains
BREWmE — LR -
e e I8

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall  Pursuit of Excellent Quality
procedures. — Quality Management
B iR BENERE KRR BREMRE - mEEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy  No Material Risks Related
policies, how they are implemented and monitored. to the Company Business
HIUEBEERMRERFLEBER - ARBBEMITRERS NEIEBRAHBEARRR
A o

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

EmEB7 RES

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN LR - R - BEFERERE :

(a) B : &

(o) BTFHETABEAZENEBEZELROINER -

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Anti-Corruption Policy
EBREMRE - REBHE
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BRENIER BRFTESGHREREMER EEW O AE
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt During the reporting period,
practices brought against the issuer or its employees there was no report of
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the corruption case
cases. WEFERN - RBEERS
RERBAHBETAXEESREWEELENETHARHE  FANKRS
BIBIE RAFALER o
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Pursuit of Excellent Quality
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. — Anti-Corruption Policy
P eI e R R RIRT - ARMEBERITRERTE - BRE#ME - REBHE
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[EmBS8 HERE

General Disclosure

—fRIFE

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

BLRAZERARDE

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

ERAAMR2ERERESEMELERTEMERELELED
SERULRNEHOBE -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIRRERE (WHE BRESH $IFK-
1t 885) -

R~ XX

Resources contributed (e.g.money or time) to the focus
area.

EEISHBMBHAER (MEELRRE)

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Fulfillment of Social
Welfare Projects
BREHME - BEBELER
it

Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Fulfillment of Social
Welfare Projects
BREMRE - EBdER
Pursuit of Excellent Quality
— Fulfillment of Social
Welfare Projects
BREURE - BEMHER

><

I



Independent Auditor’s Refort

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B 2B S

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 199 to 404, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EETHEER11158
K HID2548

HELTRAZRERLATAZBRE
(RFEFHELMALABERAE])

RES

BRI BN E199EFL04BE 2 EL
BEPAZRERARA ([ERR])) REK
BARl (B IESE]) NE IR
& BER2017F12A31B A H+ 81
BRREREBEZB EFENAFEZR
xAZEBEER  AHEZEZHR
REHRERER  UWRAHIBERE
MEAREETESTBERME -

BMRE BRTERMOFER [REBE
REMR| BEMAEHENETRNTE
ON - B PR SRR DRI BRI IS RS
A ([RERIHH®ELER]) EFREE
AFEEEMAA KRR S£ER
2017F12AB1HME HEB KR RE
EZHLEFENEHIBREAREGHE
enE  WEREBEBD RGO HE
REZBRE -
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

(@)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts

As set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”)
entered into several pledge and guarantee agreements in
2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and Guarantee Agreements”)
with certain banks in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), providing guarantees to the banks for their
loan facilities granted to certain borrowers. Counter
guarantees were provided by one of the borrowers of the
bank loans (the “Borrower”) to the Group. During 2014,
aggregate pledged time deposits of RMB550,924,000
of the Subsidiary had been withdrawn by the banks due
to default of the bank loans under the guarantees of the
Subsidiary.

The Group initiated legal actions to claim the counter
guarantees provided by the Borrower. The directors
are of the opinion that an amount of RMB265,564,000
(the “Recoverable Amount”) is recoverable. Therefore
other receivables of RMB550,924,000 due from the
Borrower were included in “Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2014 as set out
in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
and a provision for the irrecoverable amount of
RMB285,360,000 had been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2014. There
was no subsequent reversal of the provision or further
provision recognised. As at 31 December 2017, the other
receivables of RMB550,924,000 and provision thereon
of RMB285,360,000 were included in “Prepayments,
deposits and other receivables” as detailed in Note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
ETRPERBRD R

RESRER
(a) HitbEWFIRRERBERM
BERSHHITEEL

& BF Bt 7% ¥R 5% BT 5E33%1) 87

ERE—KMBAA ([ZHB
A a]) o B R20134F &20144
MR ARKME ([FE])BEAR
A TRITAI L BIBE R R ERT

& ([EMEERDED  ZE
RITAEETERARTERR
BB ER - SERITERHE

h—RERA ([ZERALD @
EEEREETRER - 8RR
TERZM B QR EROEIER
TEREY EWOMEF%E’X
ZM B AR LR TERAER
AR #550,924F JT °

EEEERIUVAEITE - BhEE
RAREORERRLERE - &
ERBTE A R 265, 5644?
THeRE ([AkE£EE]-
it BA2014¢12H31E :
JFE UK 18 5k A RBUIB A R #6550,924
Fm’aiﬁﬁaﬁkémﬂﬁ%#ﬁ%
M sE22F & 2 & BF BT IS AR Lk A
[T R (RE & & H b FE R
;] —18 - WHEH AR E S REA
R #285,360F Lt e & - A
REE2014F12A31H ILFEH
B RAER -  WEEKERB
REHBNERE —PHORE - P
2017128318 & EfbEWERK
AR #550,924F Jt & 18 RE B &
AR ¥285360F LB 5T A A
@M‘H&i‘%w ooz [ R
Be RHEMEWERER] —I8 -

,J’@
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

As set out in Notes 33 and 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Subsidiary also entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC bank in 2013
(the “Guarantee Agreement 1”) and a PRC finance
company in 2014 (the “Guarantee Agreement 27)
respectively, providing guarantees to the PRC bank
and the PRC finance company for their loan facilities
granted to their borrowers. The outstanding loans of
RMB35,497,000 and RMB34,000,000 in relation to the
Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 were in default in 2015
and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and the PRC
finance company took legal actions against the respective
borrowers and the guarantors (including the Borrower and
the Subsidiary as guarantors) to recover the loan balances
and interests.

For the Guarantee Agreement 1, according to the first
court judgement in 2016 and the final court judgement
in 2017, the Subsidiary is adjudicated to be jointly liable
for the payment to the PRC bank of the outstanding
loan, plus interest and costs. The Subsidiary has filed
application of retrial of the PRC court judgements and
the commencement of related legal proceeding has
been accepted by the PRC court in January 2018. The
related outcome of the retrial according to the official
legal documents received by the Subsidiary is pending
as of the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

For the Guarantee Agreement 2, according to the first
court judgement in 2016 and the final court judgement
in 2017, the Subsidiary is adjudicated to be jointly liable
for the payment to the PRC finance company of the
outstanding loan, plus interest and costs. The Subsidiary
is in the process of applying for protest of the PRC court
judgements.

B 2B S

RESRER (&)

(a)

H b BB W SR IR BB K B A Bt
BRESVNTEEN (&)

WA O B 7% ¥R 3% MY 5233 B4 FT
- ZMH B 2RI R R2013
FHEE—RPBEBITR]ILERTG
Z(ERBE1]) WU RR2014
FH-FRPRAFBABF]LER
i ([ERBZE2]) - BZRP
BlR1TRZK TP EG B A F R E
BERABRTERRERHEER -
HERG R RERBZ2HOKRE
BERARBI5 47T T RAR
#34,000F 7T 2 Bl R2015%F K
2014F B %) - R RPEIRITRZ
R E A B B HREUERITE
MEERAR—RERA (B1F
ZERARZWB AR - (EAE
RA) BRI EREHBEFB -

RERBZIME - BENR2016
FWERER AR RIR2017F 8
BREER AR - ZMB A REER
EARMZRPBERITZMNKRE
BERIMA B KR A&EHLF
B - ZMBRARE P BER
FIRRFEERE  BPRERER
2018F1 AR B X EBHBEEF
A REZMEBARTKREHER
EREXH  BEENEBAEREZ
LTEHMBHmMREMEE B AR
Al o

MIERWZE2M 5 - RIFMN2016
F 0 H ROEFHR R 12017F )
RAEBR AR - LB R RRE
EARAZRTBEM B AR M
RNEEE KA I B Ko i 2 Ao
HAEME - ZMERARERPE
EBEFIR BB ©
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Accordingly, the Group is of the view that the legal
proceedings in relation to Guarantee Agreements 1 and
2 are still in progress notwithstanding the respective final
court judgements.

The directors, with reference to legal opinions obtained
and other factors, consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining losses from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2
is remote as it is considered that the loans had sufficient
underlying securities including the Borrower’s guarantees
and the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors for
the loans. As a result, the directors considered that
no provision thereon is considered necessary as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

However, the legal proceedings in relation to the Pledge
and Guarantee Agreements and the Guarantee Agreement
1 are still in progress and we are not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to assess the
likelihood of successfully applying for the protest of the
PRC court judgements by the Subsidiary in relation to
Guarantee Agreement 2 and the likely outcome of such
protest of the PRC court judgements, and we are not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain
the above management assessment. Accordingly we
are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect of the amount that the Group
would recover from the Borrower’s assets as determined
by the court and the amount ultimately to be recovered
from the Borrower in connection with the Pledge and
Guarantee Agreements, and to determine if any provision
arising from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is
necessary. As a result, we are not able to ascertain the
recoverability of the Recoverable Amount due from the
Borrower and any provision for the Guarantee Agreements
1 and 2 as at 31 December 2017 should be recognised.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED
ETRPERBRD R

RESRER

(a)

(&)

H i P& W SR IR E 2 BA A Bt
BRRANNTRER (£)

At EK@WUE {%%E’f/ﬁ
AR R AOR BT #UAR - (B B
W1 R R B #2A A EF

AL

K2ERBNEEERREME
X EERA BEEARER
1 R ERIBZE ~27¥<%ff¢§9€a’ﬂ
BEEEM  REEZEREEGR
HEEBAER (2 %E;%ﬁ*h/\m
ER)  MZHMBARMERZE
REEFR—REERA AL E
ERETEER2016F K20174F
12 A31 R{EL MR R4 -

AT - BRAERRERBZENUR
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B RPIRERERDIRENE
%JFLAEMEEZKHJ% AR BE
ERpE2O P BEABT #IUR R
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I EE - At - RPIBEAREE
BE 75 [ UK B U 3% 18 A /9 AT W (]
© % KBS R2017F12A31H
MERGH I RERB R IRE
15 o BhHE YR 18 SR A FKIE ] Uk [E]
SRR MR R R2017F12 A
31E|5'dc%f%%ﬁ% %1 RERGZE2E



Independent Auditor’s Refort

Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of other receivables and
uncertainties relating to financial guarantee
contracts (continued)

Any adjustments to the Recoverable Amount due from
the Borrower and any provision to be recognised as at 31
December 2017 in respect of Guarantee Agreements 1
and 2 would have a consequential impact on the Group’s
net assets as at 31 December 2017 and the Group’s
financial performance for the year then ended. Our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was qualified in this
respect.

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract

As set out in Notes 33 and 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, in addition to the agreements as
mentioned in the above paragraphs, the Subsidiary
entered into a guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee
Agreement 3”) with a PRC bank in 2014, providing
guarantee to the bank for a loan facility granted to its
borrower. The bank loan was in default in 2014 and the
bank took legal actions against the borrower and the
guarantors (including the Subsidiary) to recover the bank
loan balance and interest. A court order was issued to
freeze assets of the guarantors (including the Subsidiary)
in the amount of RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary in the amount of
RMB55,396,000 had been frozen by the bank as at 31
December 2016 which was included in “Restricted bank
balances and short-term deposits” in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016
as set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements. According to the first court judgement in 2016
and the final court judgement in 2017, the Subsidiary
is adjudicated to be jointly liable for the payment to the
PRC bank of RMB60,000,000, plus interest and costs. In
February 2017, the frozen bank balance of the Subsidiary
has been withdrawn by the court for the purpose of
settlement of the claim by the PRC bank. During the year,

B 2B S

RESRER (&

(a)

(b)

H ftb P& W R IR (E 2 B A Bt
BRASHHTEEY (&)

REERGIREE  Hegh &
EEP2017F12 A1 HRFEE
kX BEEEHZZBLEFEMNY
BRABRERNZE - BMIEEH
Z2016F 12 A31 HILFERA G
MBHRENEZE LRI EDR

E‘é:’ o

MBREREVEBERRE

ARG OF B 75 ¥R ZR Y 5233 R 34F
&R EBREMAAHRE - Z
BB A B R2014F B B A — K
RITET N —IEER T H ([BERB
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EXmERRER ZBTZE
AR BER2014F B8 © MR
TERIUERITHRERAR—
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HERIES REERA (BIEZ
MEAR) BEE HeBARK
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(b)

Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

the Subsidiary filed an application of retrial of the PRC
court judgements in relation to Guarantee Agreement
3 which was rejected by the PRC court. During the
year, the Subsidiary has filed an application of protest
of the PRC court judgements and the commencement
of related legal proceeding has been accepted by the
PRC court in March 2018. The related outcome of
the protest according to the official legal documents
received by the Subsidiary is pending as of the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, the Group is of the view that the legal
proceeding is still in progress notwithstanding the final
court judgement and the rejection of the application of
retrial. As at 31 December 2017, the withdrawn amount of
RMB55,396,000 was included in “Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position as set out in Note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The directors, with reference to legal opinion obtained and
other factors, consider that the likelihood of the Group
sustaining losses from the guarantee is remote as it is
considered that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one of the guarantors
for the bank loan. The directors believe that the withdrawn
bank balance will be fully recovered upon the conclusion
of the protest of the PRC court judgements and no
provision on the frozen and subsequently withdrawn
amount is considered necessary as at 31 December 2016
and 2017 respectively. In addition, the directors are of
the opinion that no provision on any shortfall between
the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group under
the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s frozen
and subsequently withdrawn bank balance is considered
necessary as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 respectively.
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Independent Auditor’s Refort

Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

(b) Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

However, as the legal proceeding is still in progress, we
are not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess the likely outcome of the legal proceeding
in respect of whether the Subsidiary is jointly liable for
the payment to the PRC bank of RMB60,000,000 and
accordingly whether and to what extent the Group would
recover the withdrawn amount from the court, and we are
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to ascertain the above management assessment.
Accordingly, we are not able to ascertain whether any
provision on the frozen and subsequently withdrawn
amount as at 31 December 2017, and any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group
under the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s
frozen and subsequently withdrawn amount is required to
be made as at 31 December 2017.

Any provisions that should have been made as at 31
December 2017 would have a consequential impact on
the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2017 and the
Group’s financial performance for the year then ended.
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was qualified in
this respect.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. As
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
impairment of other receivables and uncertainties relating to
financial guarantee contracts; and provision for loss on financial
guarantee contract. Accordingly we are unable to conclude
whether or not the other information is materially misstated with
respect to these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Independent Auditor’s Refort

Impairment assessment on intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Refer to Notes 2.3, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Included in other intangible assets of the Group are trademarks
of RMB270,000,000 with indefinite useful lives as at 31
December 2017.

We focused on this area due to the size of trademarks with
indefinite useful lives. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment
of the value-in-use calculation of the Group’s cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) involves judgement and estimates about the future
results of the businesses, key assumptions including budgeted
gross margins, discount rate and growth rate applied to future
cash flow forecast.

Our response:

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the followings:

(i) Evaluating and checking the composition of the Group’s
future cash flow forecasts in the CGU, and the process
by which they were drawn up, including testing the
underlying value-in-use calculations and comparing them
to the latest approved budgets;

(ii) Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions by
comparing the current year actual results with the 2017
figures included in the prior year forecast, by reference
to future plans and by performing independent market
analysis; and

(iii) Utilising our own valuation specialists’ work when
considering the appropriateness of the discount rate and
long-term growth rate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁi

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Refort

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung
Practising Certificate Number: P05308

Hong Kong, 22 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EPfER

Year ended 31 December 2017 #%E2017F 12 A31 B IEFE

2017 2016
2017% 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k2 FAR® FARE
REVENUE PN 5 4,063,163 3,806,329
Cost of sales SHE R (2,890,305) (2,785,371)
Gross profit ER 1,172,858 1,020,958
Other income and gains HA A Rz 5 127,604 95,829
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (401,923) (359,812)
Administrative expenses EEEA (356,895) (412,806)
Other expenses HinE A 6 (81,160) (78,565)
Finance costs s E A 8 (42,096) (25,769)
Share of results of associates N 17,468 6,800
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BE KM B A= 48 - 7,419
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX A0 F) 7 435,856 254,054
Income tax FrisHi 11 (104,256) (75,471)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERIHE 331,600 178,583
Attributable to: A&7
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZS DN 314,268 150,928
Non-controlling interests IRV S RE 17,332 27,655
331,600 178,583
EARNINGS PER SHARE BATEERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEAELESRER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS (Re-presented)
OF THE PARENT (F& &%)
Basic HAK 13 RMB9.18 cents RMB4.74 cents
AR%9.18% AR®B4.745
Diluted s 13 RMB7.78 cents RMB4.74 cents

ARH¥7.785%

ANREE4. 745
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SOFEEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE2017F12 A31 B IEFE

2017 2016
2017% 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARK
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR G FE 331,600 178,583
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hh 2 EKRA
Other comprehensive income to HEREmnEEEanR
be reclassified to profit or loss FEMEEKA
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BREBINETEEER
of foreign operations b X =58 (2,136) (35,863)
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale AR ECREE
financial assets AR EBEEZSH WS (3,000) 1,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EEZEBAEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 326,464 143,720
Attributable to: AT 77 e -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZFEWN 308,606 117,092
Non-controlling interests JEIE | 1R RS 17,858 26,628
326,464 143,720
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SOFIFIRR R

31 December 2017 2017412 A31H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it FARE FARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HE KRG 14 619,497 650,583
Prepaid land lease payments ENM LIS 15 46,119 47,439
Goodwill EES 16 21,161 21,161
Other intangible assets EtEEEE 17 294,575 312,240
Investments in associates R AR E 18 54,518 41,030
Investment in a joint venture RE 2 NFIRE 46 100,000 100,000
Long term investments RHG & 47 218,026 23,000
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIAE E 19 52,258 48,704
Prepayments AR 22 429,961 102,252
Total non-current assets ERBEESE 1,836,115 1,346,409
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 20 425,384 401,668
Trade and bills receivables B2 RERERIRR 21 1,092,554 1,218,003
Prepayments, deposits and BN RES
other receivables R B A e AR K 22 397,213 343,115
Income tax recoverable SEANIZIEEY 11,741 4,596
Other current assets HEfhmeh&eE 23 41,512 25,303
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 24 88,786 =
Restricted bank balances and ZRHIMRI TSR
short-term deposits PSESEEVER S 25 314,422 445,424
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 25 1,265,589 1,160,155
Total current assets REBEESS 3,637,201 3,598,264
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bil